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“Sovereign’s stock price has more than
tripled over the past ten years.
We are striving to see it double over
the next five years.” - s sigh

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

Striving to be the best we can be for our team members, customers, communities and shareholders. That's what
we do every day at Sovereign, whether it's through interaction with a customer, participation in events in our
communities, or recognition of a team member’s success. On the way to our goals we believe in celebrating
small victories. They help maintain our momentum, build confidence and keep us moving toward our
objectives—building a better bank and striving to consistently achieve above industry average returns for our
shareholders by executing on a clear and well-defined strategy. Sovereign's stock price has more than tripled”
over the past ten years. We are striving to see it double over the next five years.

Early in 2005, Jamie Clarke, adventurer and co-author of The Power of Passion-Achieve Your Own Everests, gave
a stiming speech at a Sovereign leadership conference. His words left a strong impression on our team members.
Pervading the atmosphere here at Sovereign is a renewed spirit—a strong desire to face challenges and reach
goals. We are currently reaching for our own “summit” with our recently announced acquisition of Independence
Community Bank Corp. partially financed with an equity offering at a significant premium to market to Banco
Santander, Euro Zone’s largest bank and the world’s ninth largest.

Financial highlights.

In 2005, we saw significant improvement in our core operating metrics. While our eamings per share grew by
30%, our return on average assets expanded to 1.11% from .90% last year and our operating/cash return on
average assets expanded to 1.26% from 1.19% in 2004, Return on average equity expanded to 11.9% from
10.7% in 2004. Operating/cash returns on average equity and average tangible equity were 13.5% and 27.7%,
respectively. We finished 2005 with an efficiency ratio in the high 40's and net charge-offs of only .20% of average
joans. We did experience some net interest margin.compression in 2005 as a result of loan growth outpacing
deposit growth and the prolonged flatness to even some inversion of the yield curve. However, we saw substantial
improvement in our relative rankings among the top 50 financial institutions in the U.S. with our rankings in
return on average assets and average equity, efficiency ratio, net charge-offs to average loans and EPS growth all
improving and our ranking in net interest margi‘n being maintained.

<> Netincome of $676 million after all special charges, up 49% from 2004, earnings per
share of $1.77, up 30% from 2004.

&

Operating/cash earnings for EPS purposes of $764 million, up 27% from 2004, operating/cash eamings
per share of $1.93, up 5% from 2004.

Deposit growth of 17%, including acquisitions; organic deposit growth of 8%.
Loan growth of 20%, including acquisitions; organic loan growth of 12%.

Consumer and commercial banking fees grew 19% and 30%, respectively.

R R

During 2005, we repurchased 21 million shares, through our previously announced share repurchase
program, and increased the annual cash dividend by 100%. In addition, our Board has committed to
review the cash dividend twice a year going forward.

Sovereign Bancorp | 4
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“I ‘&he power of our paesxi@m is
erm"@ng enough, we ﬁgme out a way
to make our g@aﬂe R‘@W ~ Jamie Clarke
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Bunﬂdfmg one of the best banking franchises in

the N@rﬂneast United States.

The most qmportant and strategic step we took in 2005 was the October 24th announcement of our pending
acquisitionj of Independence Community Bank Corp. of Brooklyn, N.Y. and a $2.4 billion equity offering to Banco
Santanderi‘Centra! Hispano, S.A. of Madrid, Spain.

The Indep‘endence acquisition completes several strategic priorities for us. independence significantly enhances
the value of our company and opens to us new geographic and niche markets. Until now, our expansion 1‘
throughout the Northeast has bypassed the nation's largest market—New York. independence adds 125 |
branches,‘and approximately $10.5 billion in deposits in the metro New York and New Jersey markets, ;
providing us entrance into the New York market and enhancing our current position in New Jersey. It will maké
us an even more efftment service provider as we currently have lending functions in New York, but no brancheé
and no dep05|t gathering capabilities. 1t also diversifies our loan mix with our extension into muiti-family lendmg
and allows us to bring a broader array of products and services to offer Independence customers. Following thl%
transactiofn, our footprint will reach up the eastern seaboard from Maryland to New Hampshire. i
Our equity offering to Santander, at a significant premium over market, will in part facilitate our acquisition !
of Independence We are extremely proud to welcome Santander as a major financial investor in Sovereign. }
Santander is the ninth-largest bank in the world ranked by market capitalization and a highly respected glob“al
financial |nstltutlon Santander has over 10,200 offices and approximately 130,000 employees worIdW|de,1
the leading share in the Euro Zone and significant presence in the United Kingdom, Mexico, Puerto Rico anel

Latin America.
1

|
The New ‘}(ork area is home to the third largest Hispanic population in the United States. This presents a wonderful
opportunit‘y to focus on how to best capture market share and support the Hispanic banking market, the fastest I
growing populat(on segment in the United States. We believe Santander is the perfect partner to help us do that. | :
We are cu‘rrently developing specific plans to target Spanish-speaking markets that are big in metro New York, New
Jersey, New England and Pennsylvania by taking full advantage of Santander’s best practices and experiences. We
are also developing specific plans for our business customers to assist them in taking advantage of Santander’s '
presence as Latin America’s largest bank, Mexico's third largest, Puerto Rico's second largest and the Euro zone’s‘
largest. We believe these tactics will help us execute our strategy and result in above average growth. 1
Accretive Jfor shareholders. [
We are convmced that these transactions should significantly enhance our franchise value and will be accretive to
our short- term and long-term earnings. Santander’s interest is aligned with that of al} of Sovereign's shareholders, |

as their motlvat[on is to increase the value of their investment in Sovereign

|
|
I
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Critical Success Factors

Since 1987, Sovereign has continued to manage its business around four critical success factors. As we execute our
strategy, we remain committed to these critical success factors. Below is a look at how we did in 2005, as compared to
prior years. This also shows progress against weaknesses we had identified in prior years' annual reports.

e e 1203 . HE Superior Asset Quality
Non-performing Assets % of Assets ~ 051%  029%  032% f ¢

Superior asset quality has been, and will always be, a top priority
Non-performing Loans % of Loans 076% 039% 043% dt Sovereign. Asset quality: continued to improve during 2005.
Qur net charge-offs decreased to .20% of average loans in 2005

Net Charge-offs 055% 036% 020% ¥ 45 compared to -36% in 2004. Our allowance for credit losses at

Mlowance % of Non-pedforming Loans 164%  285%  231% December 31, 2005 covers over 5 years of 2005 net charge-offs.

Sovereign's Net Interest Margin

Superior Interest Rate Risk Management : 4.00%

‘ BB 309% ey
Interest rate risk management will always be an important focus at  3.00% Ll ' ;

Sovereign. The prolonged flamess of the yield curve facing the entire
industry put pressure on our net interest margin (the difference between the  200%]
interest earned on loans and investments and interest paid on deposits and
borrowings) in 2005. Our goalis tostabilize our netinterest margin in 2006 by

de-emphasizing less profitable loan types and growing low-cost deposits. 0.00%

1.00%

2004 0405

~C= Average Spread 2-yr/10-yr Treasuries

Efficiency Ratio

51.31% Bemminh More Productive
50.33%

.. Providing quality service in a low-cost and efficient manner is a cornerstone
900%  of Sovereign's success. We reduced our efficiency ratio (all general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of net interest income and recurring

52%
51%
50%

49%

non-interest income) by over 100 basis points in 2005. We will continue to
—>  strive to grow Tevenues at a faster pace than operating expenses.

2003 2004 2005

48%

7%

Strong Sales and Service Culture ‘

Sovereign believes that continued success is dependent upon World
Class team members providing World Class service. That’s why in 2005,
we introduced DRASTIC—Dumb Rules and Stupid Thingsi Impacting
Customers. The goal of DRASTIC is to eliminate the roadblocks that

Retail Accounts and Services

Per Household
5101 5.64

are standing in the way of our team members’ ability to deliver Red ::z o 5.46
Carpet Service to every customer, every time. Some initiative$ that were 5.40 -
implemented during 2005 include upgraded equipment to improve 5.301
account opening and setvicing time, and empowerment of tetail team 5.20
members with individualized levels of authority to meet ‘customers’ 5.104

needs. We also enhanced online banking for customers and rolled out a A -
o o o . 12/03 12/04 12/05

simplified, more competitive product set. We hope that these initiatives

along with others will help us achieve our mission of each customer

having six or more services with Sovereign. ‘

Sovereign Bancorp | 6
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“Authenticity, integrity, mutual trust
and ?esp@ct—t@g@th@r are the foundation
of our leadership style.” - ays.sicnu
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Building lc:ur capital.

We expegt to generate at least $1 billion of tangible capital annually once our pending acquisition of Independen
is comple%ted, restoring our tangible equity ratio and tangible book value within one year of closing to
pre-announcement levels. We remain very committed to our capital allocation process, determining the most |
efficient and best use of capital. Our capital altocation consists of four decisions—investing in organic growth, J
share rep‘urchases, cash dividends and mergers and acquisitions assuming our acquisition criteria are met. Any |
acquisitio:n must be consistent with our vision, mission and Critical Success Factors and be the best altemative
for use ofjour capital; be accretive to earnings in the first twelve months and not slow down the anticipated future

growth rate of our earnings; and improve our market position or provide entry into higher growth markets.
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BO&M‘I{[ driven strategic direction and strong corporate governance.

Sovereign:’s Board of Directors is actively involved with our management in setting strategy and facilitating

superior %xecution of that strategy. In addition to regular board meetings, the Board holds a retreat at least on
a year wi&h management to discuss Sovereign’s strategic direction. During these strategic sessions, the Board !
focuses 0;n several areas of importance, such as:

_‘8A4 e

i

< Reviewing progress against Sovereign's vision, mission, values and critical success factors.

|
<> Reviewing Sovereign's business plans, including goals for improving operating metrics.

< Dﬁscussing corporate strategy and evaluating Sovereign’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities
a;nd threats.

< Cbnsidering all strategic alternatives to enhance shareholder value over the short-term and long-term.

|

We achieve our mission and practice our values in an ethical, moral and legal atmosphere, where mutual trust,
integrity and understanding are practiced. Consistent with our commitment to good principles of corporate ]
governanée, we have for years required that our Board consist entirely of non-management directors, except the|
CEO, and|have delegated important policy-making and oversight functions to our four key committees: Audit
Committefé, Compensation Committee, Ethics and Corporate Governance Committee and Nominating Committée,

all of whic}-h consist entirely of independent directors under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange.
1
At Sovereign, corporate governance and business ethics are part of our culture and the historic foundation of our

i
SUCCESS. This is evident by our strong Corporate Governance Quotient, a corporate governance rating system j
provided by Institutional Shareholder Services (ISS) that evaluates the strengths, deficiencies and risks of a l

|
]
|
|
1
1

company’% corporate governance practices and board of directors based on four areas of focus: board of directors,
audit, antij-takeover provisions and executive and director compensation. As of March 1, 2006 Sovereign's
Corporate }Governance Quotient was better than 98.5% of bank companies. In addition, Sovereign has been
named to ‘ithe Business Ethics Magazine’s “100 Best Corporate Citizens” list for 2006, which identifies compani

that excel at serving a variety of stakeholders well. We're very proud of this significant accomplishment.

|
|
i
|
i
|
i
i
|
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Striving to be the best we can be for our team members. 5

Sovereigﬁ is well into its journey of becoming a great place to work. A great place to work is a place where i
employeés trust the peaple they work for, have pride in what they do and enjoy the people they work with. The?
critical sd’ccess factors in creating this environment are credibility, respect, faimess, pride and camaraderie.

Several mdependent studies reveal that the best companies to work for in the nation deliver higher shareholder

returns than their peers. :
!

Since 2QO3, we have set aside a week to two weeks each year in early March—“Together, We Make a Differerjce
Week”—Ho celebrate our team members and recognize those who have truly made a difference at Savereign arﬁd
in their oommunities. This celebration reinforces the attitude that we ate all working towards a common goal—l‘to
be one df the best companies to work for in America. By sharing a common vision, mission and dream to be trhe
best we can be, there’s no doubt that we can succeed. In 2005, Sovereign was recogmzed as one of the best | !
compames to work for in practically all states we operate in. :

\

We contlnue to be committed to ieadership development here at Sovereign. Our expectation from every leader is
that they possess absolute clarity of our vision, mission, strategy and goals along with a passion for execution. We
also expect our leaders to be masters of their internal environment by creating an atmosphere of mutual trust apd
respect J’with open and honest communications. Our leaders must also be aware of the external environment——\:'
such asf, our customers, prospects and competitors as well as what is happening in the regulatory and econojic
environfnent that may impact us and what strategies will be most effective in delivering solutions to our custorr§1ers.

We havje profiled a few of our team members in this annual report, see. for yourself what they had to say when
asked, “What makes Sovereign a great place to work?” X

| !
! i
1

Striving to be the most innovative and convenient bank |
for our customers. ’

Providiog exceptional service to each and every customer, each and every day, is the way we do business
at Sove‘.retgn To achieve this, we believe in our strategy of “Getting big by staying small.” We are effectively ,’
combining the best attributes of a large bank with the personalized services of a smaller community bank through

our local market-based delivery model, which went into effect January 1, 2005.

f I
In addition to providing exceptional customer service, we have been striving to re-define convenience for ;
our customers by identifying key initiatives that will keep us competitive as well as differentiate us from the J
compétition Many of our community banking offices now offer seven day banking along with appointment |
bankmg We have eleven local markets serving our customers with authority to make local decisions for both our
retail and commercial customers, We continually work to innovate and improve the customer experience and

product offering as we strive to be the best we can be. Some initiatives recently put in place include: ;
|
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“hose a rekoed, epen almacphere hiete where
- oompnmicalion is esseitil, wmm
" extainal,

T Rt Sovereign we put oy customers’ needs

. st We truly love whiat we do. O job isn't
mstn’lerestmgandchaﬂmgmg vt’spersanal
satisfaction in knowing that we have provided
oy customers with net onty results, but
galstions a5 well. We take pride in our work.
Severeign is truly a great place to w
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- Team members throughnut Soustcig's footprin.
1y etfioy working with the team membets.
ey group as wel as other mletwel business
pastners on a daily basis. They. awe dedicaled
and sesponsive.

ﬂtSweveimlbeﬁevemmagemeatisaaamocate
for its team members. it has been my experierce
that management eats team members faidy,
encourages ideas for new ways of doing things
and gives credit where it is deserved. [also think
managensent dees its best 10 keep team members
irdormed through quarterly performance meetings

- and vanious jntemal commumicabions. When |

am informed, § feed vatued,

As the bank has grown, | befieve Sovemgn has
raintained its communily almosphere where
team members are respected, motivated to
work hard and give back to.fhe community,

“When peaple ask what | do for a living, |

am proud to say § werk at Sovereign.”
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is a product of sekor managemant's positionng -
of the bank...a large bank in aseet size bt~ -
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“Striving to be the best we
can be in everyt
that’s our way of life.” - Jay S, Sidhu
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< PErtnering with American Express as the first retail bank in the nation to offer customers American ;
Express branded credit cards enabling us to provide greater choice, flexibility and value to our customers.

Ir+ 2006, we will be the first within our footprint to offer a co-branded American Express OPEN card j

|

|

|

1

\

J

1

\

program, with rewards, for our small business customers,
|

< Qﬁeﬂng of Health Savings Accounts, a special account that enables consumers to save for qualified
nj»edical expenses, to serve a full range of clients including employers and their employees, insurance
cbmpanies and third party administrators. The money individuals contribute to the account and the
ir?terest it eams are not subject to federal income tax.

<> Bringing the bank to the business customer through several convenience-based initiatives, such as
prowdlng technology for desktop image capture and official check service, opening accounts in clients’
fﬁces via our Onsite Banking account opening technology, and courier deposit pickup service.
| |

i

]
< IrTwproving online banking functionality for both retail and commercial banking customers.

dreating Relief Checking with expedited funds access to assist hurricane victims.
i

<> We will also enter into a partnership this year in which Sovereign ATMs will be placed in approximately|

2,000 CVS/pharmacy locations throughout our footprint.
1

<

i

A beﬁer bank builds better communities. |

Soverelgn is energized to make a significant difference in the communities where we live and work. Commun|ty1
remvestment is a priority and major focus of thousands of Sovereign team members who volunteer to serve on 1
boards of)commumty based organizations and as tutors and mentors for students in public schools. They also | 1
help bund homes for Habitat for Humanity, organize book drives, and lead United Way campaigns. The Soverelgn
Bank Fouindatlon supports non-profit organizations with charitable grants, making a difference in youth and i
educational programs, community and economic development initiatives, health and human services as well as
arts and éulture.

|
1

)

We recog‘nize that responding to the financial needs of our communities is a critical part of our long-term success
and the success of the towns, cities and states within our footprint. As part of our continued commitment to thé
Commun:ity Reinvestment Act (CRA), we will make significant investments in affordable mortgages, consumer |
credit, sm;all business loans and community development loans in low- and moderate-income areas within our {
region, During the years 2003 - 2005, Sovereign committed more than $11 billion in loans, investments and ‘1
services to communities in Maryland, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Connecticut, Massachusetts, New Hampshlre}
and Rhoqe Island. That number is expected to-increase to $14 billion under Sovereign's Community Remvestment
Plan for 2006-2010. Sovereign Bank has received the highest possible CRA rating—"Outstanding”—from our J
regulatorsj, the Office of Thrift Supervision, for our community lending and investment performance.

1
1
| |
Whatever the need, Sovereign has consistently created opportunities, programs, or initiatives to provide j
assistancé. We believe that our mission to be a better bank means working to keep our communities growing a’%
every levsj:l, in every possible way. Some examples of our community involvement in 2005 include: ‘

|

i
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<> Soversign “banked” almost 80,000 volunteer hours with nearly 1,600 organizations.

<>

Nearly 780 community organizations received more than $4.5 million through the Sovereign Foundation.

<> Almost one hundred team members applied for the opportunity to be chosen to hetp provide relief to
areas affected by Hurricane Katrina and other natural disasters. Ten team members from all areas of our
footprint were trained by the Red Cross and placed in various locations according to need.

<> When shellfish beds along the coast of Massachusetts had to be closed due to contamination by a toxic
algae outbreak, Sovereign worked quickly with the Small Business Administration to provide Economic
Injury Disaster Loans to businesses in the shellfish industry.

<> The Sovereign Bank Job Foundation Loan Program was created to assist small businesses with
expansion by offering loans at favorable terms and rates as an incentive to create and retain jobs in local
communities and to stimulate the local economies by infusing needed capital. Approximately $33 million
in loans were closed resulting in almost 500 new jobs.

Striving to be the best we can be for our shareholders.

Sovereign has a long and strong record of superior shareholder value creation. Over the last ten, five and

three years, through December 31, 2005, Sovereign's stock price has appreciated 237%, 166%, and 54%,
respectively, significantly outperforming the S&P 500, Dow Jones, S&P Bank and Lehman Brothers Mid-Cap Bank
indices. We are very confident that the execution of our strategy as well as our acquisition of Independence, funded

by our equity offering to Santander, will allow us to continue a record of strong shareholder retums over the long- term.

Striving to be the best we can be for our team members, customers and communities ultimately results in
being the best we can be for our shareholders. We remain optimistic about Sovereign’s near-term and long-term
prospects as we reach for our “summit” and commit to you that we will do everything possible to continue to
create above-average value for all our shareholders.

Jay S. Sidhu
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Soversign Bancorp | 12



Financial data at or for the Year Ended December 31 {dollars in millions, except per share data}

@m@a@ ‘ aw  a  oawm 0 mw 0 ogw @i W
GuvhRes
Total assets $ 63,679 $ 54489 § 43517 § 35,601 $ 35484 16%
Loans, net of allowance 43384 36,240 25833 2,905 20,144 2%
Investment securities 12,857 11,547 12,613 11,366 10,465 5%
i
Deposits and other customer accousts 37978 32,556 27344 26,851 23,348 13%
Borrowings and otherdebtobligaﬁods 18721 16,140 12,198 8829 8940 20%
Stockholders’ equity 5811 4988 3,260 2,764 2,202 2% ’
e st Bt ae  aw  am  aw  gw  SerCmumimd |
[GrowihlRate) J;
Net ncome ’ $ 676 § 454§ 402 ¢ M2 3 7 55%
Net tncome for EPS purposes ) 702 475 402 342 17 571%
Operating/cash earmings for EPS purposes 764 602 4 410 376 19%
hitebil de > 7 - . S U SR SRS . L ;
Netinterestincome $ 1588 $ 1405 § 1,205 § 1160 § 1,054 1%
Total fees and other income before securities transactions 635 468 456 319 399 12%
Net gain (fss) on investment securities 12 14 66 51 16 1%
Netrevenue i - R < R T /T 1 15%0 $ 1468 1% )
Provision for credit losses _ $ % $ 127§ 162 § 46 $ 97 2%
G&A expense ' 1089 943 852 814 m 9%
Other expense 163 236 158 163 454 2%
Net expense $ 1382 % 1306 % 1172 % 1123 % 1,328 0%
[ aYeagCompounded| EXImT_EIT W
Res Data 4
Basic eamings per share ’ $ 186 § 141§ 145 § 132 § 048 40% ‘
Diluted eamings per share ' 1 1.36 138 123 0.45 A%
Operating/cash eamings per share 193 183 162 147 147 1%
Dividends declared per common share 017 0.12 0.10 0.10 0.10 14% '
Book value 16.21 1441 1112 1057 890 16%
)
m 2005 os R003) 2002 2001
J
y ]
Return on average assets ) 111% 0.90% 097% 091% 0.34%
Operating/cash return on average assets 126 119 114 109 1.09
Return on average equity 1192 1074 1341 1350 551
Operating/cash retum on average equity 134 14.26 15.72 16.20 1774
Retum on average tangible equity 24.52 19.54 2720 3472 28.66
Operating/cash retum on average tangible equity 211 25.94 2181 3562 52.31
Netinterest margin ) 3.09 3.24 3.42 361 3.57
Net charge-offs/average loans 0.20 0.36 055 0.58 042
Efficiency ratio 43.00 50.33 5131 52.90 5349

Reconcilement of operating/cash earnings to reported earnings (dollars in thousands, except per share data)

| Voo aiod Doombar 1, o g e P Py
TNethoomeasmpoted 7 3 emis0 Ty s “$ a01851 T R e
Contingentl convertible trust preferfed interest expense, net of tax © 25427 o | | | )
Net Income for EPS purposes $ 700587 $ 177 5 474764 § 136 $ 401851 $ 138 $ 341985 $§ 123 § 116821 $ 045
Weighed averag diluted shares for GAAP EPS | 3987 | 35029 | 20am | 2108 | 25689 '
_ L [ 1
Weighted average diluted shares for GMP EPS . 39187 350,296 20477 279,039 256,895
B ude diutive effect of £ITF 04-8 6n contingently convertible debt ; — ) | — I I —
Adiusmdweig!mdaveragedlhrtedghamsfnrOpefarﬁng/cashEPS o 39,187 . 328560 047 o 28039 25689 .
Net Income and EPS as reporte based on adjusted share count | 701567 § 17 |8 45352 $ L3 [$ AMSSL § 138 [$ 341985 $ 123 [$ 1l6g2l 5 OfS
Merger-retated and integration costs 8,284 002 30,134 009 10316 004
Provison for loan s i |30 oo | [ s oo, )
Restructuring of balance sheet 42605 013 18838 007 6,540 003
Restructuring charges ) L 2589 001 { [ [ I 3525 0,102
Impainment charge for FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock 20891 0.06
Proxy and professional fees 3,788 00 | t ' ; ,
Non-soficitation expense ) 158,106 0.62
Avartzton of margtes Toges o] suss 016 | 5000 o7 | st 0| s 03
Operating/cash eamings for EPS purposes $ 764232 $ 193 § 602268 $ 183 $ 470788 $ 162 § 41032 § 147 $ 3764090 § 147

Nlen-GAAP Financial Measures:

This repart contains financial information determined by methods other than in acoordance with LS. Generally Accepted Actounting Principles (“GAAP"). Savereign's management uses the non-GAAP measures of Operating/cash
eamings, and the related per share amount, in its analysis of the Company's performance. This measure, as used by Sovereign, adjusts netincome determined in accordance with GAAP to exclude the effects of special items, incliing
significant gains or losses that are uriisual in nature or are associated with acquiring and integrating businesses, and certain non-cash charges. Operating/cash eamings for 2005 EPS purposes represent net income adjusted for the
after-ta effects of menger-refated and integration charges, certain restructuring charges, proxy and professional fees and the amortization of intangibie assets. Since certain of thes items and their impact on Sovereign's performiance
are difficult to predict, management tefieves presentations of financial measures excluding the impact of these items provide useful supplemental information in evaluating the operating results of Soversign's core businesses. These
disciasures should ot be viewed as a substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAR nior are ey necessarily comparable tn non-GAAP performance measures that may be presented by ather companies.

Forward Looking Statements: ‘
Certain portions of this Annual Report contain various forward-looking statements. Please refer to page 3 of the Form 10-K for a discussion of the various factors that could adversely affect the future
results — causing them to differ materially from those expressed herein.

3 | Sovereign Bancorp




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSlON
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
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FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (“Savereign”). Sovereign may from time to time make forward-looking statements in Sovereign's filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (including this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Exhibits hereto), inits reports to shareholders
(including its 2005 Annual Report) and in other communications by Sovereign, which are made in good faith by Sovereign, pursuant to
the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 'Some of the disclosure communications by Sovereign,
including any statements preceded by, followed by or which include the words “may,” “could,” “should,” “pro forma,” “looking forward,”
"will,” “would,” “believe,” "expect,” “hope,” anticipate,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “strive,” “hopefully,” “try,” “assurme” or similar
expressions constitute forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements include statements with respect to Sovereign’$ vision, mission, strategies, goals, beliefs, plans, objectives,
expectations, anticipations, estimates, intentions, financial condition, results of aperations, future performance and business of Sovereign,
including statements relating to: /

= growth in net income, shareholder value and internal tangible equitg/ generation;

- growth in earnings per share; I

= return on equity;

= refurn on assets;

- efficiency ratio;

= Tier 1 leverage ratio;

- annualized net charge-offs and other asset quality measures;

. fee income as a percentage of total revenue; ;

- ratio of tangible equity to assets or other capital adequacy measdres;

= book vatue and tangible book value per share; and

. loan and deposit portiolio compositions, empioyee retention, deposit retention, asset quality and reserve adegquacy.

These forward-tooking statements, implicitly and explicitly, include the assumptions underlying the statements. Although Sovereign believes
that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, these statements involve risks and uncertainties which are
subject to change based on various important factors (some of which are beyond Sovereign's control). The following factors, among others,
could cause Sovereign's financial performance to differ materially from its goals, plans, objectives, intentions, expectations, forecasts and
projections (and the underlying assumptions) expressed in the forward-looking statements: '
= the strength of the United States economy in genera! and the strength of the regional and local economies in which
Sovereign conducts operations;
7 the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetary and fiscal pohcres and laws, including interest rate policies of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System;
= inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fluctuations;
-7 adverse changes may occur in the securities markets, including those related to the fmanc:al condition of significant issuers
in our investment portfolio;
.: Sovereign's ability to successfully integrate any assets, liabilities, customers, systems and management personne! Sovereign
acquires into its operations and its ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected time frames;

7 the possibility that expected merger-related charges are materially greater than forecasted or that final purchase price
allocations based on fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities at acquisition date and related adjustments to yield and/
or amortization of the acquired assets and liabilities are m;teriany different from those forecasted;

73 deposit attrition, customer loss, revenue loss and business,:“ distruption following Sovereign’s acquisitions, including adverse
effects on relationships with employees may be greater than expected;

= anticipated acquisitions may not close on the expected closing date or may not close at all;
L the conditions to closing anticipated acquisitions, including stockholder and regulatory approvals, may not be satisfied;

= Sovereign's timely development of competitive new products and services in a changing environment and the acceptance of
such products and services by customers;

= the willingness of customers to substitute competitors’ products and services and vice versa;




o the ability of Sovereign and its third party vendors to convert and maintain Sovereign's data processing and related systems
on a timely and acceptable basis and within projected cost estimates;

3 the impact of changes in financial services policies, laws and regulations, including laws, regulations and policies
concerning taxes, banking, capital, liquidity, proper accounting treatment, securities and insurance, and the application
thereof by regulatory bodies and the impact of changes in and interpretation of generally accepted accounting principles;

1 technological changes;

= competitors of Sovereign may have greater financial resources and develop products and technology that enable those
competitors to compete more successfully than Sovereign;

> changes in consumer spending and savings habits;

o acts of terrorism or domestic or foreign military conflicts; and acts of God, including natural disasters;
75 regulatory or judicial proceedings;

~ changes in asset quality;

71 if Sovereign acquires companies with weak internal controls, it will take time to get the acquired company up to the same
level of operating effectiveness as Sovereign’s internal control structure. The Company’s inability to address these risks
could negatively affect the Company's operating results; and

= Sovereign’s success in managing the risks involved in the foregoing.

If one or more of the factors affecting Sovereign’s forward-looking information and statements proves incorrect, then its actual results,
performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, forward-tooking information and statements.
Therefore, Sovereign cautions you not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking information and statements. The effect of these factors
are difficult to predict. New factors emerge from time to time and we cannot assess the impact of any such factor on our business or the
extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any forward looking
statement. Any forward looking statements only speak as of the date of this decument.

Sovereign does not intend to update any forward-looking information and statements, whether written or oral, to reflect any change. Al
forward-tooking statements attributable to Sovereign are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.



PART I 5
ltem 1 - Business

General

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. {“Sovereign” or “the Company”), is the parent company of Sovereign Bank (“Sovereign Bank” or “the Bank”), and
is a $64 billion financial institution with more than 650 community banking offices, over 1,000 ATMs and about 10,000 team members
with principal markets in the Northeastern United States. Sovereign’s primary business consists of attracting deposits from its network of
community banking offices, and originating small business and middie market commerciat loans, residential mortgage loans, home equity
lines of credit, and auto and other consumer loans in the communities served by those offices. Sovereign also originates and purchases
certain loans throughout the United States. ;

Sovereign Bank was created in 1984 under the name Penn Savings Bank, F.S.B. through the merger of two financial institutions with
market areas primatily in Berks and Lancaster counties, Pennsylvania. Sovereign Barik assumed its current name on December 31, 1991.
Sovereign was incorporated in 1987. Sovereign has acquired 27 financial institutions, branch networks and/or related businesses since
1990. Seventeen of these acquisitions, with assets totaling approximately $35 bitlion, have been completed since 1995. On October 24,
2005, Sovereign entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Independence Community Bank Corp., a $19.1 billion financial
institution headquartered in Brooklyn, New York (See Note 28 to the financial statements) This acquisition which is expected to close in
2006 and will allow Sovereign to enter the New York market and expand its presence in the Northeast,

Sovereign is a Pennsylvania business corporation and its principal executive offices are located at 1500 Market Street, Philadeiphia,
Pennsylvania. Sovereign Bank is headquartered in Wyomissing, Pennsylvania, a suburb of Reading, Pernsylvania.

Sovereign Bank is a federally chartered savings bank and operates in a heavily regulated environment. Changes in laws and
regulations affecting Sovereign and its subsidiaries may have a significant lmpact on its operations.
See “Business — Supervision and Regulation.”

Business Strategy

Sovereign believes that as a result of continuing consolidation in the financial services industry, there is an increasing need for a super-
community bank in the Northeastern United States. Sovereign considers a super:community bank to be a bank with the size and range
of commercial, business and consumer products to compete with larger institutions, but with the orientation to relationship banking and
personalized service usually found at smaller community banks. :

In response to this need, in 1996, Sovereign initiated a strategy to transform itself from a traditional mortgage lender into a
super-community bank by: ;
- targeting small and med;um size businesses through offering a broader array of commercial and business banking
products and services;
= changing the mix of its deposits and, while endeavoring to preserve its credit quality, changing the mix of its assets to be
more characteristic of a commercial bank; -
7 increasing its penetration into larger, more densely populated markets in the northeastern United States;
= preserving its orientation toward relationship banking and personalized service, as well as its sales-driven culture; and
7 increasing its non-interest income as a percentage of net income.

During 2000, Sovereign substantially completed this transformation by acquiring $12.3 billion of deposits, $8.0 billion of loans (exclusive

of $1.1 billion of non-relationship mortgage loans sold immediately after the acquisition), and 281 community banking offices located in
Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut and New Hampshire from FleetBoston Financial Corporation (the “FleetBoston Acquisition”). As a
result of the FleetBoston Acquisition, Sovereign doubled its deposit base, changed the mix of loans and deposits to be more characteristic of
a commercial bank, and increased the breadth and depth of senior and middle management. Since that time, Sovereign has completed four
additional acquisitions of community banks. Sovereign aiso believes that its pending acquisition with Independence and the expansion into
New York further solidifies our strategy of being a super comrmunity bank. See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations ~ Recent Acquisitions for further discussion. ‘




Subsidiaries

Sovereign had two direct consolidated wholly-owned subsidiaries at December 31, 2005: Sovereign Bank is the only material subsidiary.

Employees

At December 31, 2005, Sovereign had 8,956 full-time and 1,218 part-time employees. None of these employees are represented by a
collective bargaining agreement, and Sovereign believes it enjoys good relations with its personnel.

Competition

Sovereign is subject to substantial competition in attracting and retaining deposits and in lending funds. The priméry factors in competing

for deposits:include the ability to offer attractive rates, the convenience of office locations, and the avaitability of alternate channels of
distribution. Direct competition for deposits comes primarily from national and state banks, thrift institutions, and broker dealers. Competition
for deposits atso comes from money market mutuat funds, corporate and government securities, and credit unions. The primary factors
driving commercial and consumer competition for loans are interest rates, loan origination fees, service levels and the range of products

and services'offered. Competition for origination of loans normally comes from other thrift institutions, national and state banks, mortgage
bankers, mortgage brokers, finance companies, and insurance companies.

Environmental Laws

Environmentaily related hazards have become a source of high risk and potentially significant liability for financial institutions relative to
their loans. Eavironmentally contaminated properties owned by an institution’s borrowers may result in a drastic reduction in the value
of the collateral securing the institution’s loans to such borrowers, high environmental clean up costs to the borrower affecting its ability

to repay the loans, the subordination of any lien in favor of the institution to a state or federal lien securing clean up costs, and liability to
the institution for clean up costs if it forecloses on the contaminated property or becomes involved in the management of the borrower, To
minimize this risk, Sovereign Bank may require an environmental examination of, and report with respect to, the property of any borrower
ar prospective borrower if circumstances affecting the property indicate a potential for contamination, taking into consideration the potential
loss to the institution in refation to the burdens to the borrower. Such examination must be performed by an engineering firm experienced
in environmentdl risk studies and acceptable o the institution, and the costs of such examinations and reports are the responsibility of the
borrower. These costs may be substantiat and may deter a prospective borrower from entering into a loan transaction with Sovereign Bank.
Sovereign is not aware of any borrower who is currently subject to any environmental investigation or clean up proceeding that is likely to
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

Supervision and Regulation

General. Sovereign is a “savings and loan holding company” registered with the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”) under the Home
Owners’ Loan Actl("HOLA") and, as such, Sovereign is subject to OTS oversight and reporting with respect to certain matters. Sovereign
Bank is chartered as a federal savings bank, and is highly regulated by the OTS as to all its activities, and subject to extensive 0TS
examination, supervision, and reporting.

Sovereign Bank is required to file reports with the OTS describing its activities and financial condition and is periadically examined to test
compliance with various regulatory requirements. The deposits of Sovereign Bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC"). Soveraign Bank is also subject to examination by the FDIC. Such examinations are conducted for the purpose ofprotecting
depositors and the insurance fund and not for the purpose of protecting holders of equity or debt securities of Sovereign or Sovereign Bank.
Sovereign Bank is aimember of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") of Pittsburgh, which is one of the twelve regional banks comprising
the FHLB system. Sovereign Bank is also subject to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System with respect to
reserves maintained against deposits and certain other matters. ‘

Holding Company Regulation. The HOLA prohibits a registered savings and foan holding company from directly or indirectly acquiring
control, including through an acquisition by merger, consolidation or purchase of assefs, of any savings association (as defined in HOLA
to include a federal savings bank) or any other savings and loan holding compahy, without prior OTS approval. Generally, a savings and
loan holding company may not acquire more than 5% of the voting shares of any savings asscciation unless by merger, consalidation or
purchase of assets.



Federal law empowers the Director of the OTS {o take substantive action when the Director determines that there is reasonable cause to
believe that the continuation by a savings and loan holding company of any particular activity constitutes a serious risk to the financial safety,
soundness or stability of a savings and oan holding company’s subsidiary savings institution. Specifically, the Director of the OTS may, as
necessary, (i) limit the payment of dividends by the savings institution; (ii) limit transactions between the savings institution, the holding
company and the subsidiaries or affiliates of either; (iii} limit any activities of the sévings institution that might create a serious risk that the
liabilities of the holding company and its affiliates may be imposed on the savings‘institution. Any such limits could be issued in the form of a
directive having the legal efficacy of a cease and desist order. !

Control of Sovereign. Under the Savings and Loan Holding Cémpany Act and the related Change in Bank Control Act (the “Control Act”),
individuals, corporations or other entities acquiring Sovereign common stock may, alone or together with other investors, be deemed to
control Sovereign and thereby Sovereign Bank. If deemed to control Sovereign, such person or group will be required to obtain OTS approval
to acquire Sovereign's common stock and could be subject to certain ongoing reparting procedures and restrictions under federal law and
regulations. Ownership of more than 10% of the capital stock may be deemed o constitute “control” if certain other control factors are
present. As of December 31, 2005, no individual corporation or other entity owned more than 10% of Sovereign’s capital stock.

On October 24, 2005, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (“Sovereign”) and Banco Santander Central Hispano, S. A. (“Santander”) announced

that they had entered into an Investment Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2005 (the “Investment Agreement”), which sets forth the
terms and conditions pursuant to which, among other things, (i) Santander will purchase from Sovereign approximately 88 million shares
of Sovereign's common stock for $2.4 billion in cash, (ii) Santander can increase its ownership up to over the next two years subject to
certain standstill restrictions and regulatory limitations, and (iii} Santander can after two years, subject to certain exceptions, acquire 100%
of Sovereign in a negotiated transaction subject to shareholder approval. We expect this agreement to close in 2006. The proceeds of the
investment will be used to acquire the common stock of Independence Community Bank Corp. (“Independence") as discussed above.
Additionally, Santander has also agreed to provide nonvoting equity and debt financing in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1.2 billion
at prevailing market rates if requested by Sovereign in order to assist Sovereign with the funding of its acquisition of Independence. This
investment agreement has been submitted to the OTS for their approval.

Santander is the ninth largest bank in the world by market capitalization. It has over 10,000 offices and a presence in over 40 countries. It

is the largest financial group in Spain and Latin America, and has a significant presence elsewhere in Europe; inciuding the United Kingdom
through its Abbey subsidiary and Portugal, where it is the third largest banking group. It also operates a leading consumer finance franchise
in Germany, ltaly, Spain and nine other European countries.

Regulatory Capital Requirements. OTS regulations require savings associations to maintain minimum capital ratios. These standards are
the same as the capital standards that are applicable to other insured depository institutions, such as banks. OTS regulations do not require
savings and loan holding companies to maintain minimum capital ratios.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (“FDIA"), insured depository institutions must be classified in one of five defined categories (well-
capitalized, adequately-capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized). Under OTS regulations,
an institution will be considered “well-capitalized” if it has (i) a total risk-based ca;‘;ital ratio of 10% or greater, (i} a Tier 1 risk-based capital
ratio of 6% or greater, (iii) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5% or greater and (iv) is not subject to any order or written directive to meet and maintain
a specific capital level. A savings institution’s capital category is determined with réspect to its most recent thrift financial report filed with the
OTS. In the event an institution’s capital deteriorates to the undercapitalized category or below, the FDIA and OTS regulations prescribe an
increasing amount of regulatory intervention, including the adoption by the institution of a capital restoration plan, a guarantee of the plan by
its parent holding company and the placement of a hold on increases in assets, number of branches and lines of business.

If capital has reached the significantly or critically undercapitalized levels, further material restrictions can be imposed, including restrictions
on interest payable on accounts, dismissal of management and (in critically underéapitalized situations) appointment of a receiver or
conservator. Critically undercapitalized institutions generally may not, beginning 60 days after becoming critically undercapitalized, make
any payment of principal or interest on their subordinated debt. All but well-capitalized institutions are prohibited from accepting brokered
deposits without prior regulatory approval. Pursuant to the FDIA and OTS regulations, savings associations which are not categorized as
well capitalized or adequately-capitalized are restricted from making capital distributions which include cash dividends, stock redemptions
or repurchases, cash-out mergers, interest payments on certain convertible debt and other transactions charged to the capital account of a
savings association. At December 31, 2005, Sovereign Bank met the criteria to be classified as “well-capitalized.”

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The federal banking agencies adopted certain operational and managerial standards for depository
institutions, including internal audit system components, loan documentation requ‘irements, asset growth parameters, information technology
and data security practices, and compensation standards for officers, directors and employees. The implementation or enforcement of these
guidelines has not had a material adverse effect on Sovereign's results of operations. ‘




Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC. Sovereign Bank is a member of the Savings Association Insurance Fund, which

is administered by the FDIC. Deposits are insured up to the applicable limits by the FDIC and such insurance is backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States government. As insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct
examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution from engaging in
any activity the FDIC determines by regulatidn or order to pose a serious risk to the Insurance Fund. The FDIC also hias the authority to
initiate enforcernent actions against savings institutions, after giving the Office of Thrift Supervision an opportunity to'take such action, and
may terminate an institution’s deposit insurance if it determines that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or is in an
unsafe or unsound condition.

The FDIC's deposit insurance premiums are assessed through a risk-based system under which all insured depository institutions are
placed into one of nine categories and assessed insurance premiums based upon their level of capital and supervisory evaluation. Under
the system, institutions classified as well-capitalized and considered healthy pay no premium or reduced premiums while institutions
that are less than adequately capitalized and considered of substantial supervisory concern pay higher premiums. Risk classification

of all insured institutions is made by the FDIC for each semi-annual assessment period. The current premium schedule for Savings
Asscciation Insurance Fund insured institutions ranges from 0O to 27 basis points per $100 of deposits. Sovereign:Bank is in the
category of institutions who pay zero in FDIC premiums. In addition, all insured institutions are required to pay a Financing Corporation
assessment, in order to fund the interest on bonds issued to resolve thrift failures in the 1980s. The current annual rate for all insured
institutions is $0.132 for every $1,000 in domestic deposits. These assessments are revised quarterly and will continue until the bonds
mature in the year 2017.

In February 2006, deposit insurance modernization legislation was enacted. The new law merges the BIF and SAIF irito a singfe Deposit
Insurance Fund, increases deposit insurance coverage for IRAs to $250,000, provides for the further increase of deposit insurance on all
accounts by indexing the coverage to the rate of inflation, authorizes the FDIC to set the reserve ratio of the combined Deposit Insurance
Fund at a level between 1.15% and 1.50%, and permits the FDIC to establish assessments to be paid by insured bamks to maintain the
minimum ratios. New deposit insurance assessment rates will not be known until the FDIC conducts extensive research and issues new
assessment rates, expected in the fourth quarter of 2006. While the possible assessment rates are unknown, the FDIC has stated that it
expects that all:banks will be assessed some amount for deposit insurance based upon present expectations. Banks in existence prior to
1996 will receive a partial credit for past deposit insurance premiums paid, but the amount of credit for a specific bank will not be known
until new regulations implementing the assessments and the credits are ad‘opted. ‘

Federal Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates. All banks and savings institutions are subject to affiliate and insider transaction rules
applicable to member banks of the Federal Reserve System set forth in the Federal Reserve Act, as well as such additional limitations as the
institutions’ primary federal regutator may adopt. These provisions prohibit or limit a savings institution from extending credit to, or entering
into certain transactions with, affiliates, principal stockholders, directors and executive officers of the savings institution and its affiliates. For
these purposes; the term “affiliate” generally includes a holding company such as Sovereign and any company under common control with
the savings institution. In addition, the federal faw governing unitary savings and loan holding companies prohibits Soyereign Bank from
making any loan to any affiliate whose activity is not permitted for a subsidiary of a bank holding company. This law also prohibits Sovereign
Bank from making any equity investment in any affiliate that is not its subsidiary.

Restrictions on Subsidiary Savings Institution Capital Distributions. Sovereign’s principal sources of funds are cash dividends paid to
it by Sovereign Bank, investment income and borrowings. OTS regulations limit the ability of savings associations such as Sovereign Bank
to pay dividends and make other capital distributions. Associations that are subsidiaries of a savings and loan holding jcompany must fite

a notice with the OTS at least 30 days before the proposed declaration of a dividend or approval of the proposed capital distribution by its
board of directors. In addition, a savings association must obtain prior approval from the OTS if it fails to meet certain regulatory conditions,
or if, after giving effect to the proposed distribution, the association’s capital distributions in a calendar year would exceed its year-to-date
net income plus retained net income for the preceding two years or the association would not be at least adequately capitalized or if the
distribution would violate a statute, regulation, regulatory agreement or a regulatory condition to which the association is subject.

Qualified Thrift Lender. Al savings institutions are required to meet a qualified thrift lender test to avoid certain restrictions on their
operations. The test under the Home Owners Loan Act (HOLA) requires a savings institution to have at least 65% of its portfolio assets, as
defined by regulation, in qualified thrift investments. As an alternative, the savings institution under HOLA may maintain 60% of its assets
in those assets specified in Section 7701(a) (19) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under either test, such assets primarigy consist of residential
housing related loans, certain consumer and small business loans, as defined by the regulations and mortgage related investments.
Sovereign Bank is currently in compliance with the qualified thrift lender regulations.

Other Loan Limitations. Federal law limits the amount of non-residential mortgage loans a savings institution, such as Sovereign Bank,
may make. Separate from the qualified thrift lender test, the law limits a savings institution to a maximum of 10% of |ts assets in large
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comimercial loans (defined as loans in excess of $2 milfion), with another 10% of assets permissible in “small business loans.” Commercial
foans secured by real estate can be made in an amount up to four times an institution's capital. An institution can aiso have commercial
leases, in addition to the above items, up to 10% of its assets. Commercial paper, corporate bonds, and consumer foans taken togather
cannot exceed 35% of an institution's assets. For this purpose, however, residential mor{gage loans and credit card foans are not considered
consumer loans, and are both unlimited in amount. The foregoing limitations are established by statute, and cannot be waived by the OTS.
Sovereign is currently in compliance with these statutes. '

Federal Reserve Regulation. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, Sovereign Bank is required to maintain a reserve against its
transaction accounts (primarily interest-bearing and non interest-bearing checking accounts). Because reserves must generally be maintained
in ¢cash or in non-interest-bearing accounts, the effect of the reserve requirements is to increase an institution's cost of funds.

Numerous other regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board affect the business operations of Sovereign Bank. These inciude
regulations relating to equal credit opportunity, electronic fund transfers, collection of checks, truth in lending, truth in savings, availability of
funds, home mortgage disclosure, and margin credit, ‘ ‘

Federal Home Loan Bank System. The FHLB System was created in 1932 and consists of twelve regional FHLBs. The FHLBs are
federally chartered but privately owned institutions created by Congress. The Federal Housing Finance Board (“Finance Board™) is an
agency of the federal government and is generally responsible for regulating th(é FHLB System. Each FHLB is owned by its member
institutions. The primary purpose of the FHLBs is to provide funding to their members for making housing loans as wel! as for affordable
housing and community development lending. FHLBs are generally able to make advances to their member institutions at interest rates
that are lower than could otherwise be obtained by such institutions.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA") fequires financial institutions regulated by the federal
financial supervisory agencies to ascertain and help meet the credit needs of their delineated communities, including low to moderate-
income neighborhoods within those communities, while maintaining safe and sound banking practices. A bank’s performance under the
CRA is important in determining whether the bank may obtain approval for, or utilize streamlined procedures in, certain applications for
acquisitions or to engage in new activities. Sovereign Bank's lending activities are in compliance with applicable CRA requirements, and
Sovereign Bank's current CRA rating is “outstanding,” the highest category. ‘

Other Legislation. The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (“FACTA") was signed into law on December 4, 2003. This law
extends the previously existing Fair Credit Reporting Act. New provisions added by FACTA address the growing problem of identity theft.
Consumers will be able {o initiate a fraud alert when they are victims of identity theft, and credit reporting agencies will have additional
duties. Consumers wiil also be enfitled to obtain free credit reports, and will be granted certain additional privacy rights. The Check

21 Act was also enacted in late 2003. This Act affects the way checks"are processed in the banking system, allowing payments fo be
processed electronically rather than as traditional paper checks.

On July 30, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“Sarbanes-Oxley”) was enacted. This act is not a banking taw, but appiies to ali public
companies, including Sovereign. Sarbanes-Oxley is designed to restore investor confidence by assuring proper corporate governance is
applied to ali publicly traded companies. Sarbanes-Oxley adopts new standards of corporate governance and imposes new requirements
on the board and management of public companies. The chief executive officer and chief financial officer of a public company must
now certify the financial statements of the company.

New definitions of “independent directors” have been adopted, and new responsibilities and duties have been established for the audit
and other committees of the board of directors. In addition, the reporting requirements for insider stock transactions have been revised,
requiring most transactions to be reported within two business days. While complying with Sarbanes-Oxley has resulted in increased
costs to Sovereign, the additional costs did not have a materia effg’ect on results of operations.

in addition to the legislation discussed above, Congrass is often considering some financial industry legislation, and the federal banking
agencies routinely propose new regulations. New legislation and regulation may include dramatic changes to the federal deposit

insurance system. Sovereign cannot predict how any new legislation, or new rules adopted by the federal banking agencies, may affect
its business in the future.

!

Corporate Information. All reports filed electronically by Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), including the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and currént reports on Form 8-K, as well as any
amendments to those reports, are accessible at no cost on the Corporation’s Web site at www.sovereignbank.com as soon as reasonably
practicable after such material is electronically filed with or fumished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, These filings are also
accessible on the SEC's Web site at www.sec.gov. Also, copies of the company's annual report will be made available, free of charge,

upon written request.
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ltem 1A ~ Risk Factors

The following list describes several risk factors that are applicable {0 our company.
An Economic Downturn May Lead to a Deterioration in Our Asset Quélity and Adversely Affect Our Earnings and Cash Flow.

QOur business faces various material risks, including credit risk and the risk that the demand for our products will decrease. In a recession or
other economic downturm, these risks would probably become more acute. In an economic downturn, our credit risk and litigation expense
will increase. Also, decreases in consumer confidence, real estate values, and interest rates, usually associated with a downturn, could
combine to make the types of loans we originate less profitable.

The Preparation of Sovereign’s Financial Statements Requires the Use of Estimates That May Vary From Actual Results,

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America requires management to make significant estimates that affect the financial statements. One example of a significant critical
estimate Is the leve! of allowance for credit losses. Due to the inherenent nature of this estimate, Sovereign cannot provide absolute
assurance that it will not significantly increase the altowance for credit losses and/or sustain credit losses that are significantly higher than the
provided allowance.

Changing Interest Rates May Adversely Affect Our Profits.

To be profitable, we must earn more money from interest on loans and investments and fee-based revenues than the interest we pay to our
depositors and creditors and the amount necessary to cover the cost of our operations. Rising interest rates may hurt our income because
they may reduce the demand for loans and the value of our investment securities and our loans. If interest rates decrease, our net interest
income could be negatively affected if interest eamed on interest-eaming assets, such as loans, morigage-related securities, and other
investment securities, decreases more guickly than interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. This would
cause our net interést income to go down. In addition, if interest rates decline, our foans and investments may prepay earliér than expected,
which may also lower our income. Interest rates do and will continue to fluctuate, and we cannat predict future Federal Reserve Board
actions or other factors that will cause rates to change. If the yield curve steepens or flattens, it could impact our net interest income in ways
management may nét accurately predict. ‘

We Experience intense Competition for Loans and Deposits.

Competition among financial institutions in attracting and retaining deposits and making loans is intense. Qur most direct competition for
deposits has come from commercial banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions doing business in our areas of operation, as
well as from nonbanking sources, such as money market mutual funds and corporate and govemment debt securities. Competition for loans
comes primarily from commercial banks, savings and loan associations, consumer finance companies, insurance companies and ather
institutional lenders. We.compete primatily on the basis of products offered, customer service and price. A number of institutions with which
we compete have greater assets and capital than we do and, thus, may have a competitive advantage.

We Are Subject to Substantial Regutation Which Could Adversely Affect Our Business and Operations.

As a financial institution, we are subject to extensive regulation, which materially affects our business. Statutes, regulations and policies

to which we and Soveraign Bank are subject may be changed at any time, and the interpretation and the application of those laws and
regulations by our regulators is also subject to change. There can be no assurance that future changes in regulations or in their interpretation
or application will not adversely affect us.

The regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over banks and thrifts have under consideration a number of possible rulemaking initiatives which
impact on bank and thrift and bank and thrift holding company capital requirements, Adoption of one or more of these proposed rules could
have an adverse effect on us and Sovereign Bank.

Existing federal regulations timit our ability to increase our commercial loans. We are required to maintain €5% of our assets in residential
mortgage loans and certain other loans, including small business loans. We also cannot have more than 10% of our assets in large
commercial loans that are not secured by real estate, more than 10% in small business loans, or more than four times our capital in
commercial real estate loans, Aismall business loan is one with an original loan amount of less than $2 million, and a large commercial
ioan is a loan with an original loan amoint of $2 million or more. Because commercial loans generally yield interest income which is higher
than residential mortgage loans, the amount of our interest income could be adversely affected by these provisions. If the growth of our
commercial loan portfolio continues at its current rate, we may exceed these regulatory timitations, requiring us to reduce the size of our
commercial foan portfolio or take other actions which may adversely affect our net incomg.



Changes in Accounting Standards could Impact Reported Earnings.

The accounting standard setters, including the FASB, SEC and cther regulatory bodies, periodically change the financial accounting and
reporting standards that govern the preparation of Sovereign’s consolidated financial statements. These changes ¢an be hard to predict and
can materially impact how it records and reports its financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, Sovereign could be required
to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in the restatement of prior period financial statements.

Difficutties in Combining the Operations of Acquired Entities with Sovereign's Gwn Operations May Prevent Sovereign from

Achieving the Expected Benefits from its Acquisitions. :

Sovereign may niot be able to to achieve fully the strategic and operating efficiencies fin an acquisition. Inherent uncertainities exist in the
operations of an acquired entity. In addition, the market conditions where Sovereign and its potential acquisition targets operate are highly
competitive, Although Sovereign has a strong track record in integrating acquired entities, it is possible that SO\)ereign may lose customers or
the customers of acquired entities as a result of an acquisition. Sovereign may also lose key personnel, either from the acquired entity or from
itself, as a result of an acquisition. These factors could contribute to Sovereign not achieving the expected benefits from its acquisitions within
desired time frames, if at all.

ltem 1B — Unresolved Staff Comments |

None. !

ltem 2 — Properties |

Sovereign Bank utilizes 743 buildings that occupy a totat of 5.8 miftion square feet, including 202 owned properties with 1.6 miliion
square feet and 541 leased properties with 4.2 miliion square feet. Seven major buildings contain 1.2 million square feet, which serve
as the headguarters or house significant operational and administrative functions:

]
H

Columbia Park Operations Center - Dorchester, Massachusetts ‘
East Providence Call Center and Operations and Loan Processing Center — East Providence, Rhode island

75 State Street Regional Headquarters for Sovereign Bank of New England ~ Boston, Massachusetts

405 Penn Street Sovereign Plaza Call Center and Operations and Loan Processing Center — Reading, Pennsylvania
1130 Berkshire Boulevard Bank Headquarters and Administrative Offices ~ Wyomissing, Pennsylvania

1125 Berkshire Boulevard Operations Center — Wyomissing, Pen’nsylvania

601 Penn Street Loan Pracessing Center — Reading, Pennsylvanja

The majority of the properties of Sovereign outlined above are utilized by the retail banking operations in the consumer bank segment and for
general corporate purposes in the other segment. '

ltem 3 — Legal Proceedings

in December 2005, Sovereign commenced litigation in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against
Relational tnvestors, LLC (“Relational”), seeking a declaratory judgment that, under Sovereign's articles of incorporation and the Pennsylvania
Business Corporation Law, directors of Sovereign may only be removed from office by shareholders for cause. In January 2006, this action
-was combined with certain outstanding claims by Relational, including claims seeking a declaratory judgment that shareholders can remove
directors without cause, claims relating to the issuance of shares of Sovereign common stock in the pending transaction with Santander
and claims refating to the timing of Sovereign's 2006 annual meeting of shareholders. There is additional outstanding class action and
derivative litigation which relates to Sovereign's pending transactions with Santander and Independence Community Bank Corp. Sovereign’s
management believes that all of these claims are without merit and intends to defend against the claims vigorously in court. Sovereign
incurred $5.8 million of costs in the fourth quarter of 2005 to defend itself against the claims and the actions of Relational, and anticipates
incurring additional costs in 2006. On March 2, 2006, the judge in the District Court action in the Southern District of New York issued
a ruling that Sovereign's directors may be removed without cause; Sovereign disagrees with the District Court's ruling under Pennsyivania
law and Sovereign's articles of incorporation, and intends to seek prompt review of the ruling by the United States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit. Sovereign cannot predict with reasonable certainty the“ eventual outcome of such appeal or, if the ruling is upheld, the extent
of the adverse impact of the ruling on Sovereign's financial condition ar results of operations.

With the exception of the matters described above, Sovereign is not involved in any pending material legal proceeding other than routine
litigation occurring in the ordinary course of business. Sovereign does not expect that any amounts that it may be required to pay in
- el have @ material adverse effect én its financial position.

r




ltem 4 — Submission of Matters to a Yols of Security Holders

None.

ltem 48— Executive Officers of the Registrant

Certain information, including principal occupation during the past five years, relating to the principal executive officers of Sovereign, as of
February 28,.2006, is sef forth below:

Jay S. Sidhu - Age 54. Mr. Sidhu became Chairman of Sovereign and Sovereign Bank in April 2002. He has been a.director of Sovereign
since September 1988 and a director of Sovereign Bank since 1987, In addition, M. Sidhu has served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Sovereign since November 1989. Prior thereto, Mr. Sidhu served as Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of Sovereign. Mr. Sidhu
is also Presideht and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign Bank. Prior to becomning President and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign Bank in
March 1989, Mr. Sidhu served as Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank.

Lawrence M. Thompson, Jr. ~ Age 53. Mr. Thompsoen serves as Vice Chairman and Chief Administrative Officer of Sovereign. Mr. Thompson
was appointed Vice Chairman in September 2002. Also, Mr. Thompson was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign
Bank's Consumer Banking Division in November 2000. Mr. Thompson was hired as Sovereign Bank's General Counsel and Secretary in
1984. He was promoted fo Vice President in 1985. In April 1986, he became Sovereign Bank's Senior Vice President for tegal affairs and
administration. In January 1930, he became Group Executive Officer — Lending and in June 1395, he became Chief Administrative Officer
of Sovereign and Sovereign Bank. Mr. Thompson became Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank in November 1996.

Joseph P Campanelli — Age 49. Mr. Campanelli was appointed Vice Chairman of Soveraign in September 2002, Mr. Campanelli

was named President and Chief Executive Officer of SBNE effective January 1, 2005. in May 2002, Mr. Campanelli was appointed
President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank's Commercial Markets Group. Prior to becoming President and Chief Operating
Officer of Sovereign Bank’s Commercial and Business Banking Division in May 2001, Mr. Campaneili was appointed President and
Chief Operating Officer of SBNE in January 2000. Mr. Campanelli joined Sovereign as Executive Vice President in Segtember 1997
through Sovereign's acquisition of the Fleet Automotive Finance Division and assumed the role of Managing Director of Sovereign's
Automotive Finance Division and the Asset Based Lending Group.

Mark R. McCollom - Age 42. In May 2005, Mr. McCollom was promoted to Chief Financial Officer of Sovereign Bancorp after the retirement
of the previous company’s Chief Financiat Officer. Mr. McCollom has been with Sovereign since 1996 holding several positians within the
company including Managing Director of Corporate Planning, Chief Financial Officer of Sovereign Bank and Chief Accounting Officer.

James Lynch - Age 56, Mr. Lynch was appointed Vice Chairman of Sovereign in February 2006. Mr. Lynch joined Sovereignri as Chairman
and CEO of Sovereign Bank Mid-Atlantic Division in September 2002. Prior to Sovereign, in 1996, Mr. Lynch was President and CEO of
Prime Bancorp, Inc. and Prime Bank. He also became Chairman of Prime Bancorp, Inc. in 1997 until it merged with Summit Bancorp,
fnc. in 1999. At Summit, Mr. Lynch served as Senior Executive Vice President of Surmmit Bancorp and the Chairman and CEQ of Summit
Bank — Pennsylvania until it merged with FleetBoston Financial in March 2001, where he acted as the President and CEO of Fleet Bank
~— Pennsylvania until joining Sovereign.
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ltem 3 — Marlet for the Registrant’s Common Equity, R@Gaﬁa@ Stockholder Matters
am@] Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Sovereign's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol "SOV.” At February 28, 20086, the
total number of record holders of Sovereign's common stock was 22,703. “'
Market and dividend information for Sovereign's common stock appear in item 7 Qf this Form 10-K.

Sovereign expects to continue its policy of paying regular cash dividends, although there is no assurance as to future dividends
because they depend on future earnings, capital requirements, and financial condition. In addition, for certain limitations on the abifity
of Sovereign Bank to pay dividends to Sovereign, see Part i, item 1, “Business Supervision and Regulation - Regulatory Capital
Requirements” and Note 15 at ltem 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

The table betow summarizes the Company's repurchases of common equity securitiés during the quarter ended December 31, 2005:

Total Average Price Total Number of Shares “ ‘Maximum Number of Shares that
Period Number of Shares Paid Pger Share Purchased as Part of Publicly may be Purchased Under to the
Purchased Announced Plans or Programs® Plans or Programs
10/1/05 through 10/31/05 1,000,663 188 1000000 J 19500000
117105 through 11/30/05 1,831 $23.04 Not Applicable 19,500,000
12/1/05 through 12/31/05 200 $n Not Applicable ‘ 19,500,000

(1) Sovereign has three stock repurchase programs in effect that would allow the Company to repuschase up to 40.5 million shares of common stock as of December 31, 2005. Twenty one mitlion

shares have been purchased under these repurchase programs as of December 31, 2005. Alt of Sovereign's stock repurchase pragrams have no prescribed time fimit in which to fill the authorized
repurchase amount.

Sovereign does occasionally repurchase its common securities on the open market to fund equity compensation plans for its employees.
Additionally, Sovereign repurchases its shares from employees who surrender a partion of their shares received through the Company’s
stock based compensation plans to cover their associated minimum income tax Habilities, Sovereign repurchased 2,694 shares outside
of publicly announced repurchase programs during the fourth quarter of 2005.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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ltem 6 — Selected Financigl Data
Selected Financial Data At Or For The Year

ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Balance Sheet Data
Total assats @ $ 63678726 § 54489026 - § 43517433 % 39600674 § 35484352
Loans, net of allowance © 43,384,248 36,240,076 25,832,869 221805056 20,144 431
Investment securities 12,557,328 11,546,877 12,618,971 11,366,077 10,465,116
Deposits and other customer accounts 31,871,706 32,555,518 27,344,008 26,851,089 23,348 004
Borrowings and other debt obligations 18,720,897 16,140,128 12,197,603 8,829 289 8,939,770
Company-obligated mandatorily redesmable preferred securities of ;
subsidiary trusts holding junior subordinated debentures of Sovereign 205,660 203,906 202,136 586,957 604,528
and minority interest-preferred securities of subsidiaries?
Stockholders' equity $ 5810693 $ 4988372 & 3260406 § 2764318 § 2202481
Summary Statement of Operations

- Total interest income $ 2918718 ¢ 2224144 0§ 1929751 § 2,059,540 § 2222475
Total interest expense® 1,330,498 819,327 724,123 899,924 1,168,193
Net interest income 1,588,281 1,404 817 1,205,628 1,159,616 1,054,282
Provision for oan losses 90,000 127000 161,857 146,500 97,100
Net interest income after provision for loan fosses 1,498,281 1277 817 1,043,671 1,013,116 957,182
Total non-interest income 646,472 482,298 521,576 430,185 414,403
General and administrative expanses 1,089,204 942,661 852,364 813,784 777,285
Other expenses® 163,429 236,232 157,984 162,962 454,430
ncome/tioss) betore income taxes 892,120 581,222 554,899 466,555 139,870
Income tax provision (benefit) 215,960 127670 153,048 124,57ﬁ 23,049
Net Income/(loss)® @ $ 616180 § 453552 § 401851 $ 341,885 116,821
Share Data
Common shares outstanding at end of period {in thousands) 358,018 345,775 293,111 261,624 247 470
Basic earnings/{loss) per share®® $ 18 3 141§ 145 3§ 132 % A48
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share™ ® $ 17 ¢ 136 % 138 % 123 ¢ 45
Common share price at end of period $ 2162 § 2255 % 275§ 14.05 " $ 12.24
Dividends declared per common share $ 1§ 11508 08 10 8 10
Selected Financial Ratios,
Book value per common shére‘ﬁ’ $ 1621 § 1441 1z $ 057 % 890
Dividend payout ratio® ' 9.02% 821% 6.99% 1.02% 21.10%
Return on average assets® ‘ 1.11% 80% 97% 9% . 3%
Return on average equity® 11.92% 10.74% 1341% 13.50% 5.51%
Average equity to average asé§t3<9’ 9.34% 8.36% 1.24% 6.71% 6.15%

(1) Effective December 31, 2005, Sovereign reclassified its reserve for unfunded commitments to other liabilities from the aflowance for loan loss. Prior period results have been reclassified to conform
to the current presentation.

(2) Effective July 1, 2003, manzgement elected to change its accounting policy to treat its Trust Preferred Security obligations as labflities and the associated dividends on the trust preferred securities
as interest expense, Previously, this cost was included in Other Expenses since the obligations were classified on the consolidated balance sheet as Company — Obfigated Mandatorily Redesmable
Preferred Securities. Periods prior to July 1, 2003 have not been reclassified to conform to the new presentation (see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion).

{3) Net income includes after-tax merger-ralated charges, deht extinguishment charges and other charges of $15 million ($0.04 per dituted share) in 2005, $98 million ($0.28 per diluted share) in
2004, $19 miltion ($0.07 per dituted share) in 2003, $14 mitfion ($0.05 per diluted share} in 2002 and $170 million ($0.66 per diluted share) in 2001.

(4) Effective January 1, 2002, Sovereign adopted the fair value expense provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) Nos. 123, "Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,”
and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion regarding the impact to 2002 reported resutts of the change
in accounting refated ta these profouricements.

{5) Book value per share is cafculated using stockholders’ equity divided by common shares outstanding at end of period.

(6) Dividend payout ratio is calculated 'y dividing total dividends paid by net incame for the period.

(7} Return on average assets is calcufated by dividing net income by the average balance of total assets for the year.

(8) Retum on average equity is calculated by dividing net income by the average balance of stockholders' equity for the year.

(9) Average equity to average assets is calculated by dividing the average batance of stockholders' equity for the year by the average balance of totat assets for the year.
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ltem 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Resuts of Operations (“MD&A™) ‘

Executive Summary |

|
Sovereign, is a $64 billion financial institution with community banking offices, operations and team members located principally in
Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, New Jersey, Connecticut, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island, and Maryiand. Sovereign gathers
substantially all of its deposits in these market areas. We use these deposits, as well as other financing sources, to fund our loan and
investment portfolios. We earn interest income on our loans and investments. In addition, we generate non-interest income from a number of
sources including, deposit and loan services, sales of residential loans and investment securities, capital markets products and bank owned life
insurance. Our principal non-interest expenses include employee compensation and benefits, occupancy and facility related costs, technology
and other administrative expenses. Qur volumes, and accordingly our financial resuits, are affected by the economic environment, including
interest rates, consumer and business confidence and spending, as well as the competitive conditions within our franchise.

We are one of the top 20 largest banking institutions in the United States. Our customers select Sovereign for banking and other financial
services based on our ability to assist customers by understanding and anticipating their individual financial needs and providing
customized solutions. Our major strengths include: strong franchise value in terrﬁs of market share and demographics; a stable, low cost
core deposit base; diversified loan portfolio and products; a strong service culture and the ability to cross sell multiple product lines to our
customers resulting in higher fee based revenues; and the ability to internally generate equity through eamings. Our weaknesses have
included return on assets and loan yields being lower than certain of our peers, and being unable to repurchase any substantial amounts
of stock from 1999 through 2004 due to lower than average capital ratios in those time periods. Additionally, we do not possess desired
market share in some of our geographic micro-markets.

Management has implemented strategies to address these weaknesses. With respect to our capital position which has prevented us from
buying back any significant amount of stock for the past several years, we have strengthened our ratios significantly over the last several
years through the generation of earnings. Sovereign’s capital ratios meet ali of tHe quantative thresholds necessary to be classified as well
capitalized under regulatory guidelines. As a result of these earnings and increased equity levels and capital availability, Sovereign was able
fo repurchase twenty one million shares of common stock through December 31, 2005 under previously énnounced stock repurchase
programs. Additionally, we have been able to increase our cash dividend payout ratios. Management will continue to evaluate the optimum
allocation of capital and our future allocations of capital depend in farge part to the future interest rate environment.

With regards to our return on assets and loan yields being lower than our peers, in the first quarter of 2005, we realigned our reporting
structure with our strategy of combining the best of a large bank with the best of a small community bank. We divided our footprint into
smaller community banking groups in both our large markets — New England and Mid-Atlantic. Within each market, we have created six
local markets, each with a Market CEQO responsible for servicing the needs of their market while meeting profitability and revenue goals
focused on achieving 1) higher growth in loans, deposits, and fees through local decision making and higher quality service, 2) improving
margins and returns on assets, 3) increasing fee income, 4) increasing the number of services being sold to or used by a customer and 5)
expanding Sovereign's presence in the marketplace. !

To strengthen our position in certain micro-markets, we continue to investigate strategic acquisitions. In February 2004, we completed
the acquisition of First Essex Bancorp, Inc. (“First Essex™). On July 23, 2004, we completed the acquisition of Seacoast Financial Services
Corporation (“Seacoast”) and on January 21, 2005, we completed the acquisition of Waypoint Financial Corp. (“Waypoint”). On October
24, 2005, Sovereign entered into a definitive agreement to purchase Independence Community Bank Corp. (“Independence”} a $19.1
billion financial institution that we expect will fortify our presence in the Northeast and strengthen our franchise value. The majority of the
proceeds to finance this acquisition will be received from an equity investment that Santander wili make in Sovereign common stock. See
Note 28 for further details. Sovereign also may develop and construct new community banking offices to strengthen our market position.
The ability to grow through acquisition is significantly dependent upon our capital levels, stock price and the merger and acquisition
environment for banking institutions.

Our critical success factors include management of interest rate risk and credit risk, superior service delivery, and productivity and
expense control. : :

)




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

We experienced a successful year in 2005 as the Company generated net income of $676.2 million compared with $453.6 million

in 2004. Our net interest margin was under continued pressure in 2005 as a result of the interest rate environment. Iri 2005, our net
interest margin declined to 3.09% from 3.24% in 2004 due largely to the flattening interest rate yield curve and the impact of slower than
anticipated core:deposit growth rates. The average interest rate spread between the 3-month Treasury bill and the 10-year Treasury note
compressed from 202 basis points in 2004 to 33 in 2005 illustrating the relative pressure between shorter term and longer-term funding
costs and loan asset and investment security reinvestment opportunities. Despite these challenges, Sovereign's net interest income increased
$183.5 million to $1.59 billion in 2005. The increase in net interest income was driven by the increase in earning assets that were

funded, in part, with low cost core deposits. Fee income reached recard levels in 2005 as a result of the growth of ourifranchise, as well as
expanded product offerings and significant grthh in mortgage banking revenue. Our brovision for credit losses decreased due primarily to
continued low charge-off levels in our loan portfolio. Our operating expense levels remained within management’s target levels in 2005, We
experienced an improvement in our efficiency ratio (defined as all general and administrative expenses as a percentage:of net interest income
and total fees and other income) from 50.33% in 2004 to 49.00% in 2005. See “Results of Operations for December 31, 2005 and
2004” in this MD&A for more details as to the factors, which affect year-over-year performénce.

Recent Industry Consolidation in Our Geographic Footprint

The Banking industry has experienced significant consolidation in recent years. Consolidation may affect the markets inlwhich Sovereign
operates as newor restructured competitors integrate acquired businesses, adopt new business practices or change praduct pricing as they
attempt to maintain or grow market share. Recent merger activity involving national, regional and community banks and specialty finance
companies in the northeastern United States, including acquisitions by Sovereign, have affected the competitive landscape in the markets we
serve. As noted above, Sovereign recently completed the acquisitions of First Essex, Seacoast and Waypoint and has a pending acquisition
with Independence. We believe these acquisitions have strengthened our franchise. Management continually monitors the environment in
which it operates to assess the impact of the industry consolidation on Sovereign, as well as the practices and strategies of our competition,
including loan and deposit pricing, customer expectations and the capital markets,

Current [nterest Rate Environment

Net interest incomne represents approximately seventy to seventy-five percent of the Company’s revenues. Accordingly, the interest rate
environment has a substantial impact on Sovereign's earnings. Sovereign currently hasa neutraf risk rate position. As previously discussed,
the impact of the flattening yield curve that was experienced in 2005 has negatively impacted our margin since the spréad between our
longer-term assets and our shorter-term liabilities has contracted. We would expect to benefit from any substantial sustdined increase in long-
term interest rates if continued growth in low cost core deposits occurs. See our discussion of Asset and Liability Management practices in a
later section of this MD&A, including the estimated impact of changes in interest rates an Sovereign's net interest income.

Credit Risk Environment

The credit quality of our loan portfolio has a significant impact on our operating resuits. We have experienced positive trends in certain
key credit quality performance indicators over the past several quarters which has resulted in lower provisions for credit losses in
2005 compared to prior pericds. In addition to our credit risk mitigation programs, the improvement is due, in part, to the economic
conditions in ourigeographic footprint. We believe the credit risk with respect to our investment portfolio is low. Anysignificant change
in the credit quality of our loan portfolio would have a significant effect on our financial position and results of operations. While credit
quality metrics have remained strong throughout 2005, these metrics are at historical lows and as a result Sovereigh does not expect
this type of credit performance to continue in future periods.




Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
(DoMars in thousands, except per share data) “ ‘ “

fNet interest income $ 1",588,28,1 $ 1,404,817
Provision for foan losses ’J“ 90,060 127,006
Total non-inferest income ,” 646,4%2 482,298
General and administrative expenses ’ 1,089,264 942,661
Other expenses V 163,329 236,232
Netincome h § 67860 $ as3E
Basic earnings per share lh $ 186 $ 141

Rad

Diluted earnings per share 7 $ 1.36

The major factors affecting comparison of earnings and diluted eamings per share between 2005 and 2004 were:

= The growth in net interest income was driven by the increase inl the balance of earning assets, which were primarily
related to business acquisitions and organic balance sheet growth, offset by a decline in net interest margin to 3.09% in
2005 from 3.24% in 2004. The decline in margin was due to the flattening yield curve, which has contracted the spread
between our longer-term assets and shorter-term liabilities.

73 The debt extinguishment charges of $63.8 million in 2004. We felt it was prudent to redeem these high cost borrowings,
even in light of the significant charges we incurred, since the borrowings could be replaced with lower cost borrowings
which would improve net interest margin and net income in subsequent periods.

= Included in net gains on investment securities for 2004 is an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $32.1 million on
FNMA and FHLMC Preferred Stock.

= The merger-refated charges of $46.4 million incurred in 2004 related to the First Essex and Seacoast acquisitions,
compared to net after tax merger related charges of $12.7 milion incurred in 2005,

- The decrease in provision for credit losses in 2005 of $37 million resulting from the improving credit quality of our loan
portfolio in 2005 compared to 2004, as average charge-off rates declined to 0.20% in 2005 compared with 0.36% in 2004,

= The continued growth in fee income in consumer and commercial banking due to foan and deposit growth.

.2 The increase in mortgage banking revenues in 2005 of $66.7 million due primarily to increased sales of residential and
home equity loans. ‘

= Increases in general and administrative expenses to supporting the growth in Sovereign's franchise and continued
investment in human resources and systems and increases related to business acquisitions.
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Net nterest Income. Nat interest income for 2005 was $1.59 billion comparad to $1.40 billion for 2004, or an'increase of 13%.
The increase ininet interest income in 2005 was due to an increase in average interest-earning assets of $8.6 bilfion, which was related
to the full year impact of our Seacoast acquisition and to a lesser extent, the First Essex acquisition, the 2005 Waypoint acquisition and
organic loan growth primarily in the commercial and consumer secured by real estate portiolios. The increase in our assets was funded
principatly by the increase in core deposits, repurchase agreements and other borrowings. Net interest margin (net interest income on

a tax equivalent basis divided by average interest-earning assets) was 3.09% for 2005 compared to 3.24% for 2004. The decline in
margin was driven by the flattening yield curve ekperienced in 2005 and 2004, which has contracted the spread between our longer-
term assets and shorter-term liabilities.

Interest on investment securities was $567 million for 2005 compared to $654 _mimon for 2004. The decrease in interest income was due
to a decrease in the average balance of investment securities from $14.1 billion in 2004 to $12.1 bilfion in 2005, partially offset by higher
yields in 2005 which averaged 5.12% compared to 4.91%.

Interest on loans was $2.34 billion and $1.57 billion for 2005 and 2004, respectively. The average balance of loans was $41.5 billion
with an average yiel& of 5.66% for 2005 compared to an average balance of $30.9 billion with an average yield of 5.08% for 2004. The
increase in average yields year to year is due to the increase of market rates experienced during 2005 due to increases in interest rates by
the Federal Reserve Bank. The overall growth in foans from $36.6 billion at December 31, 2004 to $43.8 billion at December 31, 2005
resulted from the Waypoint acquisition and from origination activity in commerciat loans and purchases of bulk and corresponident foans,
principally in the consumer and mortgage loan portfolios. At December 31, 2005, approximately 17% of our loan portfolio regrices monthly
or more frequently.

Interest on total deposits was $625 million for 2005 compared to $303 million for 2004. The average balance of deposits was $31.2
billion with an average cost of 2.0% for 2005 compared to an average batance of $25.3 billion with an average cost of 1.20%for 2004,
Additionatly, the average balance of non-interest bearing deposits increased to $5.3 billion in 2005 from $4.7 billion in 2004. The increase
in the average balance was due to the full year impact of our Seacoast acquisition and to a fesser extent, the First Essex acquisition, the
2005 Waypoint acquisition and an increase in time deposit funding which has recently become a more favorable funding alternative to
shorter-term borrowings due to rising market rates, The increase in the average cost of deposits in 2005 is the result of increases in short-
term interest rates which were partially passed on to our customers.

Interest on borrowings and other debt obligations was $706 milfion for 2005 compared to $516 million for 2004. The average balance of
totat borrowings and other debt obligations was $17.7 billion with an average cost of 3.99% for 2005 compared to an average balance of
$15.6 billion with an average cost of 3.31% for 2004. The increase in the cost of funds on borrowings and other debt obligations resulted
principatly from the higher rates on short-term sources of funding including repurchase agreements and overnight FHLB advances due to an
increase in short-term interest rates.




Table 1: Net Interest Margin

Table 1 presents a summary on a tax equivalent basis of Sovereign's average ba!énces, the yields earned orn average assets and the cost of
average liabifities for the years indicated (in thousands): .

0

2005 2004 o 2003
rage i} rage Yield Average Yield
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, :;;:Cge Interest 2:11/ g;fa:ge , Interest Ratg/ §a!an§e Interest Rate/
Interest-earning assets: !
interest-eaming deposits $ 155672 $ 5717 367% § 135338 / $ 2153 159% % . 13582 $ 2,141 1.58%
Investment securities®” . , ,
Available for sale 7,404,848 385,158  5.20 10,320,377 521,084 5.0 [ 11,060,525 601,445 5.44
Held to maturity 4,062,700 217889 536 3,309,530 16745  9.06 481260 27,190 5.58
Other 623,005 18058 280 471,010 8783 184 342,301 1216 211
Loans: . “
Commercial 15,904,425 971626 611 12,530,293 613,541 450 . 10,619491 530,968 5.00
Consumer:
Residential mortgages 10,588,935 567,690 5.6 6,215,557 328,625 ’5.29 I 4,520,506 266,808 590
fome sy tansand - yorersp _ saear 536 IS 30 SO SNSN0 WG 5Y

Total consumer loans secured

20,746,759 1112331 536 14,044‘;228 721075 513 . 10,238 875 573,669 560
by real estate L

Auto loans , 4,356,121 225358 5.7 3,891”,325 203472 523 3,147,480 191,049 6.07
Other 535,616 40468  7.56 46‘5‘908 34,107 ‘ 7.32 316,296 23,768 1.51
Total Consumer 25,638,496 1378158  5.38 18,401 461 956,654  5.21 13,702 651 788 487 5.75

Total loans 41,542,921 2,345,784 566 30,951,754 1,972,195 5.083 24,322,142 1,319,455 542
Mlowance fo foan foses (420879) — (590 — = G0 - —
Net loans@ 41,122,042 2,348,784 572 30,571,834 1,572, 195“ 5.15 24.019,807 1,319,455 5.50
Total interest-earning assets 53,368,267 2976606 558 44,814‘089 2,271,676 5.07 36,085,720 1,957 447 543
Non-interest-earning assets 1,363,707 — 5,"744,518 — 5,370,184 — —
Total assets § 60731974 § 2076606 _490% $ 50558607 § 2270676 _449% § 41415904 § 1957447 _473%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits: . ‘ :
NOW accounts $ 8732191 § 153277 176% ¢ “6,744,813 $ 56,5’03 9.84% $ 5986218 § 50,398  0.84%
Customer repurchase agreements 887,614 14238 213 ‘ 834,636 7462 089 989,401 7,153 0.72
Savings accounts 3,779,333 25347 067 3,498,539 18,417 p.55 3,108,844 22,403 072
Money market accounts 8,244,406 131,354 159 1633932 81’,992 17 6,285,992 68,458 1.09
Certificates of deposits 9,581,336 290,382 3.03 6,599,223 137,671 2.09 5,513,741 172,276 264
Total deposits 31,225,480 624590  2.00 25,311,143 303,045 1.20 22 836,196 320,689 140
Total barrowings and offer 1,007,167 705908 389 15501801 516282 331 10291088 403434 _ 392

debt obligations® - - .
Total interest-bearing liabilities 48,932,647 1330498 272 40,903,044 819,327 - 2.00 33,177,284 724,123 218

Non-interest-bearing DDA® 5,294,135 - - 4,698,584 o~ ;} — 4,087,652 — —
Non-interest-bearing liabilities 831,296 — 733,856 - _= 1,155,225 — —
Total Hiabilities 55,058,078 1330498 242 ‘ 46,335,484 ‘819,327” 177 38,420,161 724,123 1.89
Stockholders' equity 5,673,896 —_ — / 4,223,123 fans — 2,995,743 — —
Total liabiltes and o a10 107 . .
stockholders' equity $ 60,731,974 § 1330498 219 /o” $ 50558607 § : 819,32] 162% $ 41415904 $ 724123 1.62%
Netinterest spread 211% % 3.25%
Taxable equivalent interest o , ‘ ',’, o o
income/ne interest margin 1,646,108 3.09{: ’ 1,452,?49 3.24% 1,233,324 342%
Tax equivalt basis adjustment @em 2,530 (27.696)
Netntrest income § 1588281 51404818 § 1205628

Ratio of interest-earmning assets to :

interest-bearing fiabilities ===1£3L= ===1='=1£x= 1.0%

(1) The average bafance of our non-taxable investment securities for the year-ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $1.5 billion, $850 milfion and $529 milfion, respectively. Tax
~~hualant adiustments to interest on investment securities available for sale for the years endad December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $40.6 milfion, $24.0 miltion and $15.4 miftion,
+ -+inetments to foans for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, were $6.9 mitlion, $3.7 million and $4.9 million, respectively. Tax equivalent interest
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(2) Amortization of premiums and discounts on purchased Joans and amortization of deferred loan fees, net of origination costs, of $136.3 miftion, $61.2 million and $25.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2004, and 2003, respectively, are included in interest incorme. Average loan balances include non-accrual ioans and loans held for safe. .

(3) Effective July 1, 2003, management elected to change its accounting policy to treat its Trust Preferred Security obligations as liabilities and the associated dividends on the trust preferred securities
as fnterest expense. Previously, this cost was recorded in other expenses since the obligation was classified on the consolidated balance sheet as Company - Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable
Preferred Securities. See Note 12 to the Cansolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. Periods priar to July 1, 2003, have not been reclassified to conform with the new presentation

4) In the third quarter of 20085, Sovereign reclassified its non-interest earning deposits to be shown as a separate companent of other liabitities to be consistent with industry practice. This change
had no impact to Sovereign's historically reported net interest margin.

(%) Represents the differehce between the yield on total eaming assets and the cost of total funding liabifities.

Table 2: Volume/Rate Analysis

Table 2 presents, on a tax equivalent basis, the relative contribution of changes in volumes and changes in rates to ¢hanges in net
interest income for the periods indicated. The change in interest not sclely due to changes in volume or rate has been aliocated in
proportion to the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DﬁCEMBER 31, 2005 V5. 2004 INCREASE/(DECREASE) 2004 V5. 2003 INCREASE/(DEE?RFASE)
Interest-garning assets: Volume Rate Total - Volume Rate Total
Interest-sarning deposits $ 8§ 3198 § 3564 3§ @ $ 0 $ 12
Investment securities availaﬁ(e for sale {151,220 16,294 (135,926) (38,856 (41,508) (80,361)
Investment securities held to‘maturity 39,918 10,518 50,434 143,034 (2,769) 140,265
Investment securities other 3,221 6,042 9,269 2,569 (936) 1,573
Net loans™ ’ 588,747 188,842 777,589 340,610 818700 __ 252,740
Total interest-earning assets ‘ 704,930 . 314,229

Interest-bearing liabifities: . ;
Deposits 83,082 238,463 321,545 31,395 (49,539) (17,644)

Borrowings 15,741 113,879 189,626 183,002 {70,154 112,848
Total interest-bearing liabifities '\ 511,171 ‘ 95,204
Net change in net inferest income $ j2zay § 0 (1284520 § 193758 ¢ 232452 % (1342n % 219,025

(1} includes non-accrual loans and loans held for sale.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for credit losses is based upon actual credit loss experience, growth or contraction of
specific segments of the loah portfolio, and the estimation of losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The provision for credit
losses for 2005 was $90 miflion compared to $127 mitlion for 2004. included in 2004 results was a $6 million provision recorded in
connection with the acquisition of First Essex to conform to Sovereign's reserving methodology. The lower provision in 2005 was driven
by continued favorable credit quality statistics in our toan portfolio, combined with a rediction in net foan charge-offs, which declined
from $110.3 million, or 0.36% of average loan outstandings in 2004, to $81.7 million, or 0.20% of average loan outstandings in
2005. The overall allowance for credit losses as a percentage of loans outstanding has declined from 1.12% in 2004 to 1.00% in
2005, This is reflective of the quality of the loan portfolios, improved credit risk identification, analysis, and foss estimation, as well

as residential loan growth where reserve requirements are generally lower than in commercial loan portfolios. As a resuit of continued
improved credit risk identification, analysis and loss estimation, certain class allowance factors, primarily commercial, were adjusted
during 2005 to more accurately project loss rates resulting in a reduction of the allowance for loan losses, Management regularly
evaluates the risk inherent in its loan portfolio and adjusts its allowance for loan losses as deemed necessary.

Sovereign’s net charge-offs for 2005 were $81.7 million and consisted of charge-offs of $137.0 million and recoveries of

$55.3 million. This compares t0:2004 net charge-offs of $110.3 million consisting of charge-offs of $153.2 million and recoveries
of $42.9 million. The decrease in charge-offs was driven by the performance of our commercial loan portfolios where net charge-offs
decreased from $64.7 million in 2004 to $27.8 mittion in 2005.

The ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans, including loans held for sale, was .20% for 2005, compared to .36% for 2004.
Commercial loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average commercial loans were .18% for 2005, compared to .52% for 2004.
The consumer toans secured by real estate net charge-off rate was .08% for 2005, compared to .05% for 2004, The consumer
loans not secured by real estate net charge-off rate was .75% for 2005 and .89% for 2004.




Table 3: Reconciliation of the Allowance for Loan Lbsses

Table 3 presents the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years indicated (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003 2602 2001
Allowarice for loan Iosses, beginning of period § 391,003 § 315790 § 288018 § 235,153 $ 24197
Atiowance acquired in acquisitions 28,778 64,105 — \ 14,877 —
Provision for loan losses (2) 89,501 121,361 160,585 ) 145,282 101,968
Allowance released in connection with dealer
floor plan securitization (8.010) - - - -
Charge-offs: ‘
Commercial 40,935 77499 101,597 85,931 46,214
Consumer secured by real estate 24,125 12,219 16,685 21,205 29,403
Consumer not secured by real estate 71,906 63,530 ; 47,106 ) 55,509 45,323
Totel charge-offs (1) 136,966 153,248 - 185388 162645 120,940
Recoveries: ) ‘
Commercial 13,100 12,825” 7,531 6,082 3,177
Consumer secured by real estate 1,085 5,395” 6,405 ’ 4,826 11,259
Consumer not secured by real estate 35,108 24.745 18,639 24,443 17,715
Totat recoveries 55,293 42‘96:5 32,575 ’ 35,351 32,151
Charge-offs, nef of recoveries 81,673 110,283 132,813 127,284 88,789
Aliowance for foan losses, end of period $ 419,599 $ 391,0ﬁ3 $ 315,790 $ 288018 $ 255,153
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments, '
beginning o period 17,7113 12,{04 10,732 8,514 14,382
Provision for unfunded lending commitments (2) 499 5,609 1,372 1,218 {4,868)
Reserve for ynfunded lending commitments, ‘
end of period (3) 18,212 17,"713 12,104 10,732 9,514
Total Aflowance for credit losses 431811 3 403,716 $ 327834 $ 298750 $ 264,667

. [

Net charge-offs to average loans A% 36% 55% ‘ .58% A2%

(1) The 2002 consumer secured by real estate charge-offs inciude $4.6 miffion of charge-offs incurred as part of accelerated dispositions of non-performing residential foans soid during the first and
fourth quarters of 2002, ,

(2) The provision for credit fosses on the consolidated statement of operations consists of the surm of the provision for loan losses and the provision for unfunded lending commitments.

(3) The reserve for unfunded commitments is classified on other fiabifities on the consolidated balance sheet.

See Note 1 for Sovereign's charge-off policy with respect to its various taan types.

Non-interest income. Total non-interest income was $646 million for 2005 compared to $482 million for 2004. Several factors
contributed to the increase as discussed below. :

Consumer banking fees were $287.4 million for 2005 compared to $242.6 million in 2004. This increase was primarily due to
increased loan and deposit fees which increased 50% and 10%, respe,{:tively, resulting from growth in average loan and deposit
balances which increased 34% and 23%, respectively. The Company continues to aggressively promote demand deposit products,
which, in exchange for favorable minimum balance requirements and convenience for the customer, generally produce higher fee
revenues than time deposit products.

Commercial banking fees were $161.1 million for 2005 compared to $123.8 million in 2004; This increase was due to growth in
both commercial lcans and expanded cash management capabilities and product offerings. Commercial banking loan fees increased
by $26.9 million to $81.8 million white commercial deposit fees decreased slightly by $1.0 million to $46.7 miltion, in 2005.
Included in commercial banking fees were gains of $9.4 million related to the 2005-1 dealer floor plan securitizations executed in
the third and fourth quarter of 2005. See Note 22 for further details.
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Morigage banking revenues were $89.3 million for 2005 compared to $22.5 million for 2004. The principal components of
mortgage banking revenues are: gains or losses from the sale or securitization of mortgage and home equity loans or mortgage-
backed securities that were related to loans originated or purchased and held by Sovereign; gains or losses on martgage banking
derivative and hedging transactions; servicing fees; amortization of mortgage servicing rights; and changes:in the valuation
allowance for recoveries or impairments related to mortgage servicing rights. The primary factor contributing to the increase in
mortgage banking revenues was increased loan sales resulting from high levels of origination and loan purchase activity, The table
below summarizes the components of net morigage banking revenues (in thousands):

Twelve-months ended December 31, 20085 2004
Recoveries/{impairments) to mortgage servicing rights $ 5344 % {1,792}
Mortgage servicing fees 21,517 18,411
Amortization of martgage servicing rights {17,578) (18,895)
Net (fosses) gains under SFAS 133 645 {2,020)
Sales of mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities 78,130 257,(805
Total § B8 § 22509

There were a number of transactions in 2005 that caused the increase of $52.9 million in gains on sales of mortgageitoans, mortgage
backed securities and home equity loans from the 2004 levels. Included in 2005 results is $2.9 billion of mortgage loans that were sold
in the three-month period ended June 30, 2005 where Sovereign recorded gains of $28.4 million. Additionally, in September 2005 and
December 2005, Sovereign sold $503 miftion and $838 million of home equity loans and recorded net gains of $13.1 milfion and $19.0
million, respectively. tncluded in mortgage banking revenue for 2005 is a $5.9 million mortgage servicing rights impainment reversal
primarily because of slower prepayment speed assumptions compared to a $1.8 million impairment charge in 2004. The most important
assumptions in the valuation of mortgage servicing rights are anticipated loan prepayment rates (CPR speed) and the positive spread we
receive an holding escrow related balances. Increases in prepayment speeds (which are generally driven by lower long term interest rates)
result in lower valuations of mortgage servicing rights, while lower prepayment speeds result in higher valuations. The estrow related
credit spread is the estimated reinvestment vield earned on the serviced loan escrow deposits. Increases in escrow related credit spreads
result in higher valuations of mortgage servicing rights whife lower spreads result in lower valuations. For each of these itams, Sovereign
must make assumptions based on future expectations. Al of the assumptions are based on standards that we believe would be utilized

by market participants in vafuing mortgage servicing rights and are consistently derived and/or benchmarked against indegendent public
sources. Additionally, an independent appraisal of the fair value of our mortgage servicing rights is abtained at least annually and is used by
management to evaluate the reasonableness of our discounted cash flow model.

Capital Markets revenues were $17.8 milfion in 2005 and $19.9 million in 2004. Capital markets revenues declined in 2005 compared to
2004 because of challenging market conditions in 2005 related to the low interest rate environment which reduced demand for our broker
dealer products and services.

Net gains an sales of investment securities were $11.7 milliion for 2005, compared to $14.2 miltion for 2004. Included in 2005 and 2004
results were impairment charges of $2.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, related to our retained interests in securitizations. See Note
22 in the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our retained interests in securitized assets.

in the fourth quarter of 2004, Sovereign determined that certain unrealized losses on perpetual preferred stock of FNMA and FHLMC was
gther-than-temporary in accordance with SFAS 115 “Accounting for Certain investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and the SEC's Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 59 “Accounting for Non-cutrent Marketable Equily Securities”, The Company’s assessment considered the duration
and severity of the unrealized loss, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuers, and the likelihood of the market value of
these instruments increasing to our initial cost basis within a reasonable period of time. Based on the anticipated interest rate énvironment
expected in the near term at the time and certain negative developments at these issuers, we concluded that the unrealized losses were
other-than-temporary and recorded an impairment charge of $32.1 miltion ($20.9 million after-tax or $0.06 per diluted share) to writedown
these investments to their fair values. No other than ternporary impairment changes were recorded in 2005 related to these investments
securities. See Note 6 for further discussion and analysis of our determination that the unrealized losses in the investment portfolio at
December 31, 2005 were considered temporary.



The reduction in gross gains on sales of investment securities in 2005 is a result of the increasing interest rate environment in 2005 which
reduced the amount of unrealized gains in our investment portfolio.

Miscellaneous income was $31.8 million in 2005 compared with $19.9 million in 2004. The 2005 results included $4.0 million of
premium income recognized on written call options related to mortgage—backed securities and $3.7 million of revenues from a benefit
consulting practice that was acquired in 2005. Also included in the 2005 results was a $1.9 million gain on the sale of a marketing
trademark to a third party.

General and Administrative Expenses. Tota! general and administrative expenses were $1.1 billion for 2005 compared to
$943 million in 2004, or an increase of 15.5%. The increase in 2005 is primarily related to the Waypoint acquisition and
the full year effect of the Seacoast acquisition, as well as increased compensation and benefit costs associated with the
hiring of additional team members. At December 31, 2005, Sovereign“had total employees of 10,174 compared to 9,330
in 2004, a 9.0% increase. In addition, marketing and other administrative expenses have increased to support the growth
in our franchise. Although general and administrative expenses have increased, Sovereign'’s efficiency ratio, (all general

and administrative expenses as a percentage of net interest income and total fees and other income) for 2005 was 49.0%
compared to 50.3% for 2004, as net interest income and fees and other income have risen at a faster rate than general and
administrative expenses.

Other Expenses. Total other expenses were $163.4 million for 2005 compared to $236.2 million for 2004. Other expenses
included amortization expense of core deposit intangibles of $73.8 million for 2005 compared to $72.6 million for 2004.
As previously discussed, in 2004 Sovereign incurred debt extinguishment losses of $63.8 million and net merger refated
expenses of $46.4 million. In 2005, net merger related expenses were $12.7 million.

Other expense related to equity method investments includes an investment that Sovereign has in a synthetic fuel
partnership that generates Section 29 tax credits for the production of fuel from a non-conventional source (“the Synthetic
Fuel Partnership”). Our investment balance totaled $32.4 million at December 31, 2005. Sovereign is amortizing this
investment through December 31, 2007, which is the period through which we expect to receive alternative energy tax
credits, Reductions in the investment value and our allocation of the partnership's earnings or losses totaled $28.2 million
and $20.9 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively and are included as expense in the line “Equity method investments”

in our consolidated statement of operations, while the alternative energy tax credits we receive are included as a reduction
of income tax expense. We anticipate receiving tax credits in excess of our recorded investment over the remaining life of
the partnership. The alternative energy tax credit is reduced and ultimately eliminated based on a formula tied to the annual
average wellhead price per barre! of domestic crude oil which is not subject to regulation by the United States. To the extent
that the average price of crude oil exceeds certain levels resulting in a phase out and/or an elimination of the alternative
energy tax credits, Sovereign's investment in the synthetic fuel partnership could become impaired. The alternative energy
tax credit has never been subject to a phase out. However, volatility in oil prices have raised the possibility of a phase out in
future periods. Sovereign will continue to monitor oil price increases in the future and their related impact on our investment
and recognition of alternative energy tax credits.

In December 2005, Sovereign commenced litigation in the United States bistrict Court for the Southern District of New
York against Relational investors, LLC (“Relational”}, seeking a declaratory judgment that, under Sovereign's articles of
incorporation and the Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law, directors of Sovereign may only be removed from office

by shareholders for cause. In January 20086, this action was combined with certain outstanding claims by Relational,
including claims seeking a declaratory judgment that shareholders can remove directors without cause, claims relating to the
issuance of shares of Sovereign common stock in the pending transaction with Santander and claims relating to the timing
of Sovereign's 2006 annual meeting of shareholders. There is additional cutstanding class action and derivative litigation
which relates to Sovereign’s pending transactions with Santander and Independence Community Bank Corp. Sovereign's
management believes that all of these claims are without merit and intends to defend against the claims vigorously in court.
Sovereign incurred $5.8 million of costs in the fourth quarter of 2005 to defend itself against the claims and the actions

of Relational, and anticipates incurring additionat costs in 2006. On March 2, 2006, the judge in the District Court action
in the Southern District of New York issued a ruling that Sovereign's directors may be removed without cause; Sovereign
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disagrees with the District Court's ruling under Pennsylvania law and Sovereign’s articles of incorporation, and intends to
seek prompt review of the ruling by the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. Sovereign cannot predict with
reasonable certainty the eventual outcome of such appeat or, if the ruling is upheld, the extent of the adverse impact of the
ruling on Sovereign’s financial condition or results of operations.

Also impacting cther expenses were lease and contract termination charges of $4.0 million recorded in 2005.
See Note 29 for-additional discussion.

Income Tax Provision. The income tax provision was $2 16 million for 2005 compared to a provision of $128 million for 2004. The
effective tax rate for 2005 was 24.2% compared to 22.0% for 2004. The current year tax rate differs from the statutory: rate of 35% due
principatly to income from tax-exempt investments, non-taxable income related to bank-owned life insurance and tax credits received on low
income housing partnerships and the Synthetic Fuel Partnership. The increase in the effective tax rate in 2005 was due to a reduction in the
proportion of permanent favorable tax differences to pre-tax book income in 2005 compared to 2004.

Sovereign is subject to the income tax laws of the U.S., its states and municipalities and certain foreign countries. These fax laws are
complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant Governmental faxing authorities. In establishing a provision
for income tax expense, the Company must make judgments and interpretations about the application of these inherently complex tax laws.

Actual income taxes paid may vary from estimates depending upon changes in income tax laws, actual results of operations, and the final
audit of tax returns by taxing authorities. Tax assessmerits may arise several years after tax returns have been filed. Sovereign reviews its tax
balances quarterly and as new information becomes available, the balances are adjusted, as appropriate. Sovereign believes that its recorded
tax liabilities adequately provide for the probable outcome of these assessments; however, ravisions of our estimate of accrued income taxes
could materially effect our operating results for any given quarter. For additional information with respect to Sovereign’s income taxes, see
Note 18 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Line of Business Results. Effective January 1, 2005, Sovereign reorganized its reporting structure in keeping with its strategy of offering
local community banking decision making combined with the broad product and service offerings that are normally only available at a large
bank. The Company's reportable segments have changed to the Mid-Atlantic Banking Division, the New England Banking Division, Shared
Services Consuimer, Shared Services Commercial, and Other. The results of 2004 have been restated to reflect Sovereign’s new segments.
The Company's segments are focused principally around the customers Sovereign serves and the geographies in which those customers
are located. The Mid-Atlantic Banking Division is comprised of our branch locations in New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and'Maryland. The

New England Banking Division is comprised of our branch locations in Massachusetts, Rhode lsland, Connecticut and New Hampshire.
Both areas offer a wide range of products and services to customers and each attracts deposits by offering a variety of deposit instruments
including demand and NOW accounts, money market and savings accounts, certificates of deposits and retirement savings plans. The
Shared Services Consumer segment is primarily comprised of our morigage banking group, our correspondent home equity business, our
indirect automobile group and our consumer lending group. The Shared Services Commercial segment provides cash management and
capital markets services to Sovereign customers, as well as asset backed lending products, commercial real estate loans, automobile dealer
floor plan loans, leases to commercial customers, and small business loans. Other includes earnings from the investment portfolio, interest
expense on Sovereign's borrowings and other debt obligations, minority interest expense, amortization of intangible assets, merger-related
and integration charges and certain unallocated corporate income and expenses. For additional discussion of these business lines and the
Company's related accounting policies, see Note 26 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financia! Statements.

Segment resuits are derived from the Company’s business unit profitability reporting system by specifically attributing managed
balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and their related interest income or expense. Funds transfer pricing methodologies
are utilized to allocate a cost for funds used or a credit for funds provided to business line deposits, loans and seiected other assets
using a matched funding concept. The provision for credit losses recorded by each segment is primarily based on the net charge-
offs of each fine of business. The difference between the provision for credit iosses recognized by the Company on a consolidated
basis and the provision recorded by the business lines at the time of charge-off is included in the Other segment. Other income and
expenses directly managed by each business line, including fees, service charges, salaries and benefits, and other direct expenses
as well as certain allocated corporate expenses are accounted for within each segment’s financial results. Designations, assignments
and allocations may change from time to time. Where practical, the results are adjusted to present consistent methodologies for

the segments. Accounting policies for the tines of business are the same as those used in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements with respect to activities specifically attributable to each business line. However, the preparation of business line results
requires management to establish methodologies to allocate funding costs and benefits, expenses and other financial elements to
each line of business.




The Mid-Atlantic Banking Division's net interest income increased $140.7 million to $584.2 million in 2005. The increase in net
interest income was principally due to loan growth, which was funded pfimarily by an increase in the balance of time deposits.
The average balance of Mid-Atlantic Banking Division’s loans was $6.3 billion with a yietd of 6.03% versus $4.4 billion at a

yield of 4.98% during 2005 and 2004, respectively. The average balance of deposits was $15.0 billion at a cost of 1.60% in
2005 compared to $12.9 billion at an average cost of 1.01% in 2004. The increase in fees and other income of $11.4 million to
$131.6 million for 2005 was generated by deposit fees and loan fees, which grew with the increased level of deposits and loans.
The provision for credit losses decreased in 2005 to $21.1 million from $29.3 million in 2004 due to decreased net loan charge-
offs in 2005 due to the improving credit quality of our loan portfolio. General and administrative expenses (including allocated
corporate and direct support costs) increased from $316.4 million for 2004 to $376.4 million for 2005. The increase in general
and administrative expenses is due principally to Sovereign’s continued investment in people and processes to support its expanding
franchise, which included the acquisition of Waypoint.

The New England Banking Division’s net interest income increased $159.4 million to $665.5 million in 2005. The increase in net
interest income was principally due to loan growth, because of the full year impact of the Seacoast and First Essex acquisitions.
The average balance of New England Banking Division’s loans was $5.4 billion with a yield of 5.98% versus $4.4 billion at a
yield of 5.01% during 2005 and 2004, respectively. The average balance of deposits was $17.6 billion at a cost of 1.41% in
2005 compared to $16.0 billion at an average cost of 0.98% in 2004. The increase in fees and other income of $10.7 million

to $162.9 million for 2005 was generated by deposit fees and loan fees, which grew with the increased level of deposits and
toans. The provision for credit losses decreased in 2005 to $7.1 mitlion from $14.0 million in 2004 due to decreased net loan
charge-offs in 2005 and the improving credit quality of our loan portfolio. General and administrative expenses (including atlocated
corporate and direct support costs) increased from $378.2 million for 2004 to $423.6 million for 2005. The increase in general
and administrative expenses is due principally to Sovereign’s continued inveéstment in people and pracesses to support its expanding
franchise, which included the full year impact of the 2004 acquisitions of First Essex and Seacoast.

Shared services consumer segment net interest income increased $24.6 million to $312.7 million in 2005. The increase in net
interest income was principally due to loan growth. The average balance of Shared services consumer loans was $21.1 billion with
a yield of 5.29% versus $15.1 billion at a yield of 5.29% during 2005 and 2004, respectively. The average balance of deposits
was $389.1 million at a cost of 1.29% in 2005 compared to $349.0 million at an average cost of 0.70% in 2004. The increase

in fees and other income of $98.5 million to $151.7 million for 2005 was primarily generated by increased mortgage banking
revenues from the sale of mortgage and home equity loans. These gains increased to $78.7 million in 2005 from $25.8 million in
2004. Mortgage banking revenue is contingent upon loan growth and market conditions. Due to strong loan originations, increased
loan purchases, and favorable market conditions, Sovereign experienced a higher level of gains from the sale of loans in 2005
compared to 2004. Other fees increased $31.7 miilion from 2004. These fees increased primarily due to the growth in the loan
portfolio. The provision for credit losses increased in 2005 to $50.0 million from $41.5 million in 2004 due to loan growth. General
and administrative expenses (including allocated corporate and direct suppoft costs) increased from $106.0 million for 2004 to
$150.5 million for 2005. The increase in general and administrative expenses is due principally to Sovereign's continued investment
in people and processes to support its expanding franchise.

Shared services commercial segment net interest income increased $54.2 million to $227.8 millicn for 2005 compared to 2004. The
increase in net interest income was principally due to loan growth. The average balance of Shared services commercial loans was $8.7
billion with a yield of 6.07% in 2005 versus $7.0 billion at a yield of 4.74% during 2004. Fees and other income have increased by
$32.3 million to $128.5 million principally from an increase in loan fees of $26.9 million. Included in 2005 results were $9.4 million
of gains related to the 2005-1 dealer floor plan securitization. The provision for credit losses decreased by $21.7 miltion in 2005

to $3.7 million compared to 2004 due to a lower level of net charge-offs in 2005. General and administrative expenses (including
allocated corporate and direct support costs) decreased slightly from $115.8 million for 2004 to $108.2 million in 2005.

The net loss before income taxes for the Other segment increased from $211.9 million in 2004 to $311.8 million in 2005. Net
interest expense increased from $6.4 million in 2004 to $201.9 miliion for 2005 due to tightening margins between our investment
and borrowing obligations in the current year due to the flattening vield curve. The Other segment includes net gains on securities of
$14.3 million in 2005, as compared to $15.1 mitlion recorded in 2004, The previously discussed impairment charges refated to our
retained interests in consumer loan securitizations are recorded in the Consumer Bank segment; however, the other-than-temporary
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impairment chargeion the FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock in our investment portfolio was recorded in the Other segment. The 2005
results included proxy and refated professional expenses and lease and contract termination charges of $5.8 miilion and $4.0 million,
respectively. See Note 29 for additional details. The 2004 results also include pre-tax losses of $63.8 million on the extinguishment

of debt. The 2005 .and 2004 results also included net charges of $12.7 million and $46.4 milfion for merger and integration charges.
Finally, the Other segment included $28.2 miltion and $20.9 million of expense associated with the Synthetic Fuel Partnership, as weil
as amortization of intangibles of $73.8 million and $72.6 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003
(DoMars in thousands, except per share data)

Net interest income $ 1,404,817 $ 1,205,628
Provision for loan losses 127,000 161,957
Total non-interest income 482,298 521,576
General and administrative expenses 942,661 852,364
Other expenses 236,232 157,984
Net income $ 453552 § 401,851
Basic earnings per share $ 141 $ 1.45

9

Diluted earnings per share 1.36 $ 1.38

The major factors affecting comparison of earnings between 2004 and 2003 were:

. The decrease in net interest margin from 3.42% in 2003 o 3.24% in 2004 due primarily to the flattening yield curve
experienced in 2004 since replacement yields on new asset production are lower than yields on maturing dssets.
The growth in net interest income was driven by the increase in the balance of earing assets, which were primarily
related to business acquisitions.

=7 The adoption of EITF 04-8 “Accounting Issues Related to Certain Features of Contingently Convertible Debt and the Effect on
Diluted Earnings per Share”. This EITF was announced in draft form in the second quarter of 2004 and became effective in
the fourth.quarter of 2004. It required the potential dilution from contingently convertible debt be included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share upon the issuance of the debt and the after-tax impact of the interest expense on this debt be added
back to net income for diluted earnings per share purposes. Sovereign issued redeemable securities in the first quarter of 2004,
Prior period earnings per share were restated to the date of the issuance of this debt.

5

-1 The debt extinguishment charges of $63.8 million and $29.8 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. We felt it was prudent
to redeem these high cost borrowings, even in light of the significant charges we incurred, since the borrowings could be
replaced with lower cost borrowings which would improve net interest margin and net income in subsequent periods.

t

= The other-than-temporary impairment charge of $32.1 million on FNMA and FHLMC Preferred Stock. This was one of the
primary reasons net gains on securities was Jower in 2004 compared with 2003,

= The merger-related and integration charges of $46.4 million incurred in 2004 related to the First Essex
and Seagoast acquisitions.

= The decrease in provision for credit losses in 2004 of $35.0 million due to improved loan quality.
= The continued growth in fee income in consumer and commercial banking due to loan and deposit growth.

= The decreases in mortgage banking and capital markets revenues in 2004 of $34.6 million due primarily to the interest rate
environment experienced in 2004 compared to the rate environment in 2003,

= Increases in general and administrative expenses to support the growth in Sovereign’s franchise and continued investments in
human resources and systems and increases related to business acquisitions.




Net Interest Income. Net interest income for 2004 was $1.40 billion compared to $1.21 billion for 2003, or an increase of

16%. The increase in net interest income in 2004 was due to an increase in interest-earning assets, which were primarily refated
to business acquisitions. The increase in our assets was funded principally by the increase in low cost core deposits, repurchase
agreements and other borrowings. Net interest margin (net interest income on a tax equivalent basis divided by average interest-
earning assets) was 3.24% for 2004 compared to 3.42% for 2003. The decline in margin was driven by the flattening yield curve
experienced in 2004 which resulted in reinvestment yields being lower than the yields on maturing assets, and to a lesser extent
the rectassification of trust preferred securities expense to net interest margin. This margin compression was pattially offset by lower
funding costs from downward re-pricing of deposits and a reduced cost of borrowings.

Interest on investment securities was $654 mitlion for 2004 compared to $612 million for 2003. The increase in interest income
was due to an increase in the average balance of investment securities from $12.0 billion in 2003 to $14.1 billion in 2004,
partially offset by lower yields due to daclining market interest rates.

Interest on loans was $1.57 billion and $1.32 billion for 2004 and 2003, respectively. The average balance of loans was $30.6
billion with an average yield of 5.15% for 2004 compared to an average batance of $24.0 billion with an average yield of 5.50%
for 2003. The decline in average yields year to year is due to the decrease of market rates experienced during 2004 and 2003.
in addition, the decrease in market interest rates also resufted in higher prepayment experience on ﬁxed rate loans with proceeds
being reinvested by Sovereign in lower yielding assets. The overall growth in loans from $26.1 billion at December 31, 2003 to
$36.6 biflion at December 31, 2004 resulted from business acquisitions and from origination activity and purchases of bulk and
correspondent foans, principally in the consumer and mortgage loan portfolios.

Interest on total deposits was $303 million for 2004 compared to $321 rhillion for 2003. The average balance of interest bearing
deposits was $25.3 billion with an average cost of 1.20% for 2004 compared to an average balance of $22.9 billion with an
average cost of 1.40% for 2003. Additionally, non-interest bearing deposits increased to an average balance of $4.7 billion in 2004
from $4.1 billion in 2003. The increase in the average balance was due primarily to business acquisitions and Sovereign’s ability {o
grow deposits as rates started to increase in mid-year. The decrease in average cost of deposits in 2004 is the result of Sovereign's
ability to reduce deposit rates in the declining interest rate environment.

interest on borrowings and other debt obligations was $516 million for 2004 compared to $403 million for 2003. The average
balance of total borrowings and other debt obligations was $15.6 billion with an average cost of 3.31% for 2004 compared fo an
average balance of $10.3 billion with an average cost of 3.92% for 2003. The reduction in the cost of funds on borrowings and
other debt obligations resulted principally from the lower rates on short-term sources of funding including repurchase agreements
and overnight FHLB advances. In addition, Sovereign retired certain high cost term funding in 2004. See Note 12 in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion.

Provision for Credit Losses. The provision for credit losses is based upon actual credit loss experience, growth or contraction of
specific segments of the loan portfoltio, and the estimation of losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The provision for credit
losses for 2004 was $127.0 million comparad to $162.0 million for 2003. Included in 2004 results was a $6 million provision
recorded in connection with the acquisition of First Essex to conform to Sovereign's reserving methodology. The lower provision
was driven by improving credit quality statistics in our loan portfolio, such as a 28% decline in non-performing loans, a decline in
criticized loans, and a decline in performing classified loans compared to 2003. Additionally, net loan charge-offs have declined
to $110.3 million or 17% compared to the prior year. The overall aliowance as a percentage of loans outstanding has declined
from 1.25% in 2003 to 1.12% in 2004. This is reflective of improvement in credit quality of the loan portfolios, reductions in
classified and past due loans, as well as, loan growth that stightly favored consumer and residential loans portfolios where reserve
requirements are generafly lower than in commercial loan portfotios. Management reguiarly evaluates the risk inherent in its foan
portfolio and adjusts its allowance for loan losses as deemed necessary.

Sovereign's net charge-offs for 2004 were $110.3 miflion and consisted of charge-offs of $153.2 miflion and recoveries of $42.9
million. This compares to 2003 net charge-offs of $132.8 million consisting of charge-offs of $165.4 million and recoveries of
$32.6 million. The decrease in charge-offs was driven by the performance of our commercial foan portfolios where net charge-offs
decreased from $94.1 million in 2003 to $64.7 million in 2004,

The ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans, including loans held for sale, was .36% for 2004, compared to .55% for 2003.
Commercial loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average commercial loans were .52% for 2004, compared to .89% for 2003.
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The consumer loans secured by real estate net charge-off rate was .05% for 2004, compared to .10% for 2003. The consumer
joans not secured by real estate net charge-off rate was .89% for 2004 and .82% for 2003.

Non-interest thcome. Total non-interest income was $482 mitiion for 2004 compared to $522 million for 2003. Several factors
cantributed to the decrease as discussed below.

Consumer banking fees were $242.6 million for 2004 compared to $208.8 million in 2003. This increase was primarily due to
an increase in deposit fees of $23.7 million to $198.2 million in 2004 from expansion of our averall deposit base along with a
favorable shift in mix from time to core deposit products, increased cross selling initiatives with existing customers and our First
Essex and Seacoast acquisitions. During 2004, the Company continued to aggressively promote demand deposit products, which,
in exchange for favorable minimum balance requirements and convenience for the customer, generally produce higher fee revenues
than time deposit products.

Commercial banking fees were $123.8 million for 2004 compared to $108 million in 2003. This increase was due to growth in
both commercial loans and commercial core deposits, as well as expanded cash management capabilities and product offerings.
Commercial banking loan fees increased by $10.4 miltion to $54.8 million while commercial deposit fees increased by $1.5 million
to $47.7 million, in 2004.

Mortgage banking revenues were $22.5 miltion for 2004 compared to $50.0 million for 2003. The principal conjponents of
mortgage banking revenues are: gains or losses from the sale or securitization of mortgage loans or mortgage-backed securities that
were related to loans originated or purchased and held by Sovereign; gains or losses on mortgage banking derivative and hedging
transactions; servicing fees; amaortization of mortgage servicing rights; and changes in the valuation allowance for recoveries or
impairments related to mortgage servicing rights. The primary factor contributing to the decrease in mortgage banking revenues was
decreased loan origination activity since 2003, which had high levels of origination activity from record-level mortgage refinancings
generated from the historic low rates experienced in 2003. The table below summarizes the components of net mortgage banking

revenues (in thousands):

TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003

tmpairments to mortgage servicing rights $ (1,792) $ (795)
Mortgage servicing fees 19,411 V 15,278
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights (18,895) (27,398)
Gain on loan purchase commitments — 3420
Net fosses under SFAS 133 (2,020) | 1,709
Sales of mortgage loans and mortgage backed securities $ 25,805 $ v ‘ 57804
Total ' § 259§ 50018

Capital Markets revenues were $19.9 million in 2004 and $27.0 million in 2003, Capital markets revenues declined in 2004
compared to 2003 because of challenging market conditions in 2004 related to the interest rate environment.

Net gains on sales of investment securities were $14.2 million for 2004, compared to $66.1 miition for 2003. Included in 2004 and
2003 results were impairment charges of $0.9 million and $7.4 mittion, respectively, related to our retained interests in securitizations.
See Note 22 in the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our retained interests in securitized assets.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, Savereign determined that certain unrealized losses on perpetual preferred stock of FNMA and FHLMC
was other-than-temporary in accordance with SFAS 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” and

the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 59 "Accounting for Non-current Marketable Equity Securities”. The Company’s asséssment
considered the duration and severity of the unrealized loss, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuers, and the
likelihood of the market value of these instruments increasing to our initial cost basis within a reasonable period of time. Based on the
recent events at these issuers and the anticipated interest rate environment expected in the near term, we concluded that the unrealized
losses were other-than-temporary and recorded an impairment charge of $32.1 million ($20.9 million after-tax or $0.06 per diluted
share) to writedown these investments to their fair values.



General and Administrative Expenses. Total general and administrative expenses were $943 million for 2004 compared to

$852 million in 2003, or an increase of 11%. The increase in 2004 is primarily related to the First Essex and Seacoast acquisitions,

as well as increased compensation and benefit costs associated with the hiring of additional team members. In addition, marketing and
other administrative expenses have increased to support the growth in our franchise. Although general and administrative expenses have
increased, Sovereign’s efficiency ratio, (all general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net interest income and fees and other
income) for 2004 was 50.3% compared to 51.3% for 2003, as net interest income and fees and other income have risen at a faster rate
than general and administrative expenses. ‘

Other Expenses. Total other expenses were $236.2 miltion for 2004 compared to $158.0 million for 2003. Other expenses included
amortization expense of core deposit intangibles of $72.6 million for 2004 compared to $73.8 million for 2003. Also the Company changed
its method of accounting for trust preferred securities expenses beginning on July 1, 2003, to include these costs in interest expense and

to classify these obligations in borrowings and other debt obligations on its consolidated balance sheet (see Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). Prior period amounts were not reclassified. As previously discussed, Sovereign incurred debt extinguishment tosses of
$63.8 million and $29.8 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and merger related expenses in connection with the acquisitions of First
Essex and Seacoast of $46.4 miffion in 2004. ‘

Additionally, during 2004 Sovereign recorded $20.9 million of expense related to its investment in the Synthetic Fuel Partnership which was
recorded in equity method investments in our consolidated statement of operations. The Company also has other investments in entities
accounted for under the equity method including low-income housing tax credit partnerships. As a result of the increasing significance of
our equity method investment portfolio, Sovereign reclassified the income statement effects of these investments to other expenses in 2004.
Prior period amounts were reclassified to conform to the 2004 presentation.

Income Tax Provision. The income tax provision was $128 miliion for 2004 compared to a provision of $153 miflion for 2003, The
effective tax rate for 2004 was 22.0% compared to 27.6% for 2003. The current year tax rate differs from the statutory rate of 35% due
principally to income from tax-exempt investments, non-taxable income refated to bank-owned life insurance and tax credits received on fow
income housing partnerships and the Synthetic Fuel Partnership. The decrease in the effective tax rate in 2004 was due to an increase in tax
free income from municipal investments, increased tax credits from our low income housing partnerships and our Synthetic Fuel Partnership
and tax benefits recorded on Sovereign's merger-related, debt extinguishment and other charges. For additional information with respect to
Sovereign's income taxes, see Note 18 in the Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements.

Line of Business Results. Effective January 1, 2005, Sovereign reorganized its reparting structure in keeping with its strategy of offering
local community banking decision making combined with the broad product and service offerings that are normally only available at a large
bank. The Company’s reportable segments have changed to the Mid-Atlantic Banking Division, the New England Banking Division, Shared
Services Consumer, Shared Services Commercial, and Other. The 2004 and 2003 results have been restated to refiect Sovereign's new
segments. For additional discussion of these business lines and the Company’s telated accounting policies, see Note 26 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Mid-Atlantic Banking Division net interest income increased $44.1 million to $44.3.4 million in 2004. The increase in net interest income
was principally due to loan growth, which was funded by an increase in the balance of low-cost deposits. The average bafance of Mid-
Atlantic loans was $4.4 billion with a yield of 4.98% versus $4.1 billion at a yield of 5.31% during 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
average balance of deposits was $12.9 billion at a cost of 1.01% in 2004 compared to $13.0 billion at an average cost of 1.29% in 2003.
The increase in non-interest income of $9.1 million to $120.2 million for 2004 was generated by deposit fees and loan fees, which grew in
tandem with the increased level of deposits and loans. The provision for credit losses increased in 2004 to $29.3 miltion from $26.4 million
in 2003 due to a higher leve! of charge-offs recorded in 2004. General and administrative expenses {including allocated corporate and direct
support costs) increased from $302.2 miilion for 2003 to $316.4 million for 2004. The increase in general and administrative expenses is
due principally to Sovereign's continued investment in people and processes to support ifs expanding franchise.

New England Banking Division net interest income increased $134.4 million to $506.1 million in 2004. The increase in net interest income
was principally due fo loan growth, which was funded by an increase in the balance of low-cost deposits both of which were partially
resulted from Sovereign's 2004 acquisitions of Seacoast and First Essex. The average balance of New Ehgland Banking Division loans
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was $4.4 billion with a yield of 5.01% versus $3.1 billion at a yield of 4.95% during 2004 and 2003, respectively. The average balance
of deposits was $15.9 billion at a cost of 0.98% in 2004 compared to $13.3 billion at an average cost of 1.12%in 2003. The increase
in non-interest income of $32.5 million to $152.3 million for 2004 was generated by deposit fees and loan fees, which grew in tandem
with the increased level of deposits and loans. The provision for credit losses declined in 2004 to $14.0 milliot from $15.3 miltion
in 2003 due to the lower level of consumer loan charge-offs. General and administrative expenses (including aliocated corporate and
direct support costs) increased from $310.0 mitlion for 2003 to $378.2 million for 2004, The increase in general and administrative
expenses is due principaily to Sovereign’s acquisition of Seacoast and First Essex in 2004 and continued investment in people and
processes to:suppoart its expanding franchise.

Shared Services Consumer net interest income decreased $19.4 million to $288.2 million for 2004 compared to 2003. The decrease in
net interest income was principally due to the flattening yield curve that was experienced in 2004. The average balance of Shared Services
Consumer loans was $15.1 billion with a yield of 5.29% in 2004 versus $11.6 billion at a yield of 5.66% during 2003. Non-interest
income has decreased by $9.0 million to $41.5 million principally from a decrease in loan fees and capital markets ravenues. The provision
for credit losses increased by $9.0 million in 2004 to $41.5 miflion compared to 2003 due to a higher leve! of net ¢harge-offs in 2004.
Mortgage banking revenues were lower in 2004 compared to 2003 due to decreased loan crigination activity, since 2003 had high levels
of origination activity from record-level mortgage refinancings generated from the historic low rates experienced in 2003. General and
administrative expenses (including allocated corporate and direct support costs) increased from $105.3 million for 2003 to $106.0 million
in 2004. The increase was dug in part to increased costs to support the Shared Services Commercial Segment’s loan growth, as well as
additional investment in the cash management and capital markets businesses.

Shared Services Commercial net interest income increased $21.5 million to $173.5 million in 2004. The increase insnet interest income
was principally due to loan growth, which was funded by an increase in the balance of low-cost deposits. The average balance of Shared
Services Commiercial loans was $7.0 billion with a yield of 4.74% versus $6.0 billion at a yield of 4.84% during 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The average balance of deposits was $64.0 million at a cost of 4.08% in 2004 compared to $33.9 million at an average cost
of 3.75% in 2003. The increase in non-interest income of $7.2 milfion to $36.2 mitlion for 2004 was generated by deposit fees and loan
fees, which grew in tandem with the increased level of deposits and loans, The provision for credit losses declined in 2004 to $25.5 million
from $68.6 miltion in 2003 due to the lower level of loan charge-offs. General and administrative expenses (including allocated corporate
and direct support costs) increased from $102.2 million for 2003 to $115.8 million for 2004. The increase in general and administrative
expenses is due principally to Sovereign’s continued investment in people and processes to support its expanding franchise.

The net loss before income taxes for Other increased from $107.6 million in 2003 to $211.9 million in 2004. Net interest expense
decreased from $25.0 million in 2003 to $6.4 million for 2004 due to the increase in average balances on the investment portfolio. The
Other segment includes net gains on securities of $15.1 million in 2004, as compared to $73.5 milion recorded in 2003. The previously
discussed impairment charges related to our retained interests in consumer loan securitizations are recorded in the Consumer Bank segment.
The 2004 and 2003 results also include a pre-tax loss of $63.8 million and $29.8 miillion on the extinguishment of debit. The 2004 results
also include merger charges of $46.4 million related to the Seacoast and First Essex acquisitions. Finally, the Other segment included

$20.9 million of expense associated with the Synthetic Fuel Partnership in 2004.

Critical Accounting Policies

MD&A is based on the consolidated financial statements and accornpanying notes that have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP"). Qur significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of éontingent assets and liabilities.
Actuat results could differ from those estimates. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions and
judgments, and, as such, have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally reported. However,
the Company is not currently aware of any reasonably likely events or circumstances that would result in materially different resuits. We
have identified accounting for the allowance for loan losses, securitizations, goodwill and derivatives and hedging activities as our maost
critical accounting policies and estimates in that they are important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results, and they require
management's most difficult, subjective or complex judgments as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are
inherently uncertain.

The Company’s senior management has reviewed these critical accounting policies and estimates with its audit committee. Information
concerning the Compény’s implementation and impact of new accounting standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is discussed in Note 2.



Allowance for Loan Losses and Reserve for Unfunded Lending Commitmenﬂs. The allowance for loan losses and reserve for unfunded
lending commitments represent management’s best estimate of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The adequacy of Sovereign’s
allowance for loan losses and reserve for unfunded lending commitments are regularly evaluated. This evaluation process is subject to
numerous estimates and applications of judgment. Management's evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance to absorb loan losses takes
into consideration the risks inherent in the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, specific loans which have loss potential, geographic and
industry concentrations, delinquency trends, economic conditions, the level of originations and other relevant factors. Management aiso
considers loan guality, changes in the size and character of the loan portfolio, amount of non-performing loans, and industry trends. Changes
in these estimates could have a direct impact on the provision for credit losses recorded in the income statement and could result in a
change in the recorded allowance and reserve for unfunded lending commitments. The loan portfolio also represents the largest asset on our
consolidated balance sheet. Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements describes the methodology used to determine the allowance for
loan losses and reserve for unfunded lending commitments and a discussion of thg factors driving changes in the amount of the allowance
for loan losses and reserve for unfunded lending commitments is included in the Credit Risk Management section of this MD&A

Securitizations. Securitization is a process by which a legal entity issues certain'securities to investors, which pay a return based on the
cash flows from a pool of loans or other financial assets. Sovereign has securitized mortgage loans, home equity loans, and other consumer
loans, as well as automotive floor plan loans that it originated andfor purchased from certain other financial institutions. After receivables or
loans are securitized, the Company continues to maintain account relationships with its customers. As a result, the Company continues to
consider these securitized assets to be part of the business it manages. Sovereign may provide administrative, liquidity facilities and/or other
services to the resulting securitization entities, and may continue to service the financial assets sold to the securitization entity.

In the case where Sovereign transferred financial assets to a special purpose entitj/, a decision must be made as to whether that transfer
should be considered a sale and whether the assets transferred to the special purpose entity should be consélidated into the Company’s
financial statements or whether the non-consolidation criteria have been met according to generally accepted accounting principles. The
accounting guidance governing sale and consolidation of securitized financial assets is included in SFAS No. 140.

Accounting for the valuation of retained interests in securitizations requires management judgment since these assets are established and
accounted for based on discounted cash flow modeling technigues that require management to make estimates regarding the amount and
timing of expected future cash flows, including assumptions about loan repayment rates, credit loss experience, and servicing costs, as well
as discount rates that consider the risk involved.

Because the values of these assets are sensitive to changes to assumptions, the valuation of retained interests is considered a critical
accounting estimate. Note 1 and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements include further discussion on the accounting for these
assets and provide sensitivity analysis showing how the fair value of these assets would respond to adverse changes in the key assumptions

utilized to value these assets.

Because the values of these assets are sensitive to changes to assumptions, the valuation of retained interests is considered
a critical accounting estimate. Note 1 and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements include further discussion on
the accounting for these assets and provide sensitivity analysis showing how the fair value of these assets would respond to
adverse changes in the key assumptions utilized to value these assets.

Goodwill. The purchase method of accounting for business combinations requires the Company to make use of estimates and judgments
to allocate the purchase price paid for acquisitions to the fair value of the assets écquired and liabilities assumed. The excess of the purchase
price of an acquired business over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities represents goodwill. Goodwill totaled $2.7 billion at
December 31, 2005.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002. This statement provides that goodwill
and other indefinite lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized on a recurring basis, but rather will be subject to periodic impairment
testing. Other than goodwill, Sovereign has no indefinite lived intangible assets.

The impairment test for goodwill requires the Company to compare the fair value of business reporting units to their carrying value including
assigned goodwill. SFAS No. 142 required an initial impairment test within six months after adoption and annually thereafter. In addition,
goodwill is tested more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of events indicate impairment potentially exists. No charge for
impairment of goodwill has been required under the provisions of SFAS No. 142 in 2005, 2004 or 2003.
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Determining the fair value of its reporting units requires management to allocate assets and liabilities to such units and make certain judgments
and assumptions related to various items, including discount rates, future estimates of operating results, etc. If altemative assumptions or
estimates had been used, the fair value of each reporting unit determined by the Company may have been different, However, management
believes that the estimates or assumptions used in the goodwill impairment analysis for its business units were reasonable,

Derivatives and Hedging Activities. Sovereign uses various derivative financial instruments to assist in managing interest rate risk.
Sovereign accounts for these derivative instruments in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended (SFAS No. 133). Under SFAS No. 133, derivative
financial instruments are recorded at fair value as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. The accounting for changes in the fair value
of a derivative instrument is determined by whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and on the type of
hedging relationship. Transactions hedging changes in the fair vaiue of a recognized asset, liability, or firm commitment are classified as fair
value hedges. Derivative instruments hedging exposure to variable cash flows of recognized assets, liabilities or forecasted transactions are
classified as cash flow hedges.

Fair value hedges result in the immediate recognition in eamings of gains or losses on the derivative instrument, as well as corresponding
losses or gains on the hedged item, to the extent they are attributable to the hedged risk. The effective portion of the gain or loss on a derivative
instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is reported in accumulated other comprehensive income, and reclassified td eamings in the same
period that the hedged transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss, if any, is recognized in current eamings for both
fair value and cash flow hedges. Derivative instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting treatment are recorded at fair value and classified
as trading assets or liabilities with the resultant changes in fair value recognized in current earnings during the period of change.

During 2005 and 2004, Sovereign had both fair value hedges and cash flow hedges recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as “other
assets” or “other liabilities” as applicable. For both fair value and cash flow hedges, certain assumptions and forecasts related to the impact
of changes in interest rates on the fair value of the derivative and the item being hedged must be documented at the inception of the hedging
relationship to demonstrate that the derivative instrument will be effective in hedging the designated risk. If these assumptions or forecasts do
not accurately reflect subsequent changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument or the designated item being hedged, Sovereign might
be required to discontinue the use of hedge accounting for that derivative instrument. Once hedge accounting is terminated, all subsequent
changes in the fair market value of the derivative instrument must be recorded in earnings, possibly resulting in greater volatility in Sovereign's
eamings. If Sovereign's outstanding derivative positions that qualified as hedges at December 31, 2005 were no longer considered effective,
and thus did not qualify as hedges, the impact in 2005 would have been to lower pre-tax earnings by approximately $34.3 million.

Recent Acquisitions

On January 21, 2005, Sovereign acquired Waypoint for approximately $953 million and the results of Waypoint are included in the
accompanying financial statements subsequent to the acquisition date. A cash payment of $269.9 million was made in connection with the
transaction with the remaining consideration consisting of the issuance of 29.8 million shares of common stock and stdck options (to convert
outstanding Waypoint stock options into Sovereign stock options). The value of the common stock for accounting purposes was determined
hased on the average price of Sovereign’s shares over the three day period preceding and subsequent to the announcement date of the
acquisition. Waypoint was a bank holding company headquartered in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, with assets of approximately $4.3 billion
and deposits of $2.9 billion. Waypoint operated 66 community banking offices in ten counties in south-central Pennsylvania and northern
Maryland. This acquisition has increased Sovereign's market presence in many counties in Pennsylvania and has created new leading
markets in certain counties in Maryland. Sovereign recorded merger related and intergration charges of $16.7 million pre-tax ($10.9 million
after-tax), or $0.03 per diluted share in 2005.

On February 6, 2004, Sovereign closed the acquisition of First Essex for approximately $418 million and the results of First Essex are
included in the accompanying financial statements subsequent to the acquisition date. A cash payment of $208 millicnt was made in
connection with the transaction with the remaining consideration consisting of the issuance of 12.7 million shares of Sovereign's common
stock and the exchange of Sovereign stock options for existing First Essex options. The vatue of the common stock for adcounting purposes
was based on the average price of Sovereign’s shares over the three day period preceding and subsequent to the announcement date of the
acquisition. First Essex had approximately $1.7 billicn in assets and was headquartered in Andover, Massachusetts, with 20 community
banking offices throughout 2 counties in Massachusetts and 3 counties in New Hampshire. This acquisition fortified our presence in both
of these states and gave us greater leverage in commercial and retail banking in these markets. Sovereign recorded merger-related and
integration charges of $22.7 million pre-tax ($14.8 million after-tax), or $.04 per diluted share, in 2004, The majority of these charges
related to closing Sovereign branch and office locations which will be serviced by acquired First Essex properties.




On July 23, 2004, Sovereign completed the acquisition of Seacoast, a commerciat bank holding company headquartered in New Bedford,
Massachusetts, and the results of Seacoast's operations are included in the acconmipanying financial statements subsequent to the acquisition
date. Sovereign issued 36.2 million shares of comimon stock and exchanged Sovereign stock options for existing Seacoast options, with a
combined value of $817.5 million and made cash payments of $256.2 million, to acquire and convert all outstanding Seacoast shares and
employee stock options and pay associated fees. The value of the common stock was determined based on the average price of Sovereign's
shares over the three-day period preceding and subseguent to the closing date of {he acquisition since the final consideration was subject to
change based upon the value of Sovereign's stock price immediately preceding the closing date of the transaction. The Seacoast acquisition
added 67 banking offices throughout Southeastern Massachusetts. This acquisition has increased Sovereign’s market presence in the New
England market place. Sovereign recorded merger related and integration charges of $23.7 million pre-tax ($15.4 million after-tax) or

$.05 per diluted share in 2004. See Note 27 for additional details on the merger-related charges recarded by Sovereign on the First Essex,
Seacoast and Waypoint acquisitions.

Pending Transactions

On October 24, 2005, Sovereign and Santander announced that they had entered into an Investment Agreement, dated as of October 24,
2005 (the “Investment Agreement”), which sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which, among other things, (i) Santander

will purchase from Sovereign approximately 88 million shares of Sovereign's com‘mon stock for $2.4 billion in cash, (i} Santander can
increase its ownership during the first two years folfowing the closing, subject to certain standstill restrictions and regulatory fimitations,

and (iii} Santander can, after two years, subject to certain exceptions, acquire 100% of Sovereign in a negotiated transaction, subject to
shareholder approval. On November 22, 2005, Sovereign and Santander approved certain amendments to the Investment Agreement.

We expect this agreement to close in 2006. The proceeds of the investment will be used to acquire the common stock of Independence
Community Bank Corp. (“Independence") as discussed below. Additionally, Santander has also agreed to provide nonvoting equity and debt
financing in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1.2 billion at prevailing market rates if requested by Sovereign in arder to assist Sovereign
with the funding of its acquisition of Independence.

Santander is the ninth largest bank in the world by market capitalization. It has over 10,000 offices and a presence in over 40 countries. It

is the fargest financial group in Spain and Latin America, and has a significant presence elsewhere in Europe, including the United Kingdom
through its Abbey subsidiary and Portugal, where it is the third largest banking group. It also operates a leading consumer finance franchise
in Germany, Italy, Spain and nine other European countries. ‘

On October 24, 2005, Sovereign and Independence announced that they had entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of
October 24, 2005 (the "Merger Agreement”), which sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which Independence will be merged
with and into Sovereign (the “Merger”). Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, shareholders of Independence will be entitled to receive
$42.00 in cash, in exchange for each share of Independence common stock.

independence has approximately $19.1 billion in assets, $12.2 billion in net loans, $3.6 billion in investments, $10.9 billion in deposits,
$5.6 billion of borrowings and other debt obligations and $2.3 billion of stockholders’ equity. Independence is headquatered in Brooklyn,
New York, with 125 branches located in the greater New York City metropolitan area, which includes the five boroughs of New York City,
Nassau and Suffolk Counties and New Jersey. Management expects that this acquisition will fortify our presence as a leading banking
company in the Northeast by connecting our Mid-Atlantic geographic footprint to New England and create new markets in certain areas

of New York. Sovereign expects to complete the merger in 2006; however, completion of the merger is subject to @ number of customary
conditions, including but not limited to, the receipt of required regulatory approvals Shareholders of lndependence approved the Merger
Agreement on January 25, 2006.

Financial Condition

Loan Portfolio. Sovereign's loan portfolio at December 31, 2005 was $43.8 billion, compared to $36.6 billion at December 31, 2004,
and was comprised of $16.6 billion of commercial loans, $22.3 billion of consumer loans secured by real estate and $4.9 billion of
consumer loans not secured by real estate. This compares to $13.9 billion of commercial loans, $18.1 billion of consumer loans secured by
real estate, and $4.7 billion of consumer loans not secured by real estate at December 31, 2004.

Commercial loans grew by 20% during 2005 to $16.6 billion principally due to the Waypoint acquisition and loan origination activity.
Consumer loans secured by real estate grew by 23% in 2005 to $22.3 billion as a result of business acquisitions, loan origination activity
and loan purchases.
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Table 4: Composition of Loan Portfolio

Tabie 4 presents the composition of Sovereign's loan portfolio by type of loan and by fixed and variable rates at the dates
indicated (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003 2002 4 2001

AT DECEMBER 31,
) Balance Percent Balance Percent Balance Percent Balance Percem’ Balance Percent

Commercial Real Estate Loans ~ § 7,208,180 165% § 5824133 159% § 4702046 180% § 4386522 189% § 3211062 157%

b

Commercial And Indqstn'al Loans 9426466 215 8040107 219 6,361,640 243 5940234 256 | 5402971 264
Total Commercial Loans 16635646 380 13364200 378 106368 423 10326756 445 8614038 421
Residertial Mortgages 12462802 284 8497496 232 5074684 194 4347512 187 5005219 245
rome aulty Loas fnd 9793124 224 657765 262 5457682 247 56583 223 3756301 184
ggegfgggggg}“"sSewfed 22559% 508 18075152 494 11532366 441 9513306 410 8766l 428
Auto Loans 4434021 101 4205547 115 3200383 124 308897 131 273,106 134
Other M2 11 86140 13 2224 12 36 _ 14 | s 17
TotalConsumer Loans 2168201 620 I8 622 15081973 517 12866678 555 118581 579
Total Loans § MANSN 1000% § BELOD 1000% $ MBSO 1000% § 231943 1000% § 20450014 1000%
Total Loans with: .
Fised rates $BULAL 597% S 2LUSOIS S517% § ISUTLIS SB0% 13509898 S86% 3 L28ISM2  630%
Variable tes 1766243 403 15485164 423 1097750 420 95935% 414 15272 370
Total Loans S 4E0SANT 1000% § E3L09 1000% 26148650 1000% $ 23193434 1000% S 20450014 1000%

(1) In 2005, Sovereign began classifying its residential loans as & component of the consumer loan category to be consistent with industry presentation. Previously residential loans were a separate
loan category. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.

Table 5: Commercial Loan Maturity Schedule

Table 5 presents the contractual maturity of Sovereign's commercial loans at December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005, MATURING e ear Fomelo o Total
Commercial real esiafe foans $ 945,406 $ 2,870,968 $ 3,392,806 ’ $ 7,209,180
Commercial and industrial loans 4,031,697 3,723,482 1,671,287 \‘ 9,426,466
Total $ 4977103 $ 6,594,450 $ 5,064,093 $ 16,635,646
Loans with: ‘

Fixed rates $ 384,507 $ 1,975,362 $ 1,626,322 ’ $ 3,986,191
Variable rates ‘ 4,592,596 4,619,088 3431771 ) 12,649,455
Total ' $ 4,977,103 $ 6,594,450 $ 5,064,093 ‘ $ 16,635,646

Investment Securities. Investment Securities. Sovereign’s investment portfolio is concentrated in mortgage-backed seturities and
collateralized mortgage obligations issued by federal agencies or private institutions. The portfolio is concentrated in 15-year contractual

life mortgage—backed securities issued by Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA"), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(“FHLMC") and other non agency issuers and short duration CMO's. Sovereign's available for sale investment strategy is o purchase liquid
investments with intermediate maturities (average duration of 3-4 vears). This strategy helps ensure that the Company’s overall interest rate
risk position stays within policy requirements. The effective duration of the available for sate investment portfolio at Decernber 31, 2005 was
3.62 years, versus 3.36 years at December 31, 2004.

In 2005, Sovereign decided to increase its exposure to the municipal bond market. Sovereign's strategy is to purchase Aaa rated insured
general obligation bonds which are classified as held to maturity. These bonds have a longer duration but provide attractive after-tax
returns. Management intends to limit the Company’s exposure this sector to approximately twenty to thirty percent of the investment
partfolio. Due to these changes, the effective duration of the held to maturity portfolio increased to 6.21 years at December 31, 2005,
versus 4.67 years at December 31, 2004.




In determining if and when a decline in market value below amortized cost is other-than-temporary, Sovereign considers the duration and
severity of the unrealized loss, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuers, and Sovereign's intent and ability to hold the
investments to allow for a recovery in market value in a reasonable period of time. When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-
temporary, an impairment loss is recognized in current period operating results to the extent of the decline.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, Sovereign determined that certain unrealized losses on perpetual preferred stock of FNMA and FHLMC was
other-than-temporary in accordance with SFAS 115 “Accounting for Certain lnvestments in Debt and Equity Securities” and the SEC's Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 59 “Accounting for Non-current Marketable Equity Securities”. The Company’s assessment considered the duration
and severity of the unrealized loss, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuers, and Sovereign's intent and the likelihcod
of the market value of these instruments increasing to our initial cost basis within a reasonable period of time. Based on the events at these
issuers at the end of 2004 and the anticipated interest rate environment expected‘ in the near term at the time, Sovereign concluded that
the unrealized losses were other-than-temporary and recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $32.1 million ($20.9 miliion after-tax or
$0.06 per diluted share) to reflect the investments at their fair values. As of December 31, 2005, Sovereign held $859 million of perpetual
preferred stock of FNMA and FHLMC which had a net unrealized loss of $13.6 million. These losses are primarily related to liquidity spreads
due to negative events on the issuers of these securities and to a lesser extent market interest rates. These securities remain investment
grade and both the duration and severity of loss are not significant. If the severity and duration of the losses increase or if the securities
become non-investment grade, we may be required to write-down these securities in future periods. In January and February of 2006,
liquidity spreads improved for these securities and as of March 2, 2006 these investment securities were in a net unrealized gain position
of $1.7 million. See Note 6 for further discussion and analysis of our determination that the unrealized losses in the investment portfolio at
December 31, 2005 were considered temporary.

Investment Securities Available for Sale. Securities expected to be held for ari indefinite period of time are classified as available

for sale and are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as é separate component of stockholders’ equity, net of
estimated income taxes, unless a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary in which case the decline is recorded in current
period operating results. Substantially all our securities have readily determinable market prices that are derived from third party pricing
services. Decisions to purchase or sell these securities are based on economic conditions, including changes in interest rates, liquidity, and
asset/liability management strategies. For additional information with respect to the amortized cost and estimated fair value of Sovereign's
investment securities available for sale, see Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The actua! maturities of mortgage-backed
securities available for sale will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay cbligations without
prepayment penalties.

Investment Securities Held to Maturity. Securities that Sovereign has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to
maturity and reported at amortized cost. This portfolio is primarily comprised of m‘unicipal bonds, U.S. Treasury and government agency
securities; corporate debt securities; mortgage-backed securities issued by FHLMC, FNMA, the Government National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA"), and private issuers; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

In the second quarter of 2004 and the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company reclassified $1.4 billion and $2.1 billion of investments
from available for sale to held to maturity. These investments, for which managemént intends and hasthe ability to hold to maturity, had
an unrealized loss at the time of transfer of $46 million and $23 million, respectively. These unrealized losses will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income and into earnings over the life of the refated investment securities. However, this reclassification
does not have an impact on net interest income as the investments are amortized to par over the same period.

The actual maturities of the mortgage-backed securities held to maturity will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. No impairment associated with held-to-maturity securities
was recorded in 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Table 6 presents the book value of investment securities by obligor and Table 7 presents the securities of single issuers (other than obligations
of the United States and its political subdivisions, agencies and corporations) having an aggregate book value in excess of 10% of Sovereign's
stockholders' equity that were held by Sovereign at December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):
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Table 6: Investment Securities by Obligor

AT DECEMBER 31, - 2005 004 2003
Investment securities available for sale:
1.S. Treasury and government agencies $ 1,170,613 $ 1,010,186 V $ 1,449,929
FNMA, FHLMC, and FHLB securities 3,173,818 3,385,090 5,804,507
State and muni&ipal securities 4,468 5,292 | 20,132
Other securities’ 2,909,443 2664811 : 2,483,740
Totat investment securities available for sale $ 1,258402 § 7,065,378 $ 9,758,308
Investment securities held to maturity: ‘
US. Treasury an‘d government agencies $ 106,881 $ 126,654 $ 127,007
FNMA, FHLMC, and FHLB securities ‘ 1,940,582 1,952,010 1,577,107
State and mun?&ipal securities 1,752,739 824,331 754,240
QOther securities 847,425 1,001,324 57998
Total investment securities held to maturity $ 4,641,621 $ 3,904,319 $ 2,516,352
Investments in FHLB stack $ 651,209 § 511,179 $ 344311
Total investment portfolio $ 12,557,328 $ 11546877 h $ 12,618 971

Table 7: Investment Securities of Single Issuers

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 ‘ AmortizedCost  FairValue

Structured Asset Sécurities Corporation $ 1,032,770 ’ $ 1,000,034
Wells Fargo 656,121 V 640,820
GNMA 1,165,836 1,136,591
FNMA 2220841 2,167,418
FHLMC 2,789,161 2,708,781
FHLB ' ' 786001 786,493
Total $ 8,660,330 3 8,440,137

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill and other intangible assets increased to $2.9 billion at December 31, 2005, from $2.4 billion
in 2004. Goodwill and other intangibles represented 4.6% of total assets and 50% of stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2005, and
are comprised of goodwill of $2.7 billion and core deposit intangible assets of $214.0 million. The increase in goodwill was due to the
acquisition of Waypoint that closed during 2005. Caore deposit intangibles decreased to $214.0 million at December 31, 2005 from
$256.7 million at December 31, 2004. This decrease was a result of core deposit intangible amortization of $73.8 miillion in 2005,
which was partially offset by core deposit intangible assets of $31.1 million recorded in connection with the Waypoint acquisition.

Sovereign establishes core deposit intangibles (CDI) in instances where core deposits are acquired in purchase business combinations.
Sovereign determines the value of its CD! based on the present value of the difference in expected future cash flows between the cost
to replace such:deposits (based on applicable equivalent borrowing rates) versus the then-current yield on core deposits acquired. The
aggregate future cash flows are based on the average expected life of the deposits acquired for each product less the cost to service
them. The CDI associated with our various acquisitions are being amortized over the expected life of the underlying deposits, which is
for periods up to 10 years.




Other Assets. Other assets at December 31, 2005 were $2.0 billion compared to $1.7 billion at December 31, 2004. Included in other
assets at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 were $499 million and $431 million of precious metal financings and other assets
associated with our precious metals business, respectively, $337 million and $211 million, respectively, of prepaid assets, $233 million and
$221 million of investments in fow income housing partnerships and other equity method investment partnerships, respectively, and net
deferred tax assets of $215 million and $106 million, respectively.

Deposits and Other Customer Accounts. Sovereign attracts deposits within its primary market area by offering a variety of deposit
instruments, including demand and NOW accounts, money market accounts, savings accounts, customer repurchase agreements,
certificates of deposit and retirement savings plans. Sovereign aiso issues wholesale deposit products such as brokered deposits on a periodic
basis which serve as an additiona! source of liquidity for the Company. Total deposits and other customer accounts at December 31, 2005
were $38.0 billion, compared to $32.6 billion at December 31, 2004. The increase is attributable to Sovereign’s acquisition of Waypoint
and the Company's decision to increase its reliance on time deposit funding in 2005 due to market rate increases on overnight borrowings.
Core deposits increased in 2005 by $1.2 billion while time deposits increased by $4.2 billion. Comparative detail of average balances and
rates by deposit type is included in Table 1: Net Interest Margin in a prior section of this MD&A.

Borrowings and Other Debt Obligations. Sovereign utilizes borrowings and other debt obligations as a source of funds for its asset growth
and its asset/liability management. Collateralized advances are available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (“FHLB") provided
certain standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Sovereign also utilizes reverse repurchase agreements, which are short-term
obligations collateralized by securities fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S. Government or an agency thereof, and

federal funds lines with other financial institutions. Total borrowings and other debt obligations at December 31, 2005 were $18.7 billion,
compared to $16.1 billion at December 31, 2004. We increased our level of borrowings in 2005 to fund earning asset growth.
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Table 8: Details of Borrowings

Table 8 summarizes information regarding borrowings and other debt obligations (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements:

Balance ’ $ 189,112 $ 613,239 : $ 1,793,391
Weighted average_interest rate at year-end 419% 2.76% . 1.13%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year $ 942,799 $ 2827482 % 2,528,000
Average amount dutstand'mg during the year $ 395,940 $ 1,789,931 $ 1,832,662
Weighted average interest rate during the year 3.31% 1.75% 041%
Federal Funds Pi_urchased: .

Balance $ 819,000 $ 970,100 $ 400,000
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 4.18% 2.29% i 0.97%
Maximum amountioutstanding at any month-end during the year $ 1,215,593 $ 1,244,160 - $ 550,000
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 940,100 $ 930,495 $ 217,739
Weighted average interest rate during the year 3.33% 1.62% ; 1.06%
FHLB advances: '

Balance $ 13,295,493 $ 10,623,394 $ 6,755,330
Weighted average ihterest rate at year-end 4.46% 3.80% 355%
Maximum ameunt qutstanding at any month-end during the year $ 14,023,128 $ 10,623,394 ‘ $ 7,443 854
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 12,123,306 $ 9,132,898 $ 5,948,085
Weighted average interest rate during the year 409% 3.79% 494%
Serior Credit Facility: .

Balance » $ — $ 50,000 3 50,000
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 0.00% 3.60% 267%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year $ 300,000 $ 250,000 . $ 120,000
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 151,164 $ 127,295 $ 78,132
Weighted average interest rate during the year 441% 3.30% 6.37%
Asset-Backed Floaiing Rate Notes:

Balance $ 1,971,000 $ 1,971,000 “$ 1,571,074
Weighted average inierest rate at year-end 2.50% 0.54% (0.16)%
Maximurm amount odtstanding at any month-end during the year $ 1,971,000 $ 1,971,000 ’$ 1,573,409
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 1,971,000 $ 1,581,974 $ 936,273
Weighted average interest rate during the year 191% 0.31% ‘ 1.47%
Senior Notes: ’

Bafance , $ 791,916 $ 299500  § 595,790
Weighted average interest rate at year-end ) 4.76% 2.14% . 7.95%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year $ 797,916 $ 815,626 $ 905,715
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 466,088 $ 501,100 $ 660,144
Weighted average interest rate during the year ‘ 4.30% 6.84% 8.02%
Subordinated Notes: ‘

Balance | $ 083§ 213 775,266
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 5.21% 3.94% ‘ 3.02%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year $ 798,535 $ 793,724 $ 785,022
Average amouat outstanding during the year $ 181,627 $ 776,930 $ 514,153
Weighted average integest rate during the year 412% 3.50% : 387%
Junior Subordinated Debentures to Capital Trusts: ® _

Balance $ 876,313 $ 830,756 $ 256,752
Weighted average intefest rate at year-end 8.08% 1.22% 5.79%
Maximum amount out§tanding at any month-end during the year $ 886,434 $ 902,597 $ 256,752
Average amount outsténding during the year $ 877,130 $ 751,781 $ 103,814
Weighted average interést rate during the year 1.38% 1.03% 7.74%

(1) Effective July 1, 2003, Sovereign reclassified these obligations to liabilities.



Refer to Note 12 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information related to Sovereign's borrowings.

During the third quarter of 2005, Sovereign issued $200 million of 3.5 year, floating rate Senior notes and $300 million of 5 year non-
callable, fixed rate Senior notes at 4.80%. The floating rate notes bear interest at & rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 28 basis points (adjusted
quarterly) and mature on March 1, 2009. The fixed rate notes mature on September 1, 2010. The proceeds of the offering were used to pay
off $225 million of a line of credit at LIBOR plus 90 basis points, provide additional holding company cash for a previously announced stock
repurchase program, enhance the short-term liquidity of the company, and for general corporate purposes.

During the third quarter of 2004, Sovereign redeemed $500 million of 10.50% Seénior Notes and incurred a debt extinguishment charge
(net of hedge termination gains of $15.1 million) of $65.6 million ($42.6 million Ret of tax or $0.12 per diluted share). Sovereign funded
this redemption with cash on hand and a new two year Senior Note issuance of $300 million due September 2006 at a floating rate of
three-month Libor plus 33 basis points.

On February 26, 2004, Sovereign completed the offering of $700 million of Trust PIERS, and in March 2004, Sovereign raised an additional
$100 million of Trust PIERS under this offering. The offering was completed through Sovereign Capital Trust IV (the “Trust"), a special
purpose entity established to issue the Trust PIERS. Each Trust PIERS had an issue price of $50 and represents an undivided beneficial
ownership interest in the assets of the Trust, which consist of: ‘

> A junior subordinated debentures issued by Sovereign, each of which will have a principal amount at maturity of $50, and
which have a stated maturity of March 1, 2034; and

7> Warrants to purchase shares of common stock from Sovereign at any time: prior to the close of business on March 1, 2034,
by delivering junior subordinated debentures (or, in the case of warrant exercises before March 5, 2007, cash equal to the
accreted principal amount of a junior subordinated debenture).

Holders may convert each of their Trust PIERS into 1.632 shares of Sovereign common stock: (1) during any calendar quarter if the closing
sale price of Sovereign common stock is more than 130% of the effective conversion price per share of Sovereign common stock (which
initially is $30.67 per share) over a specified measurement period; (2) prior to March 1, 2029, during the five-business-day period following
any 10-consecutive-trading-day period in which the average daily trading price of the Trust PIERS for such 10-trading-day period was less
than 105% of the average conversion value of the Trust PIERS during that period and the conversion value for each day of that period was
less than 98% of the issue price of the Trust PIERS; (3) during any period in which the credit rating assigned to the Trust PIERS by either
Moody’s or Standard & Poor's is below a specified level; (4) if the Trust PIERS have been called for redemption or (5) upon the occurrence of
certain corporate transactions. The Trust PIERS and the junior subordinated debentures will have a distribution rate of 4.375% per annum of
their issue price, subject to deferral. In addition, contingent distributions of $.08 per $50 issue price per Trust PIERS will be due during any
three-month period commencing on or after March 1, 2007 under certain conditions. The Trust PIERS may not be redeemed by Sovereign
prior to March 5, 2007, except upon the occurrence of certain special events. On any date after March 5, 2007, Sovereign may, if specified
conditions are satisfied, redeem the Trust PIERS, in whole but not in part, for cash for a price equal to 100% of their issue price plus accrued
and unpaid distributions to the date of redemption, if the closing price of Sovereign common stock has exceeded a price per share equal to
$39.87, subject to adjustment, for a specified period.

The proceeds from the Trust PIERS of $800 million, net of transaction costs of approximately $16.3 milfion, were allocated pro rata between
“Junior Subordinated debentures due Capital Trust Entities” in the amount of $498.3 million and “Warrants and employee stock options
issued” in the amount of $285.4 million based on estimated fair values. The difference between the carrying amount of the subordinated
debentures and the principal amount due at maturity is being accreted into interest expense using the effective interest method over the
period to maturity of the Trust PIERS which is March 2, 2034. The effective interest rate of the subordinated debentures is 7.55%.

In November of 2003, Sovereign Bank entered into an asset backed $750 million financing transaction with an international bank. In
December 2004, Sovereign obtained an additional $400 million from this institution under similar terms. See Note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion of these transactions. ‘

Effective July 1, 2003, the Company changed its accounting policy for Trust Preferred Securities and reclassified these obligations from
“Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust holding junior subordinated debentures of Sovereign” to
“Borrowings and other debt obligations.” In addition, effective December 31, 2003, Sovereign adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46 which
required the Company to deconsolidate the special purpose entities which issued the Trust Preferred Securities. At December 31, 2005,
Sovereign has outstanding $876.3 million ($1.2 billion redemption value) of junior subordinated debentures to capital trusts. The difference
between carrying amount and redemption value of the junior subordinated debentures issued to the capital trusts is being accreted into
expense over the life of the securities using the effective interest method. See Note 12 for further discussion.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

In March 2003, Sovereign completed a tender offer for its outstanding 8.625% Senior Notes due March 2004 (“8.625% Notes”) and its
outstanding 10.25% Senior Notes due May 2004 (“10.25% Notes”). In connection with the tender, Sovereign repurchased $139.2 million
of the 8.625% Notes and $162.4 millicn of the 10.25% Notes and incurred a loss on this debt extinguishment of $29 million ($18.8
million, net of tax), or $0.07 per diluted share, in the first quarter of 2003. Sovereign funded the purchase of the notés with cash on hand
and from dividends from Sovereign Bank. Additionally, approximately $50 million of 8% subordinated notes matured in the first quarter of
2003 and were repaid with cash on hand.

During March of 2003, Sovereign Bank issued $500 million of subordinated notes (the “March subordinated notes”), at a discount

of $4.7 million, which have a coupon of 5.125%. In August 2003, Sovereign Bank issued $300 million of subordinated notes (the
“August subordinated notes”), at a discount of $0.3 million, which have a coupon of 4.375%. The August subordinated notes mature

in August 2013 and are callable at par in August 2008. The March subordinated notes are due in March 2013 and are not subject to
redemption prior to that date except in the case of the insolvency or liquidation of Sovereign Bank, and then only with prior regulatory
approval. These subordinated notes qualify as Tier 2 regulatory capital for Sovereign Bank. Under the current OTS rules, 5 years prior to
maturity, 20% 'of the balance of the subordinated notes will no longer qualify as Tier 2 capital. In each successive year prior to maturity, an
additional 20% of the subordinated notes will no longer qualify as Tier 2 capital.

The senior credit facility with Bank of Scotland consists of a $400 million, 364-day revolving line of credit at the holding company. The
revolving line provides $400 million of capacity through December 2006. There was no amount outstanding under the revolving line at
December 31, 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005, Sovereign renegotiated the terms of this credit facifity. This amendment provided
for a change in the commitment termination date, reduced the applicable margin and reduced the commitment fee. The commitment

on the $400 million revolving line is based on a 364-day term with an option to extend for an additional 364-day period. The applicable
margin was reduced from Libor plus 0.90% to Libor plus 0.85% based upon Savereign’s Long-Term Debt Rating (S&P/Moody’s). The senior
credit facility subjects Sovereign to a number of affirmative and negative covenants. Sovereign was in compliance with these covenants at
December 31,:2005 and 2004,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. Securitization transactions contribute to Sovereign’s overall funding and regulatory capital management.
These transactions involve periodic transfer of loans or other financial assets to special purpose entities (SPEs) and are either recorded on
Sovereign’s Consolidated Balance Sheet or off-balance sheet depending on whether the transaction qualifies as a sale of assets in accordance
with SFAS No.140,"“Transfers of Financial Assets and Liabilities”.

In certain transactions, Sovereign has transferred assets to a special purpose entity qualifying for non-consolidation (QSPE), and has
accounted for these transactions as sales in accordance with SFAS No. 140. Sovereign also has retained interests and servicing assets

in the QSPEs. At December 31, 2005, off-balance sheet QSPEs had $1.3 billion of assets that Sovereign sold to the QSPEs that are not
inciuded in Sovereign's Consolidated Balance Sheet. Sovereign's retained interests and servicing assets in such QSPEs were $108 million
at December 31, 2005, and this amount represents our maximum exposure to credit losses refated to unconsolidated securitizations.
Sovereign does not provide contractual legal recourse to third party investors that purchase debt or equity securities issued by the QSPEs
beyond retained interests and servicing rights inherent in the QSPEs. At December 31, 2005, there are no known events or uncertainties
that would result in or are reasonably likely to result in the termination or material reduction in availability to Sovereign’s access to off-balance
sheet markets. See Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of Sovereign's policies concerning valuation and
impairment for such retained interests and servicing assets, as well as a discussion of the assumptions used and sensitivity to changes in
those assumptions.

Minority Interests. Minority interests represent the equity and earnings attributable to that portion of consolidated subsidian‘es that are owned
by parties independent of Sovereign. Eamnings attributable to minority interests are reflected in “Trust preferred securities and other minority
interest expense” on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Credit Risk Management

Extending credit to our customers exposes Sovereign to credit risk, which is the risk that the principal balance of a loan and any related
interest will not be collected due to the inability or unwillingness of the borrower to repay the loan. Sovereign manages credit risk in the loan
portfolio through adherence to consistent standards, guidelines and limitations established by the Credit Policy Commiittee and approved

by the Board of Directors. Written loan policies establish underwriting standards, lending limits and other standards or limits as deemed
necessary and jprudent. Various approval levels, based on the amount of the loan and other key credit attributes, have also been established.
In addition to being subject to the judgment and dual approval of experienced ioan officers and their managers, loans over a certain dollar
size also require the co-approval of credit officers independent of the loan officer to ensure consistency and quality in accordance with
Sovereign's credit standards. The largest loans require approval by the Credit Policy Committee.




The Retail Loan Review Group and the Commercial Asset Review Group conduct engoing, independent reviews of Sovereign's loan

portfolios and the lending process to ensure accurate risk ratings and adherence ta established policies and procedures, monitor compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, provide objective measurement of the risk inherent in the loan portfolio; and ensure that proper
documentation exists. The results of these periodic reviews are reported to the Asset Review Commiittee, and to the Board of Directors of
both Sovereign and Sovereign Bank. Sovereign also maintains a watch list for certain loans identified as requiring a higher level of monitoring
by management because of one or more factors, borrower performance, business conditions, industry trends, nature of collateral, collateral
margin, economic conditions, or ather factors. Commercial loan credit quality is considered strong, but is always subject to scrutiny by line
management, credit officers and the independent Commercial Asset Review Group.

Sovereign's loan portfolio composition has shifted slightly as the portfolio was 50.8% consumer secured by real estate, 11.2% consumer
not secured by real estate and 38.0% commercial at December 31, 2005, compared to 49.4% consumer secured by real estate, 12.8%
consumer not secured by real estate and 37.8% commercial at December 31, 2004.

The following discussion summarizes the underwriting policies and procedures for the major categories within the loan portfolio and
addresses Sovereign's strategies for managing the related credit risk.

Commercial Loans. Commercial loans principally represent commetcial real estate loans, loans to commercial and industrial customers,
automotive dealer floor plan loans, and loans to auto lessors. Credit risk associated with commercial loans is primarily influenced by
prevailing and expected economic conditions and the level of underwriting risk Sovereign is willing to assume. To manage credit risk when
extending commercial credit, Sovereign focuses on both assessing the borrower’s capacity and willingness to repay and on obtaining
sufficient collateral. Commercial and industrial loans are generally secured by the borrower's assets and by personal guarantees. Commercial
real estate loans are originated primarily within the Mid-Atlantic and New Englar{d market areas and are secured by real estate at specified
loan-to-values and often by a guarantee of the borrower,

Management closely monitors the composition and quality of the fotal commercial loan portfolio to ensure that significant credit concentrations by
borrowers or industries do not exist. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, 8% and 7% of the commercial loan portfolio was unsecured.

Consumer Loans Secured by Real Estate. Credit risk in the direct and indirect cbnsumer loan portfolio is controlled by strict adherence to
underwriting standards that consider debt-to-income levels and the creditworthiness of the borrower and, if secured, collateral values. In the
home equity loan portfolio, combined loan-to-value ratios are generally limited to 90%, or credit insurance is purchased to limit exposure.
Additionally, purchased consumer home equity loans are generally reunderwritten by Sovereign prior to being acquired. Sovereign originates
and purchases fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans that are secured by the underlying 1-4 family residential property.
Credit risk exposure in this area of lending is minimized by the evaluation of the creditworthiness of the borrower, including debt-to-equity
ratios, credit scores, and adherence to underwriting policies that emphasize conservative loan-to-value ratios of generally no more than 80%.
Residential mortgage loans granted or purchased in excess of the 80% loan-to-value ratio criterion are generally insured by private mortgage
insurance, unless otherwise guaranteed or insured by the Federal, state or local government. Sovereign also utilizes underwriting standards
which comply with those of the FHLMC or the FNMA. Credit risk is further reduced since a portion of Sovereign’s fixed rate mortgage loan
production is sold to investors in the secondary market without recourse,

Consumer Loans Not Secured by Real Estate. Credit risk in the auto loan portfolio is characterized by high credit scoring borrowers
and strong payment performance. The portion of the entire consumer portfolio at December 31, 2005 and 2004, which is unsecured
was .5% and .6%, respectively.

Collections. Sovereign closely monitors delinquencies as another means of maintaining high asset quality. Collection efforts begin within

15 days after a loan payment is missed by attempting to contact all borrowers and to offer a variety of loss mitigation alternatives. If these
attempts fail, Sovereign will proceed to gain control of any and all collateral in a timely manner in order to minimize losses. While liguidation
and recovery efforts continue, officers continue to work with the borrowers, if appropriate, to recover all monies owed to Sovereign.
Sovereign monitors delinquency trends at 30, 60, and 90 days past due. These trends are discussed at monthly Management Asset Review
Committee and Sovereign Bank Board of Directors meetings.

Non-performing Assets. At December 31, 2005, Sovereign's non-performing assets were $205.6 million, compared to $160 million at
December 31, 2004. Non-performing assets as a percentage of foans was .32% at December 31, 2005 which was relatively consistent
with the prior year level of .29%. These ratios are very low compared to our historical levels as the Company continues to see favorable credit
quality. Non-performing commercial and commercial real estate loans increased in 2005 by $20 miilion to $100.4 million; and is principally
a resuit of commercial loan growth in 2005 as nonperforming commercial and commercial real estate loans as a percentage of commercial
and commercial real estate foans is consistent between years. Non-performing home equity ioans and fines of credit increased in 2005 by
$28.7 million to $55.5 million; this increase is due to growth in the average hqme equity loans and lines of credit portfolio of 30%.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Sovereign generally places all commercial loans on non-performing status at 90 days delinquent or sooner, if management believes the
loan has become impaired (unless return to current status is expected imminently). All consumer and residential loans continue to accrue
interest until they are 120 days delinquent, at which point they are either charged-off or placed on non-accrual status. Consumer loans
secured by real estate with loan to values of 50% ar less, based on current valuations, are considered well secured and in the process of
collection and therefore continue to accrue interest. At 180 days delinquent, anticipated losses on residential real estate loans are fully
reserved or charged off.

Table 9: Non-Performing Assets

Table 9 presents the composition of non-performing assets at the dates indicated (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 3}. 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Non-accrual loans:
Consumer
Residential $ 3039 $ 33,656 $ 3819 $ 36,849 $ 76737
Home Equity loans and lines of credit 55,543 26,801 29,370 30,329 24,496
Auta foans and dther consumer loans 2,389 1,220 1,581 2,515 3,536
Total consumer loans 88,325 61677 69,116 69,693 104,769
Commercial 68,572 54,042 83,976 122,504 100,993
Commercial real éstate 31,800 26,757 45,053 38302 18,776
Total non-accrual loans 188,697 142,476 198,145 230,499 224,538
Restructured loans m 1,097 1,235 893 1,280
Total non-performing loans 189,474 143573 198,380 231,392 225,818
Real estate owned 11,411 12,276 17,016 19,007 12,076
Other repossessed assets 4678 4,247 4051 6,663 6,852
Total other real estate{owned and other repossessed assets 16,089 16,523 21,067 25,670 18,928
Total non-performing assets. $ 205,563 $ 160,096 $ 220447 $ 257062 $ 244,746
Past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal and aceruing interest $ 54794 $ 38914 $ 36925 $ 40,500 $ 54,599
Net loan charge-off rate to average loans 20% 36% .55% 58% 42%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets 32 .28 51 B5 69
Non-performing loans as a percentage of total loans A3 39 76 1.00 111
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total loans and other real estate owned A1 A4 84 L1 1.20
Aliowance for credit losses as a percentage of total non-performing assets © 213.0 255.3 148.7 1162 108.1
Allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total non-performing loans 2311 284.7 1645 129.1 1172

(1} Allowance for credit losses is comprised of the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded commitments, which is inciuded in other liabilities.

Loans that are past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest increased from $38.9 million at December 31, 2004 to $54.8 million at
December 31, 2005. Ninety-day consumer secured by real estate loan delinquencies increased by $14.9 million. Ninety-day delinquencies
increased in the auto and other consumer category by $1.0 million.

Potential Problem!Loans. Potential problem loans are loans not currently classified as non-performing loans, for which management has
doubts as to the borrowers' ability to comply with present repayment terms. These assets are principally commercial toanis delinquent more
than 30 days but less than 90 days. Potential problem loans amounted to approximately $57.2 million and $39.1 millign at December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Delinquencies. Sovereign's loan delinquencies (all performing loans 30 or more days delinquent) at December 31, 2005 were $469 million,
an increase from $325 miltion at December 31, 2004. As a percentage of total loans, performing delinquencies were 1.07% at

December 31, 2005, an increase from .89% at December 31, 2004. Consumer secured by real estate performing loan delinquencies
increased from $221 miflion to $338 miltion during the same time periods, and increased as a percentage of total consumer secured by real
estate loans from 1.22% to 1.52%. Consumer not secured by real estate performing loan delinquencies increased from $65 mitlion to $74
million and increased as a percentage of total consumer loans from 1.38% to 1.50%. Commercial performing loan delinquencies increased
from $39 million to $57 million, and also increased as a percentage of total commercial loans from 0.28% to 0.34%. The reason for the
increase in consumer loans, primarily those secured by real estate, arose from chahges in the method of delinquency reporting for a segment
of the portfolio, and decreases in overall credit quality at year-end compared to the robust quality of previous periods. Commercial loans has
increased modestly and is due late payments in the early stages of delinquency and are not necessarily indicators of emerging credit issues.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Allowance for Loan Losses. Sovereign maintains an allowance for loan losses that management believes is sufficient to absorb inherent
losses in the loan portfolio. The adequacy of Sovereign’s allowance for loan losses is regularly evaluated. In addition to past loss experience,
management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance to absorb loan fosses takes into consideration the risks inherent in the loan
portfolio, specific loans which have loss potential, geographic and industry concehtrations, delinquency trends, economic conditions, the
leve! of originations and other relevant factors. Management also considers loan quality, changes in the size and character of the loan
portfolio, amount of non-performing loans, and industry trends. At December 31, 2005, Sovereign's total allowance was $419.6 million.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements: (i) an allocated allowance, which for non-homogeneous loans is comprised of
allowances established on specific classified loans, and class allowances for both homogeneous and non-homogeneous loans based on risk
ratings, and historical loss experience and current trends, and (i) unallocated allowances, which provides coverage for unexpected losses in
Sovereign's loan portfolios, and to account for a level of imprecision in management’s estimation process.

The allowance recorded for our consumer portfolio is based on an analysis of preduct mix, risk composition of the portfolio, collateral
coverage and bankruptcy experiences, economic conditions and historical and expected definquency and past and anticipated charge-off
statistics for each homaogeneous category or group of loans. Based on this information and analysis, an allowance is established in an
amount sufficient to cover estimated inherent fosses in this portfolios. ‘

The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on an analysis of the individual credits and relationships and is separated into two
parts, the specific allowance and the class allowance. The specific allowance element of the commercial loan allowance is based on a
regular analysis of classified commercial loans where certain inherent weaknesses exist, loans regulatory rated substandard through loss.
This analysis is performed by the Managed Asset Division, where loans with recognized deficiencies are administered. This analysis is
pericdically reviewed by other parties, including the Commercial Asset Review Department. The specific allowance established for these
criticized loans is based on a careful analysis of related collateral value, cash flow considerations, and, if applicable, guarantor capacity and
other sources of repayment. Specific reserves are also evaluated by Commercial Asset Review and Credit Risk Management.

The cfass allowance element of the commercial foan allowance is determined by an internal loan grading process in conjunction with
associated allowance factors. These class allowance factors are updated quarterly and are based primarily on actuat historical foss
experience and an analysis of product mix, risk composition of the portfolio, underwriting trends and growth projections, collateral coverage
and bankruptcy experiences, economic conditions, historical and expected dei‘inquency and anticipated loss rates for each group of loans.
Management revises the class allowance factors whenever necessary in order to address improving or deteriorating credit quality trends or
specific risks associated with a given loan pool classification. As a result of continued favorable foss experience and lower charge-off levels in
2005, certain class allowance factors, primarily commercial, were adjusted downward during 2005 to reflect historical and projected loss
rates. Management regularly evaluates the risk inherent in its loan portfolio and adjusts its aliowance for loan losses as deemed necessary.

Regardless of the extent of management analysis of customer performance, pbrtfolio evaluations, trends or risk management processes
established, certain inherent but undetected losses are probable within the loan portfolio. This is due to several factors, including inherent
delays in obtaining information regarding a customer’s financial condition or éhanges in their unique business conditions; the judgmental
nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of economic trends; volatility of economic or customer-
specific conditions affecting the identification and estimation of losses for larger non-homogenous credits; and the sensitivity of assumptions
utilized to establish allocated allowances for homogeneous groups of loans among other factors. Sovereign maintains an unallocated
allowance to recognize the existence of these exposures. These other risk factors are continuously reviewed and revised by management
where conditions indicate that the estimates initially applied are different from actual resuits.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

A comprehensive analysis of the allowance for loan losses is performed by management on a quarterly basis, In addition, a review of
allowance levels based on nationally published statistics is also conducted on a periodic basis.

Although management determines the amount of each element of the allowance separately and this process is an important credit
management tool, the entire allowance for credit losses is available for the entire loan portfolio. The actual amount of Idsses incurred can vary
significantly from the estimated amounts. Management's methodology includes severat factors intended to minimize the differences between
estimated and actual losses. These factors allow management to adjust its estimate of losses based on the most recentiinformation available.

Reserve For Unfunded Lending Commitments. In addition to the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses, we also estimate probable losses
related to unfunded fending commitments. Unfunded lending commitments are subject to individual reviews, and are analyzed and
segregated by risk according to the Corporation’s internal risk rating scale. These risk classifications, in conjunction with an analysis of
historical loss experience, current economic conditions and performance trends within specific portfolic segments, and any other pertinent
information result in the estimation of the reserve for unfunded lending commitments. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments is
included in Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Additions to the reserve for unfunded lending commitments are made by
charges to the provision for credit losses. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments of $18.2 million at December 31, 2005 increased
$0.5 miltion from $17.7 million at December 31, 2004, primarily due to changes in the amounts of unfunded commitments during these

time periods.

Table 10: Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

Table 10 summarizes Sovereign’s allowance for loan losses for allocated and unallocated allowances by loan type, and the percentage of
each loan type of totai portfolio loans (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003 2002 d 2001
% of % ot % of % of % of

AT DEGEMBER 31, Amotnt LOTe:l’tI:lto Amount Lo;r::ltu Amount LoTaolglm Amount Lotaor;:lto Amount Lo;::‘to

) Loans Loans Loans Loans i Loans
Allocated allowances;’ ’
Commercial loans $ 220314 38% § 209,587 38% § 192454 42% $§ 193528 4% $ 161,075 42%
Consumer loans secured by real estate 142,728 51 121,311 48 79,968 4 65,671 4] 59,619 43
Consumer loans not secured by real estate 50,557 1 50,167 13 29,774 14 23,235 15 22,305 15
Unallocated allowance 6000 na 9938  na 13,594 n/a 5384  nma ‘ 12154 va
Total allowance for loan losses $ 419599 100% § 391003 100% § 315790 100% § 288018 100% \;$ 255,153 100%
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments © 18,212 17,713 12,104 10,732 9,514
Total allowance for credit losses $ 437,811 $ 408,716 $ 327,894 $ 298,750 $ 264,667

(1} In 2005, the Company reclassified the reserve for unfunded tending commitments from the aflowance for ioan losses to other liabilities. Amounts presented in prior years have been reclassified to

canform to the presentation in 2005.

Commercial Portfolio. The allowance for loan losses for the commercial portfolio increased from $209.6 million at Decemiber 31, 2004 to
$220.3 million at December 31, 2005 due to 20% growth in the commercial loan partfolic as a result of the Waypoint acquisition. As a
percentage of the total commercial portfolio, the allowance decreased from 1.51% to 1.32%. This decrease was due primarily to decreases
in criticized assets. Additionally, as a result of continued favorable loss experience and lower charge-offs in 2005, certain class allowance
factors were adjusted in 2005 {o reflect historical and projected loss rates which resufted in a reduction of the allowance far foan losses.
During 2005, net charge-offs in this portfolio totaled $27.8 million, as compared to $64.7 million in 2004; and, net charge-offs decreased
from .52% to .18% of the respective average portfolio. Non-performing commercial loans have increased by 24% in 2005 compared to
2004, which was iniline with the 20% increase in this portfolio during this same time period.

Cansumer Loans Secured by Real Estate Portfolio. The allowance for the consumer loans secured by real estate portfalio increased
from $121.3 million at December 31, 2004 to $142.7 million at December 31, 2005 or 18%. The allowance increase is consistent
with the overall growth in the consumer loan secured by real estate portfolio which increased 23% in 2005. Additionally, as a result
of continued favorable loss experience, lower charge-off experience in 2005 and improved credit risk identification, analysis and loss
estimation, certain class aliowance factors were adjusted in 2005 o reflect historical and projected loss rates which resulted in a

reduction of the allowance for loan losses.



\

Consumer Loans Not Secured by Real Estate Porifolio. The alowance for the consumer loans not secured by teal estate portfolio increased
slightly from $50.2 million at December 31, 2004 to $50.6 million at December 31, 2005. The allowance for the consumer not secured
by real estate portfolio remained relatively consistent, due to their being only minimal loan growth in this portfolio.

Unallocated Allowance. The unallocated allowance is maintained to account for a level of imprecision in management’s estimation
process. The unallocated allowance decreased from $9.9 million at December 31, 2004 to $6.0 million at December 31, 2005, due to
the improving credit quality of our portfalio. As a percentage of the total reserve, the unallocated portion decreased from 2.5% to 1.4%.
Management believes the overall decrease in the unallocated reserve is warranted due to improved credit risk identification, analysis and
loss estimation. However, this balance is subject fo changes each reporting period due to certain inherent but undetected losses, which are
probable of being realized within the loan portfolio,

Bank Regulatory Capital

Federat law requires institutions regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision to have a minimum leverage capital ratio equal to 3% of tangible
assets and 4% of risk-adjusted assets, and a risk-based capital ratio equal to 8% 6f risk-adjusted assets. Federal law also requires 0TS
regulated institutions to have a minimum tangible capital equal to 2% of total tangible assets. For a detailed discussion on regulatory capital
requirements, see Note 15 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table 11: Regulatory Capital Ratios 5

Table 11 presents thrift regulatory capital requirements and the capital ratios of Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2005. It also presents
capital ratios for Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. ‘

"

Sovefeign Bank Miﬁimum . Well Capitalized
OTS - REGULATIONS December 31, 2005 Requirement Requirement
Tangible capital to tangible assets 6.84% ‘ 200% None
Tier 1 leverage capital to tangible assets 6.84 3.00 5.00%
Tier 1 risk-based capital to risk adjusted assets 8.21 400 6.00
Total risk-based capital to risk adjusted assets 10.66 8.00 10.00
Sovereign Bancarp Sovereign Bancarp
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Tier 1 leverage capital ratio 6.68% 1.05%
Tangible equity to tangible assets, excluding AQCI? 5.05% 5.25%

(1) OTS capital regutations do not apply to savings and loan holding companies, These ratios are computed as if those regulations did apply to Sovereign Bancorp.
(2) Accurmulated other comprehensive income

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents the ability of Sovereign to obtain cost effective funding to meet the needs of customers, as well as Sovereign's financial
obligations. Factors that impact the liquidity position of Sovereign include loan origination volumes, oan prepayment rates, maturity structure
of existing toans, core deposit growth levels, certificate of deposit maturity structure and retention, Sovereign's credit ratings, investment
portfolio cash flows, maturity structure of wholesale funding, etc. These risks are monitored and centrally managed. This process includes
reviewing all available wholesale liquidity sources. As of December 31, 2005, Sovereign-had $6.1 billion in unused available overnight
liquidity in the form of unused federal funds purchased lines, unused FHLB borrowing capacity and unencumbered investment portfoio
securrities. Savereign also farecasts future liquidity needs and develaps strategies to ensure adequate liquidity is available at all times.

Sovereign Bank has several sources of funding to meet its liquidity requirements, including the liquid investment securities portfolio, the
core deposit base, the ability to acquire large deposits and issue public debt and equity securities in the local and national markets, FHLB
borrowings, wholesale depaosit purchases, federal funds purchased, reverse repurchase agreements, and the capability to securitize or
package loans for sale. ‘



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Sovereign’s holding company has the following major sources of funding to meet its liquidity requirements: dividends and:retums of
investment from its subsidiaries, short-term investments held by nonbank affiliates, a revolving credit agreement and access to the capital
markets. Sovereign Bank may pay dividends to its parent subject to approval of the OTS. Sovereign Bank declared and paid dividends

to the parent company of $750 miltion in 2005, $130 million in 2004, and $610 million in 2003. Sovereign also has approximately
$226 million of availability under a shelf registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission permitting ready access
to the public debt and equity markets at December 31, 2005.

As discussed in other sections of this document, including ftem 1, Business, and in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Staterments,
Sovereign Bank is subject to regulation and, among other things, may be limited in its ability to pay dividends or transfet funds to the
parent company. Accordingly, consolidated cash flows as presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows may not represent cash
immediately available for the payment of cash dividends to stockholders, Sovereign paid dividends totaling $61 miifionito its common
shareholders in 2005.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $29 million in 2005. Net cash provided by operating activities was $1.1 bitlion for 2005. Net

cash used by investing activities for 2005 was $5.0 billion and consisted primarily of the purchase of $4.9 bilion in investment securities
and $6.1 billion of loans offset by the proceeds from sales, repayments and maturities of investment securities and the sale of foans of

$4.6 billion and $7.5 billion, respectively. We also had a net change in loans cther than purchases and sales of $5.9 billion. Net cash
provided by financing activities for 2005 was $3.9 billion, which was primarily due to a net increase in deposits and other customer deposits
and borrowings and other debt obligations of $2.5 billion and $1.4 billion, respectively. See the consolidated statement of cash flows for
further details on our sources and uses of cash.

Sovereign's debt agreements impose customary limitations on dividends, other payments and transactions. These lirits are not expected to
affect dividend payments at current levels, or reasonably anticipated increases.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

Sovereign enters into contractual obligations in the nommal course of business as a source of funds for its asset growth and its asset/liability
management, to fund acquisitions, and to meet its capital needs. These obligations require Sovereign to make cash payments over time
as detailed in the table below, (For further information regarding Sovereign's contractual abligations, refer to Foatnotes 11 and 12 of our
Consolidated: Financial Statements, herein.):

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD Total Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years After 5 Years
(Dollars in thousands)
Borrowings and other debt obligations:
Securities sold under repurchase agreements® $ 191,561 $ 156,329 $ 35,232 $ — $ —
FHLB advances” 14,940,073 8315772 1,852,781 1,591;381 3,180,139
Fed Fun&s”’ 819,000 819,000 — — —
Other débt obligations®® 47261172 410,617 1,695,235 669,119 1,486,201
Junior suborainated debentures to Capital Trusts™2 2,989,535 67,376 135,037 135,457 2,651,665
Certificates of deposit” 12,025,589 9,183,806 2,173,885 438,247 173,651
Investment partnership commitments® 65,337 38238 23,235 ;3,643 221
Business acquisitions* 3,585,371 3,585,371 — - —
Operating léases 545,673 77,843 130,928 éS, 176 248725
Total contréctual cash obligations $ 3942331 $ 22,654,352 $ 6,046,334 $ 2982023 $ 7,740,602

(1} Includes interest on both fixed and variable rate abligations. The interest associated with variable rate obligations is based upon interest rates in effect at December 31, 2005. The contractual
amounts'to be paid on variable rate obligations are affected by changes in market interest rates. Future changes in market interest rates could materially affect the contractual amounts to be paid.

(2 Includes all carrying value adjustments, such as unamortized premiums or discounts and hedge basis adjustments.

(3) The commitments to fund investment partnerships represent future cash outlays for the construction and developrment of properties for low-income housirlg and historic tax credit projects. The
timing and amounts of these commitments are projected based upon the financing arrangements provided in each project’s partnership or operating agreément and could change due to variances
in the construction schedule, project revisions, or the canceliation of the project. '

{4) Amountirepresents estimated purchase price to acquire alt of the outstanding common stock of independence. Part of the funding for this acquisition wil! be recgived from the proceeds we
anticipate receiving from Santander in which they will be acquiring approximately 88 million shares of Sovereign's common stock for $2.4 billion. Santarider has also agreed to provide nonvoting
equity and debt financing in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1.2 billion at prevailing market rates if requested by Sovereign in order to assist with the acquisition of independence. The
acquisition of Independence and the transaction with Santander are anticipated to close in 2006. For additional details see Note 28.




I
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Excluded from the above table are deposits of $26.6 billion that are due on demand by custorners. Sovereign's senior credit facility requires
Sovereign to maintain specified financial ratios and to maintain a “well-capitalized” regulatory status. Sovereign has complied with these
covenants as of December 31, 2005, and expects to be in compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable future. However, if in the
future Sovereign is not in compliance with these ratios or is deemed ta be other than well capitalized by the OTS, and is unable to obtain a
waiver from its lenders, Sovereign would be in default under this credit facility and thé lenders could terminate the facility and accelerate the
maturity of any outstanding borrowings thereunder. Due to cross default provisions in such senior credit facility, if more than $5.0 million of
Sovereign's debt is in default, Sovereign will be in default under this credit facility and the lenders could terminate the facility and accelerate
the maturity of any outstanding borrowings thereunder. “

Sovereign is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of

its customers and to manage its own exposure to fluctuations in inferest rates. These financial instruments may include commitments fo
extend credit, standby letters of credit, loans sold with recourse, forward contracts and interest rate swaps, caps and fioors. These financial
instruments may involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments reflect the extent of involvernent Sovereign has in particular
classes of financial instruments. Commitments to extend credit, including standby letters of credit, do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, in that these commitments often expire without being drawn upon.

Sovereign's exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend
credit, standby letters of credit and loans sold with recourse is represented by the contractual amount of thase instruments. Sovereign uses
the same credit policies in making commitments and conditionat obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. For interest rate
swaps, caps and floors and forward contracts, the contract or notional amounts do not represent exposure to credit loss. Sovereign controls
the credit risk of its interest rate swaps, caps and floors and forward contracts thréugh credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures.

OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMITMENT

AMOUNT OF COMMITMENT amauns Less opan 1-3Years 45 Years R
EXPIRATION PER PERIOD Committed :

(Dollars in thousands) . ‘

Commitments to extend credit $ 14,576,983 $ 7,192,678 $  2.801,764 $ 2,284,686 § 2,297 855"
Standby letters of credi 2,831,958 1128 81929 1158705 105671
Loans sotd with recaurse 7359 — - — 7,359
Forward buy commitments® 2,829,704 2,829,704 — ‘ — —
Total commrcial commitments § 20215000  § 10769564 3621060  § 3444301 2410885

(1) Of this amount, $2.1 billion represents the unused portion of home equity lines of credit.
(2) Of this amount, $2.2 biffion represents commitments to purchase martgage foans in January 2006.

For further information regarding Sovereign’s commitments, refer to Note 19 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Asset and Liability Management

Interest rate risk arises primarily through Sovereign's traditional business activities of extending loans and accepting deposits, as well as

by incurring debt and purchasing investment securities. Many factors, including economic and financial conditions, movements in market
interest rates and consumer preferences, affect the spread between intetest earmed on assets and interest paid on liabilities. In managing
its interest rate risk, Sovereign seeks to minimize the variability of net interest income across various likely scenarios, while at the same
time maximize its net interest income and net interest margin. To achieve these objectives, corporate management works closely with each
business line in the Company and guides new business flows. Sovereign also uses various other tools to manage interest rate risk, including
wholesale funding maturity targeting, investment portfolio purchase strategies, asset securitization/sale, and financial derivatives.

Interest rate risk is managed centrally by the Treasury Group with oversight by the Asset and Liability Committee. Management reviews
various forms of analysis to monitor interest rate risk, inciuding net interest Jincome sensitivity, market value sensitivity, repricing frequency

of assets versus liabilities and scenario analysis. Numerous assumptions are made to produce these analyses, including, but not limited to,
assumnptions on new business volumes, loan and investment prepayment rates, deposit flows, interest rate curves, economic conditions, and
competitor pricing. ‘
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Sovereign simulates the impact of changing interest rates on its expected future interest income and interest expense (net interest income
sensitivity). This simulation is run monthly and may include up to 12 different: stress scenarios. These scenarios shift interest rates up and
down. Certain other scenarios shift short-term rates up while holding fonger-term rates constant and vice versa. This scenario analysis helps
management to better understand its risk, and is used to develop proactive strategies to ensure Sovereign is not overly sensitive to the future
direction of interest rates.

The table below discloses the estimated sensitivity to Sovereign's net interest income based on interest rate changes:

If interest rates changed in paraliel by the amounts The following estimated percentage increase/
helow at December 31, 2005 {decrease} to net interest income would result
Up 100 basis paints 0.58% ’
Up 200 basis points (1.86)%
Down 100 basis points (1.93)%

Sovereign also monitors the relative repricing sensitivities of its assets versus its liabilities. Management attempts to keep assets and liabilities
in balance so when interest rates do change, the net interest income of Sovereign will not experience any significant short-term volatility as a
result of assets repricing more quickly than liabilities or vice versa.

As of December 31, 2005, the one year cumulative gap was (3.87)%, compared to 1.65% at December 31, 2004. As we approach the
end of the Federal Reserve interest rate tightening cycle, management has adjusted its target for managing its interest fate risk position from
asset sensitive {o neutral/stightly liability sensitive.

Finally, Sovereign calculates the market value of its batance sheet, inciuding all assets, fiabilities and hedges. This market value analysis is
very useful because it measures the present value of all estimated future interest income and interest expense cash flows of the Company.
Management calculates a Net Portfolio Value (NPV), which is the market value of assets minus the market value of liabllities. The table
below discloses the estimated sensitivity to Sovereign's NPV ratio based on changes to interest rates.

The table below discloses the estimated sensitivity to Sovereign’s NPV ratio based on changes to interest rates:

” If interest rates changed in parale! by the amounts The following estimated percentage increase/ V’
helow at December 31, 2005 (decrease) to net interest income would resuit ‘
Base 12.38% '

Up 200 basis points 11.82%

Up 100 basis points 12.16%

Down 100 basis points 1237%

Down 200 basis points 12.00%

Because the assumptions used are inherently uncertain, the maodel cannat precisely predict the effect of higher or lower interest rates on net
interest income. Actual results will differ from simulated results due to the timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate:changes, the
difference between actual experience and the assumed volume and characteristics of new business and behavior of existing positions, and
changes in market conditions and management strategies, among other factors.

Pursuant to its interest rate risk management strategy, Sovereign enters into hedging transactions that involve interest rate exchange
agreements (swaps, ¢aps, and floors) for interest rate risk management purposes. Sovereign's objective in managing its intefest rate risk is to
provide sustainable levels of net interest income while limiting the impact that changes in interest rates have on net interest income.

Interest rate swaps aré generally used to convert fixed rate assets and liabilities to variable rate assets and liabilities and viceiversa, Sovereign
utilizes interest rate swaps that have a high degree of correlation to the related financial instrument.

As part of its mortgage banking strategy, Sovereign ariginates fixed rate residential mortgages. It sells a portion of this production to FHLMC,
FNMA, and private investors. The loans are exchanged for cash or marketable fixed rate mortgage-backed securities that are generally sold.
This helps insulate Sovereign from the interest rate risk associated with these fixed rate assets. Sovereign uses forward sales, cash sales and
options on mortgage-backed securities as a means of hedging loans in the mortgage pipeline that are originated for sale.



To accommuodate customer needs, Sovereign enters into custormer-related financial derivative transactions primarily consisting of interest
rate swaps, caps, and floors and foreign exchange contracts. Risk exposure from customer positions is rnanaged through transactions

with other dealers.

Through the Company's capital markets, mortgage-banking and precious metals activities, it is subject to trading risk. The Company employs
various tools to measure and manage price risk in its trading portfolios. tn addition, the Board of Directors has established certain limits
relative to trading positions and activities. The fevel of price risk exposure at any given point in time depends on the market environment and

expectations of future price and market movements, and wilt vary from period to period.

Table 12: Gap Analysis

Table 12 presents the amounts of interest-eamning assets and interest-bearing liabilities that are assumed to mature or reprice during the
periods indicated at December 31, 2005. Adjustable and floating rate loans and securities are included in the period in which interest rates

(

are next scheduled to adjust rather than the period in which they mature (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2003
REPRICING

Interest sarning assets:
Investment securities(1)(2)
Loans

Total interest earning assets

Non-interest earning assets

Total assets

Interest bearing liabilities:
Deposits
Borrowings

Total interest bearing liabilities

Non-interest bearing liabilities
Minority interest
Stockhalders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders'
equity

Excess assets {liabifities) before
effect of hedging transactions

To total assets
Cumulative excess assets

(liabilities) before effect of hedging

transactions
To total assets

Effect of hedging transactions on

assets and liabilities

Excess assets (iabilities) after effect

of hedging transactions
To fotal assets

Cumufative excess assets (liabilities)
after effect of hedging transactions

To total asssts

(1) Includes interest-eaming deposits.
(2) tnvestment securities include market rate payment and repayment assurmptions.

i

/.

Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four Year Five Thereafter Total
$ 3005816 $ 1024807 $ 846235 § 721,301 810116 © § 6325592 § 12,733,667
21,614 575 5 884,698 4,225,667 2,892,382 2,002,888 7,183,637 43,803,847
$ 24620391 § 6,909,'305 $ 5071902 § 36135683 2,813,004 $ 13,509,229 $ 56,537,514
3,013,486 909,465 909,465 ‘ 903,465 909,465 ‘ 189,866 7,141,212
$ 27633877 § 7818770 $ 5981367 $ 4,523,148 3722469 § 13999095  $ 63,678,726
$ 17713844 $ 3351498 $ 2821564 § f 2434510 2172849, $ 9473441 § 37977706
12,590,960 1,137,158 643,756 777,659 417,843 3,153,521 18,720,897
$ 30300804 $ 449865 § 3465320 3212169 2590692 § 12626962 3§ 56,698,603
963,764 — — — — — 963,764
— — — — — 205,660 205,660
— — — — — 5,810,699 5,810,699
$ 31268568 $ 4498656 $ 3485320 $ 3,212,169 2590692  $ 18643321 § 635678726
$ (36346010 $ 330114 $ 2516047 $ 1310979 1131777 $ (4,644,226
(B.71)% 521% 395% 2.06% ‘l 1.}8% (7.29%
$ (3634691) $§ (314577) § 2201470 § 3512449 4,644 226 —
B5.71)% (0.49)% 3.46% 5.52% 1.29% 0.00 %
$ 1168542 § (480778) 3  (838470) $ (108572 5331 § 203947
$ (2465149) $ 2839336 $ 1677577 . § 1202407 1,187,108  $ (4440279
(387% 1.46% 263%, 189% 186% 6971%
$ (2466149) § 373,187 § 2050764 $ 3253171 4440279 $ —
(3.87)% 059% 322% 511% 6.97%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Table 13: Selected Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data

Table 13 presents selected quarterly consolidated financial data (in thousands, except per share data):

THREE MONTHS ENDED Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, Mar. 31,

) 2005 2005 2005 2005 2004 2004 2004 2004
Total interest income $ 799456 & 748466 § 709801 § 6AL056 § 624188 ¢ 585549 § 514644 § 499763
Total interest expense 407,793 352,901 306,926 262,878 237,176 222,599 ‘:182,605 176,947
Net interest income 391,663 395,565 402,875 398,178 387,012 362,950 332,039 322,816
Pravision for loan losses 26,000 20,000 22,000 22,000 27,000 25,000 32,000 43,000
Net interest income after
piovision for foan ﬁoss 365,663 375,565 380,875 376,178 360,012 337,950 300,039 279,816
{Loss)/Gain on investment
securites, net (1,296) 1,675 3,355 7979 {24,728) 20,247 829 17,881
Total fees and other income . 171,465 171,008 158,851 133,435 126,492 108,277 124,246 103,054
General and administrative and
ather expenses 321797 309,456 300477 320,903 287757 366,762 2§Z,G4O 271,734
Income betore income taxes 214,035 238,792 242,604 196,689 174,019 99712 122,474 135017
Income tax provision 48,540 57,749 59,133 50,538 36,590 17,170 41,120 32,790
Net income!® $ 165495 % 181,043 § 183471 § 1461051 § 137429 § 82542 § 131354 0§ 102227
Contingently convertble debt §.354 6344 6,335 6,394 6318 6310 .30 2285

expense, net of tax v
Net Income for EPS purposes $ 171849 § 187387 0§ 189806 § 152545 § 143747 0§ 88852 $ 131654 § 104512

Eamings per share:

Basic $ 046 $ 050 $ 050 $ 040 § 040 $ 025 § 043 § 034
Diluted ' § o4 5 048 5 04 § 038 § 038 S 04 $ 04 §  OR
Market prices k ‘

High § 249§ 72§ 270§ 73§ 261 5 2248 § 210§ 2451
Low 2063 2169 2013 2189 2114 2048 1951 2037
Dividends declared per 0060 0.040 0.040 0,030 0.030 0,030 0.030 0.025

common share

{1) Net income in 2005 included after-tax merger related charges of $15.1 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2005 and merger charge reversals of $5.5 Imillion and $1.3 miliion for
the three-month periods ended June 30, 2005 and September 30, 2005, respectively. Net income in 2004 included after-tax charges of $20.9 million for an other-than-temparary impairment
on certain investment securities for the three-morith period ended December 31, 2004, $42.6 million of debit extinguishment charges and $18.2 million of merger-refated charges related to the
Seacoast acquisition for the three-month period ended September 30, 2004 and $15.3 miltion of merger-related charges related to the First Essex acquisition for the three-month period ended
March 31, 2004. See Results of Operatiorss section of Management's Discussion and Analysis.
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2005 Fourth Quarter Results i

Net income for the fourth quarter of 2005 was $165.5 million, or $0.44 per diluted share, which was $15.5 ﬁillion or $0.04 per diluted
share lower than the third quarter and increased from the fourth quarter 2004 reported amount of $137.4 million, or $0.38 per diluted
share. Several items contributed to the $0.04 decline quarter to quarter. The decrease was due to the flattening yield curve as well as

$5.8 million proxy and related professional fees charged in the fourth quarter and a $6 million increase in the provision for loan losses due
to average annualized loan growth from the third quarter of 11%, as well as a result of increased charge-offs of $3.7 million from the third
quarter. Additionally, the third quarter resuits included a $3.2 million reduction of merger-related expenses. The fourth quarter of 2004
results included the previously mentioned other-than-temporary impairment charge on FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock. The returns

an average equity and average assets were 11.49% and 1.03%, respectively, for the fourth quarter of 2005, compared to 12.61% and
1.17%, respectively, for the third quarter of 2005, and 11.16% and 1.0%, respectively, for the fourth quarter of 2004. The improvement
in year-over-year fourth quarter net income was driven primarily by higher non-interest income of $45.0 million. This increase was primarily
related to higher mortgage banking revenues due to higher gains on the sale of home equity and mortgage loans of $22.7 million as well as
a reduction in investment security losses due to the previously mentioned other-than-temporary impairment on FNMA and FHLMC preferred
stock recorded in the fourth quarter of 2004 and a $17 miftion increase in commercial fees which included $5.5 million of gains related to
the 2005-1 dealer floor plan securitization, See Note 22 for additional details on this securitization.

Net interest margin for the fourth quarter of 2005 was 2.93%, compared to 3.04% from the third quarter-of 2005, and 3.29% in the fourth
quarter of 2004, The decrease in margin in the fourth quarter of 2005 comparéd to the third quarter was due to the flattening yield curve
that was experienced in 2005 which has negatively impacted our margin since the spread between our longer-term assets and our shorter-
term liabilities has contracted. ‘

General and administrative expenses for the fourth quarter of 2005 were $281.8 miltion, compared to $276.9 million in the third quarter
and $257.3 miition in the fourth quarter of 2004, The primary reason for the increases are related to higher expenses associated with
supporting our growing franchise which includes the impact of our Waypoint, Seacoast and First Essex acquisitions.

The effective income tax rate for the fourth quarter of 2005 was 22.7% compared to 24.2%, in the third quarter of 2005 and 21.0%
in the fourth quarter of 2004. The effective tax rate for the fourth quarter of 2004 was benefited by the previously discussed investment
impairment charge.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 2 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion on thié topic.

item 78 — Quantitative and Qualitative @ﬁ&@ﬂ@sms About Market Risk

Incorporated by reference from Part 1, item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Resuits of Operations
- Asset and Liability Management” hereof.

ltem 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Report of Management

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT’S ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Sovereign Bahcorp, Inc. (“Sovereign”) is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of its published financial statements as
of Decernber 31, 2005, and the year then ended. The consolidated financial statements and notes included in this annual report have been
prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles and, as such, include some amaunts that are based on
management’s best judgments and estimates. '

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal contral over financial reporting. The system of intemal control
over financial reporting, as it relates to the financial statements, is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for reliability
through a program of internal audits and management testing and review. Actions are taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are
identified. Any system of internal control, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the possibility that a control

can be circumvented or overridden and misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, because of changes

in conditions, internal control effectiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, even an effective system of internal control'will provide onfy
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation.

Management assessed the Corporation’s system of internal control over financial reporting as of Decermnber 31, 2005, iri relation to criteria
for effective internal control over financial reporting as described in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework”, issued by the Committee of
Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management conciudes that, as of December 31, 2005,
its systern of internal control over financial reporting is effective and meets the criteria of the “Internal Control - Integrated Framework”.

Emst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation repart on management's assessment of the
Carporation’s internal control over financial reporting.

' A

Jay S. Sidhu Mark R. McCollom
Chairman,. President and Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Execrgtive Officer Executive Vice President

Larry K. Davis Thomas D. Cestare
Corporate Controlier Chief Accounting Officer and
and Senior Vice President Senior Vice President
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three yearsiin the period ended
December 31, 2008. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Sovereign’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on cur audits. ‘

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporﬁng the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the financial staternents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2003 Sovereign changed its method of accounting for trust preferred security
obligations. ‘

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of Sovereign’s internal cantro! over financial reporting as of Decembeq 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in “Internal
Control - Integrated Framework” issued by the Comimittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimission and our report dated
March 16, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. ; ‘

Enmit ¥ Young ILP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

March 16, 2006




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
On Effectiveness of Internal Control Cver Financial Reporting

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management’s Assessment of Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that the Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. maintained effective internal control aver financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on the criteria established in (nternal Control ~ Integrated Framework issued by the Committes of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission {the COSO criteria). Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment about the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility
is to express:an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reparting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we ptan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal controf financiat
reporting was maintained in alt material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal controf dver financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contrel, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regardingthe reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and pracedures that (1) pertair fo the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use,or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reparting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. maintained effective internal controf over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, SovereignBancorp, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Sovereign Bancorp as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consclidated statements of
operations, stockhalders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 and our report dated
March 16, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. ‘

St ¥ LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

March 16, 2006



Consolidated Baﬂéime Sheet

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA) ‘ H
p
Asssts \
Cash and amounts due from depository institutions $ 1,131,936 $ 1,160,922
Investment securities available for sale 7,258,402 7,065,379
Investment securities held to maturity (fair value of $4,561,397 in 2005 and $3,889,002 in 2004) 4,641,621 3,904,319
QOther investments . 651,299 577,179
Loans (including loans held for sale of $311,578 in 2005 and $137,478 in 2004) 43,803,847 36,631,079
Nilowance for loan losses (419,599) (391,003)
Net loans 43,384,248 36,240,076
Premises and equipment 412,017 353337
Accrued interest receivable 286,300 226,012
Goodwill 2,116,826 2,125.081
Core deposit intangibles, net of accumulated amortization of $519,380 in 2005 and $445,559 in 2004 213,975 256,694
Bank owned life insurance ‘ 1,018,125 885,307
QOther assets 1,951,971 1,694,220
Total Assets ‘ $ 63,678,728 » § 5448902
Liabilities
Deposits and other customer accounts ‘ $ 31,971,106 $ 32,555,518
Borrowings and other debt obligations 18,720,897 16,140,128
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 49,313 30,542
3
Other liabilities 914,451 570,560
Total Liabilities 57,682;357 49,296,748
Minority interest-preferred securities of subsidiaries 205,660 203,906
Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock; no par value; $50 liquidation preference; 7,500,000 shares authorized; _ .
0 shares issued and outstanding
[l
Common stack; no par vatug; 800,000,000 shares authorized; 382,582,202 issued in
2005 and 350,261,512 in 2004 3,657,543 243810
Warrants and employee stock options issued : 337,346 317,842
Unallocated common stock held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (2,357,285 shares in
2005 and 3,285,872 shares in 2004, at cost) (21,356) @1
Treasury stock (21,606,549 shares in 2005 and 1,200,470 shares in 2004, at cost) 418,734) (19,136)
Accumutated other comprehensive loss (170,798) (108,092)
Retained eamings 2,486,738 1871595
Totat Stockholders' Equity 5,810,699 4988372
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 4§ 63,678,726 $ 54,489,026

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,



Consolidated Statements of Operations

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 2004 2003

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
Interest Income:

Interest-sarming déposits $ 8,756 $ 4,734 $ 2,141
Investment securities:
Avaifable for sale 359,692 501,471 584,697
Held to maturity 189,059 152,680 27,123
Other 18,058 8789 7,126
Interest on loans 2,343,214 1,965,259 1,315,790
Total interest income 2,918,179 222404 1,929,751
interest Expense:
Depasits and other customer accounts 624,590 303,045 320,639
Borrowings and other debt obligations 705,908 516,282 403434
Total interest expense 1,330,498 819,327? 724123
Net interest income 1,588,281 1,404,817 1,205,628
Provision for loan losses 90,000 127,00() 161,957
Net interest incame after provision for loan fosses 1,498,281 1,277,817 1043671
Non-interest income: J
Consumer banking fees 287,448 242 587 208,819
Commercial banking fees 161,110 123,887 107,973
Mortzage banking revenug 89,258 22,508 50,018
Capital markets revenue 17,81 18,943 27014
Bank-owned life insurance 41,285 38,272 43,338
Miscellaneous income 31,837 19821 18,357
Total fees and other income 634,759 468,069 455,519
Net gain on investment securities 11,713 14,229 66,057
Tota! non-interest income 646,472 489 298 521,576
General and'Administrative Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 538,912 448,142 388,750
Occupancy and equipment 246,993 220,673 210,761
Technology expense 84,185 77358 73,032
Qutsideiservices 60,989 53,315 53,436
Marketing expense 52,362 46,523 38,824
QOther administrative 105,763 96,649 87,561
Total genefa! and administrative expenses 1,089,204 ‘942 661 852,364
Other Expénses:
Amortization of intangibles 73,821 72,635 73835
Trust Preferred Securities and other minority interest expense (see Note 1) 23,208 22,006 42,813
Loss on debt extinguishment : 187 63,761 29,838
Merger related and restructuring charges 12,744 45358 —
Equity method investments 43,660 31471 11,498
Proxy and related professional fees 5821 — —
Lease and contract termination charges 3,982 — —
Totah other expenses 163,429 B 157,984
Incom’e before income taxes 892,120 ' 581,222 554,899
Income tax provision 215,960 127670 153,048
NET {NCOME $ 676,160 $ 453552 $ 401,851
Eamings per share: ,
Basic $ 1.86 $ 141 $ 1.45
Dituted $ 3 136 3 138
Dividends Declared Per Common Share $ 170 $ 115 $ 100

Ser accompanying notes to the consalidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equﬁﬁ:y

(IN THQUSANDS)

Balance, January 1, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Change in unrealized gain/(loss), net of tax:
Investments available for sale
Cash flow hedge derivative financial instruments
Total comprehensive income
Purchase payout Netwark Capital
Exercise of warrants, net
Stock issued in connection with employee benefit and incentive compensation plans
Employee stock options issued
Dividends paid on common stack
Purchases of shares for Employee Stock Ownership Pian
Stock repurchased

Balance, December 31, 2003
Comprshensive income:
Net income
Change in unrealized gain/(loss), net of tax.
{nvestments available for sale
Cash flow hedge derivative financial instruments
Total comprehensive income
Stack and stock options issued in connection with business acquisitions
Issuance of warrants, in connection with PIERS offering
Purchase payout Network Capital
Stack issued in connection with employee henefit and incentive compensation plans
Employee stock options issued
Dividends paid on common stock
Stock repurchased

Balance, December 31, 2004
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Change in unealized gain/{loss), net of tax:
Investments available for sale
Cash flow hedge derivative financial instruments
Total comprehensive income
Stack and stock options issued in connection with business acquisitions
Stock issued in connection with employee benefit and incentive compensation plans
Employee stock options issued
Dividends paid on common stock
Stock repurchased

Balance, December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Common Warrants Unallocated
Shares G‘;‘t“o':l‘(‘“ AndStock  Stock Held
Outstanding : Optians by ESOP
W )
261,624 § sz | o$ 0 wig2 § @3
143 2 - —
30627 279091 (91,500) -
253 32,529 (@57) 2387
— — 4,409 —
(536), — — (7,152
(1,281) — — —
293111 1892126 13944 (26,078)
T W50 310 —
- - 285,435 —
8 820 — —
1,022 59,384 (21,156) 2371
_ _ 1,489 —
307} — — —
U775 2349870 317,842 @3.707)
29813 645040 35,636 —
3758 61733 (20,748) 2311
— — 4,616 —
(21328) — — —
353018 § 358 5 M6 § (2139)




Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Balance, January 1, 2003

Comprehensive income:

Netincome

Change in unrealized fgain/(knss), net of tax:
Investments available for sale
Cash flow hedge derivative financial instruments

Total comprehensive income

Purchase payout Network Capital

Exercise of warrants,'net

Stock issued in connection with emplayee benefit and incentive compensation plans

Employee stock options issued

Dividends paid on cammon stock

Purchases of sharesy far Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Stack repurchased

Balance, Decembe‘i 31, 2003
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Change in unrealized gain/(loss), net of tax:
Investments ayailable for sale
Cash flow hedge derivative financial instruments
Total comprehensiye income
Stock and stock options issusd in connection with business acquisitions
Issug of warrants. in connection with PIERS offering
Purchase payout Network Capital
Stock issued in cannection with employee benefit and incentive compensation plans
Empoyee stock option issued
Dividends paid on common stock
Stock repurchaséd

Balance, December 31, 2004
Comprehensive fincome:
Net income
Change in unrealized gain/(loss), net of tax:
Investments available for sale
Cash flow hadge derivative financial instruments
Totaf comprefensive income
Stock and stockioptions issued in connection with business acquisitions
Stack issued in connection with employee benefit and incentive compensation plans
Employee stockioption issued
Dividends paid on common stock
Stock repurchased

Balance, December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to the consatidated financial statements.

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

$ (6,060 $

Total
Stockholders
Equity

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

28,009 $ 1,081,508 $ 2764318

401,851 401,851

— (114,651) —
— 33718 —

(114,650)
33,718
320918
1,776 — - 2,000
— — — 187,581
2881 — — 38,940
— - - 4,409
(28,094), (28,094)
(7,152)
(22.524)

(22524) — I

{21,927) (52,924) 1,455,265 3,260,406

453,552 453,552

— (86,463) —
— 31,295 —

(86,453)
31,295
398,384
1,032,670
285,435
1,180 — — 2,000
8188 — - 48,787
— — — 4,489
(37,22) (37,222)
(6577) — - (6,577)

(18,136) (108,092) 1,871,595 4,988,372

676,160 676,160

— (86,861 —
— 24,155 —

(85,861)
24,155
613,454
— — - 681,575
23,114 — — 86,410
— - — 4616
(61,017) (6L017)
(482.712) - ~ (182712

$ (47187134 $ $ 5810699

(170,798) $_ 2,486,738




!

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 200{ 2003

(IN THOUSANDS) Vr B
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: ; , ;
Net income $ 676,160 $ 453552 $ 401851
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in} operating activities: .
Provision for credit losses ) 90,000 , 127,000 161,957
Deferred taxes ’ 63,013 ; 17334 14,450
Depreciation and amortization . 167,262 ) 161810 156,648
Net amortization/accretion of investment securities and loan premiums and discounts ) 127,880 ) 56,321 29942
Net gain on the sale of loans ‘ (88.435) {27,205) (58,306)
Net gain on investment securities . (11713 (14,229 (66,057
Net (gain) loss on real estate owned and premises and equipment : 367 13 2,289
Loss on debt extinguishments i 187 ) 63,761 29,838
Stock based compensation . 30,404 | 22428 16,314
Altocation of Employee Stock Dwnership Plan 2311 o3 2387
Net change in: // _ .
Loans held for sale : {174,100) . B 244,901
Accrued interest receivable (60,288) . 42y (15,423)
Other assets and bank owned life insurance ‘ (64,015 (264907 451,045
Other liabifities . g4 (24901} 47.570)

Net cash provided by operating activities , L5, ' 564,100 1,323,266
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: ;‘h ‘ ,
Proceeds from sates of available for sale investment securities . 1,601,754 ;5,853,374 2,929,137
Proceeds from repayments and maturities of investment securities: , ‘ .
Avaitable for sale i 2,412,834 ., 1.888103 4,634,956
Held to maturity , 580,928 , 459,345 267,18
Net change in other short-term investments ; (408,836) ‘ {174,987 (30,699
Purchases of investment securities: ‘ ‘
Available for sale ) (35764080 - (5371,243) (9,112,252)
Held to maturity ) (1,306,087} (447,093) {40)
Proceeds from sales of loans , dnin 2,018,868 4,238,758
Purchase of loans ) (6,070.671) {4,573.214) (4,646,739}
Net change in foans other than purchases and sales i (5,886,247} . (2,622,126) {3,144,925)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets and reat estate owned ‘ 23517 22,880 20,625
Purchases of premises and equipment ‘ (98,193) (96,268) (49,419)
Net cash (paid) received from business combinations 280,210 f’ {208,237 —

J ‘

Net cash used in investing activities (4977.009) (3.450,664) (4,392.880)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: )
Net increase/(decrease} in deposits and other customer accounts . 2541521 297,482 494,574
Net increase/{decrease) in borrowings and other debt obligations ) 1,364,210 1,909,988 1,950,686
Proceeds from senior credit facility and subordinated notes, net of issuance costs ) 197,803 1397,710 2012925
Procseds from issuance of Contingent Convertible Trust Preferred Equity Income ‘ ’
Redeemable Securities and warrants : - 285,435 —
Repayments of borrowings and other debt obligations . (350,000) (796,010 (889,640}
Net increase (decrease) in advance payments by borrwers for taxes and insurance : 16,583 11,958 308
Repurchase of trust preferred securities . ‘ — — {188,426)
Proceeds from issuance of commeon stock : 33,383 34,080 31673
Purchase of shares for Sovereign ESOP . — — (1152)
Treasury stock repurchases, net of proceeds . {470,219 (5.837) (17,643)
Net proceeds from the exercise of warrants : — — 187,591
Cash dividends paid to stockholders (61,017) {37,222) {28,094)

Nat cash provided by financing activities J 3,872,246 3,097,184 3,547 302

Net change in cash and cash squivalents ‘ ‘ (23;936) 210,620 (22,312

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ) 1,160,922 950,302 972614

Cash and cash equivalents af end of year i $ 113193 $ 1160922 $ 950302

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

Supplemental Disclosures:

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
(N THOUSA’NDS)

Income taxesipaid $ 12 $ 31964 v § 147678
Interest paid 1,235,694 785,794 704,084

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Non-cash Transactions: On January 21, 2005, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. issued 29,812,669 shares in partial consideration for the
acquisition of Waypoint Financial Corp. During the second quarter of 2004, Sovereign reclassified $1.4 billion of investments from the
available for sale category to the held to maturity category. On February 6, 2004, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. issued 12;687,985 shares
in partial consideration for the acquisition of First Essex Bancorp, inc. (“First Essex"). On July 23, 2004, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. issued
36,176,376 shares in partial consideration for the acquisition of Seacoast Financial Services Corporation (“Seacoast”). See Note 3 for
further discussion.

In 2005, Sovereign securitized $1.1 billion of dealer floor plan loans. In connection with this securitization, Sovereign retained $67.5 million
of securitized retained interested in the form of subordinated certificates, cash reserve accounts and interest only strips which was reflected
a3s a non-cash fransaction between loans and investments available for sale.

On December 31, 2003 in accordance with FASB interpretation No. 46, Sovereign Bancorp, inc. deconsotidated its capital trust entities
resulting in an increase of $54.5 milfion in borrowings and held-to-maturity investments. Also at this time, Sovereign reclassified $2.1 bitlion
of investments from the available-for-sale category o the held-to-maturity category. )



Notes to Consolidated Fi@anciaﬂ Staterments

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Poﬁicies

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Soveraign” or “the Company") is a Esennsylvania business corporation and is the holding company
of Sovereign Bank (“Sovereign Bank” or “the Bank”). Sovereign is headquartered in Phifadelphia, Pennsyivania and Sovereign Bank is
headquartered in Wyomissing, Pennsyivania. Sovereign’s primary business consists of attracting deposits from its network of community
banking offices, located throughout eastern Pennsylvania, New Jersey, New Hampshire, Massachusetts, Connecticut, Rhode Island and
Maryland, and originating commercial, consumer and residential morigage loans in those communities. Additionany. Sovereign purchases
residential mortgage loans and other consumer loans and lines of credit throughout the United States.

The following is a description of the significant accounting policies of Sovereign. Such accounting policies are in accordance with United
States generally accepted accounting principles. ‘

a. Principles of Consolidation — The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, Sovereign Bancorp,
Inc., and its subsidiaries, including the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: Sovereign Bank and Sovereign Delaware Investment
Corporation. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

b. Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

c. Per Share Information — Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average common shares
outstanding, excluding options and warrants. The dilutive effect of options and our 2003 warrants (which were exercised in

September 2003) is calculated using the treasury stock method for purposes of weighted average diluted shares. The dilutive effect of
our warrants issued in connection with our contingently convertible trust preferred equity income redeemable securities (See Note 12} is
calculated under the if-converted method in accordance with EITF 04-8.

d. Revenue Recognition — Non-interest income includes fees from deposit accounts, loan commitments, standby letters of credit and

financiat guarantees, interchange income, mortgages servicing {net of amortization and write-downs of servicing rights), underwriting, gains or
losses from capital markets investment and derivative trading activities and other financial servicgrelated products. These fees are generally
recognized over the period that the related service is provided. Also included in non-interest income is gains or losses on sales of investment
securities and loans. Gains or losses on sales of investrment securities are recognized on the trade date, while gains on sales of loans are
recognized when the sale is complete. Gains on the sales of mortgage and home equity loans are included within mortgage banking revenues.
Income from bank-owned life insurance represents increases in the cash surrender value of the policies, as well as insurance proceeds.

e. Investment Securities and Other Investments ~ Investment securities that the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. Securities expected to be held for an indefinite period of time are classified as
avaifable for sale and are carried at fair value with temporary unrealized gains and fosses reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity, net of estimated income taxes. Gains or losses on the sales of securities are recognized at
the trade date utilizing the specific identification method. In determining if and when a decline in market value below amortized cost is other-
than-temporary for its investments in marketable equity securities and debt instrumenté, Sovereign considers the duration and severity of the
unrealized loss, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuers, and Sovéreign’s intent and ability to.hold the investments to
allow for a recovery in market value in a reasonable period of time. When such a decling in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the
Company recognizes an impairment loss in the current period operating results to the extent of the decline.

Other investments of $651.3 million and $577.2 milfion at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, represent Sovereign’s investment
in the stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Boston and Pittsburgh. Although FHLB stock is an equity interest in a FHLB, it does
not have a readily determinable fair value for purposes of FASB Statement No. 115, because its ownership is restricted and it lacks a market.
FHLB stock can be sold back only at its par value of $100 per share and only to the FHLBs or to another member institution. Sovereign
evaluates this investment for impairment under the provisions of AICPA Statement of Position 01-6 “Accounting by Certain Entities {Including
Entities With Trade Receivables) That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others” and bases our impairment evaluation on the ultimate
recoverability of the par value rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value. Sovereign concluded that these investments were not
impaired at December 31, 2005.

f. Loans Held for Sale - Mortgage loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value on an aggregate basis at the
time a decision is made to sell the loan with any decline in value below its carrying amount charged to the allowance for loan losses. Any
subsequent decline in the estimated fair value of loans held for sale are inciuded as a redu¢tion of non-interest income in the consolidated
statements of operations.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

g. Mortgage Servicing Rights - Sovereign sells mortgage Ioans in the secondary market and typically retains the right to gervice the loans
sold. Upon sale, a mortgage servicing right (MSR) asset is established, which represents the then current fair value of future net cash flows
expected to be realized for performing the servicing activities. MSRs, when purchased, are initially recorded at cost. MSRs are carried at
the lower of the initial capitalized amount, net of accumulated amortization, or fair value. The carrying values of MSRs are amortized in
proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income.

Mortgage servicing rights are evaluated for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” For purposes of determining impairment, the mortgage servicing rights are stratified by
certain risk characteristics and underlying loan strata that include, but are not limited fo, interest rate bands, and further into residential real
estate 30-year and 15-year fixed rate mortgage loans, adjustable rate mortgage loans and balloon loans. A valuation reserve is recorded in
the period in which the impairment occurs through a charge to income equal to the amount by which the carrying value of the strata exceeds
the fair value. i lit is later determined that all ar a portion of the temporary impairment no longer exists for a particular strata, the valuation
allowance is reduced with an offsetting credit to income.

Mortgage servicing rights are also reviewed for permanent impairment. Permanent impairment exists when the recoverability of a recorded
valuation allowance is determined to be remote taking into consideration historical and projected interest rates and loan pay-off activity.
When this situation occurs, the unrecaverable portion of the valuation reserve is applied as a direct write-down to theicarrying value of the
mortgage servicing right. Unlike a valuation allowance, a direct write-down permanently reduces the carrying value of the morigage servicing
asset and the valuation allowance, precluding subsequent recoveries. See Note 8 for additional discussion.

h. Allowance for Loan Losses and Reserve for Unfunded Lending Commitments —- The allowance for foan losses andreserve for unfunded
lending commitments are maintained at levels that management considers adequate to provide for losses based upon an evaluation of known
and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. Management's evaluation takes into consideration the risks inherent in the loan partfotio, past loan loss
experience, specific loans with loss potential, geographic and industry concentrations, delinquency trends, economic ¢onditions, the leve! of
originations and other relevant factors. While management uses the best information available to make such evaluations, future adjustments to
the allowance for credit losses may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements: (i) an allocated allowance, which is comprised of allowances established on specific
loans, and class aliowances based on historical loan loss experience adjusted for current trends and adjusted for bath general economic
-conditions and other risk factors in the Company's loan portfolios, and (i} an unallocated allowance to account for a level of imprecision in
management’s estimation process.

The specific allowance element is calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 114 “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” and
SFAS No. 118 “Accounting by Creditors for impairment of a Loan — Income Recognition and Disclosure” and is based on a regular analysis of
criticized commercial loans where internal credit ratings are below a predetermined quality level. This analysis is performed by the Managed
Assets Division, and periodically reviewed by other patties, including the Commercial Asset Review Department. The specific allowance
established for these criticized loans is based on a careful analysis of related collateral value, cash flow considerations and, if applicable,
guarantor capacity.

The class allowance element is determined by an internal ioan grading process in conjunction with associated aliowance factors. These class
allowance factors are evaluated at least quarterly and are based primarily on actual historical loss experience and an analysis of product

mix, risk ecomposition of the portfolio, underwriting trends and growth projections, collateral coverage and bankruptcy experiences, economic
conditions, historical and expected delinquency and anticipated loss rates for each group of loans. While this analysis is conducted at least
quatterly, the Company has the ability to revise the class allowance factors whenever necessary in order to address improving or deteriorating
credit quality trends or specific risks associated with a given loan pool classification.

Regardless of the extent of the Company’s analysis of customer performance, portfolio evaluations, trends or risk management processes
establishied, certain inherent, but undetected, losses are probable within the loan portfolio. This is due to several factors, including inherent
delays in obtaining information regarding a customer's financial condition or changes in their unique business conditions, the judgmental
nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of economic trends, and the sensitivity of assumptions
utilized fo establish allocated allowances for homogeneous groups of loans among other factors. The Company maintains an unallocated
allowance to recognize the existence of these exposures.




These fisk factors are continuously reviewed and revised by management wheré conditions indicate that the estimates initially applied are
different from actual results. A comprehensive analysis of the allowance for loanr“ losses and reserve for unfunded lending commitments

is performed by the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition, a review of allowance levels based on nationally published statistics is
conducted on at least an annual basis.

In addition to the Allowance for Loan Losses, we also estimate probable losses related to unfunded lending commitments. Unfunded lending
commitments are subject to individual reviews, and are analyzed and segregated by risk according to the Corporation’s internal risk rating
scale. These risk classifications, in conjunction with an analysis of historical loss experience, current economic conditions and performance
trends within specific portfolio segments, and any other pertinent information result in the estimation of the reserve for unfunded lending
commitments. In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company reclassified the reserve for unfunded lending commitments from the allowance
for loan losses to other liabilities for all periods presented. Additions to the reserve for unfunded lending commitments are made by charges
to the provision for credit losses. ;

The factors supporting the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments do not diminish the fact that the
entire allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments are avaitable to absorb fosses in the loan portfolio and
related commitment portfolio, respectively. The Company's principal focus, therefore, is on the adequacy of the total allowance for loan losses
and reserve for unfunded lending commitments.

The aliowance for loan iosses and the reserve for unfunded lending commitments are subject to review by banking regulators. The
Company's primary bank regulators regularly conduct examinations of the allowance for loan losses and reserve for unfunded lending
commitments and make assessments regarding their adequacy and the methodology émptoyed in their determination,

i. Loans - Loans are reported net of loan origination fees, direct origination costs and discounts and premiums associated with purchased
loans and unearned income. Interest on loans is credited to income as it is eared. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination
costs are deferred and recognized as adjustments to interest income in the consolidatedy statement of operations over the contractual life of
the loan wtilizing the effective interest rate method. Premiums and discounts associated with purchased loans are deferred and amortized

as adjustments to interest income utilizing the effective interest rate method using estimated prepayment speeds, which are updated on a
quarterly basis. Interest income is not recognized on loans when the loan payment is 90:days or more delinguent for commercial loans and
120 days or more delinquent for consumer loans (except consumer foans secured by real estate with loan to values less than 50%) or sooner
if management believes the loan has become impaired.

A non-accrual loan is a loan in which it is probable that scheduled payments of principal\and interest will not be received when due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, ali accrued yet uncollected interest is
reversed from income. Payments received on non-accrual loans are generally applied to the outstanding principal balance. In order for a non-

accrual loan to revert to accruing status, all delinguent interest must be paid and Sovereign must approve a repayment plan.
|
Consumer loans and any portion of a consumer loan secured by real estate mortgage loans:not adequately secured are generally charged-

off when deemed to be uncollectible or delinquent 180 days or more (120 days for closed-end consumer loans not secured by real estate),
whichever comes first, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that repayment will occur regardless of the delinquency status. Examples that
would demonstrate repayment include; a loan that is secured by collateral and is in the process of collection; a loan supported by a valid
guarantee or insurance; or a loan supported by a valid claim against a solvent estate. Charge-offs of commercial loans are made on the basis
of management’s ongoing evaluation of non-performing loans.

As set forth by the provisions of SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a ‘Loan,” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan — Income Recognition and Disclosure,” Sovereign defines impaired loans as non-accrual, non-
homogeneous loans and certain other loans that are stili accruing, that management has specifically identified as being impaired.

j. Premises and Equipment — Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
utilizing the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

OffICE DUIHINGS .o oot “ 10 to 30 years
Leasenold IMPIOVEIMIENES .. ...u i ettt e e e et e Remaining lease term
Furniture, fixtures and guipmMENt ..o é to 10 years

LT (e 14 Te] o1 =S RO RPN PP O PR POUPRTOPON 5 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

K. Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned (“OREQ”) consists of properties acquired by, or in lieu of, foreclosure in partial or totat
satisfaction of nop-performing loans. OREQ obtained in satisfaction of a loan is recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value minus

~ estimated costs to sell based upon the property's appraisal value at the date of transfer. The excess of the carrying valug of the loan over the
fair value of the property minus estimated costs to sell are charged to the alfowance for loan losses. Any decline in the estimated fair value

of OREQ that occurs after the initial transfer from the Joan portfolioc and costs of holding the property are recorded as operating expenses,
except for significant property improvements that are capitalized to the extent that carrying value does not exceed estimated fair value. OREQ
is classified within other assets on the consolidated balance sheet and totaled $15.1 million and $15.2 million at December 31, 2005 and

- December 31,2004, respectively.

i. Bank Owned Life Insurance — Bank owned fife insurance (“BOLI") represents the cash surrender vatue for life insurance policies for certain
employees who have provided positive consent allowing the Bank to be the beneficiary of such policies. Increases in the net cash surrender
value of the policies, as well as insurance proceeds received, are recorded in noninterest income, and are not subject t income taxes.

m. Income Taxes ~ The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Under this
pronouncement, deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
canying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates that will apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected o be recovered or settled.
" The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the
enactment date.

Sovereign is subject to the income tax laws of the U.S., its states and municipalities as well as certain foreign countries. These tax laws are
complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant Governmental taxing authorities. In establishing a provision
for income tax expense, the Company must make judgments and interpretations about the application of these inherently complex tax laws.

Actual income taxes paid may vary from estimates depending upon changes in income tax laws, actual results of operations, and the final
audit of tax returns by taxing authorities. Tax assessments may arise several years after tax returns have been filed. Sovereign reviews its tax
balancesfquarterly and as new information becomes available, the balances are adjusted, as appropriate. Sovergign belives that its recorded
tax liabilities adequately provide for the probable outcome of these assessments; however, revisions of our estimate of accrued income taxes
could materiafly effect our operating results for any given guarter

n. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity — Sovereign enters into certain derivative transactions principal’yly to protect against the risk
of adverse price or interest rate movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on expected future cash flows. The Company
recognizes the fair value of the contracts when the characteristics of those contracts meet the definition of a darivative.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair vatue of an asset, fiability or firm
commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges under SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability
in expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash fiow hedges. The Company formally documents
the relationships of certain qualifying hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management objective and strategy for

~ undertaking each hedge transaction.

Fair value hedges are accounted for by recording the change in the fair value of the derivative instrument and the related hedged asset,
liability or firm commitment on the balance sheet with the corresponding income or expense recorded in the consolidated statement of
operations. The adjustment to the hedged asset or liability is included in the basis of the hedged item, while the fair value of the derivative is
recorded as an other asset or other liability. Actual cash receipts or payments and related amounts accrued during the period on derivatives
included in a fair value hedge relationship are recorded as adjustments to the income or expense associated with the hedged asset or liability.

Cash flow hedges are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument on the balance sheet as an asset or liability,
with a corresponding charge or credit, net of tax, recorded in accumulated other comprehensive incorne within stockholders' equity,

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Amounts are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to the
statement of operations in the period or periods the hedged transaction affects earnings. in the case where certain cash flow hedging
relationships have been terminated, the Company continues to defer the net gain or loss in accumulated other comprehensive income
and reclassifies it into interest expense as the future cash flows occur, unless it becomes probable that the future cash flows will not
occur. See Note 21 for further discussion.




The Company, through its precious metals financing business, enters into gold bullién and other precious metals financing arrangements
with customers for use in the customers's operations. The customer is required to settle the arrangement at all'times either in the metal
received or in the fair value of the metal at the time of settlement. We have recorded the fair value of the customer settlement arrangement
as a precious metals customer forward settlement arrangement in our statement of financial condition. Changes in fair value of the customer
forward settlement arrangements are reflected in commercial banking fees.

The Company economically hedges its customer forward settlement arrangements with forward sale agreemerits to mitigate the impact of
the changes in the fair value of the precious metals in which it transacts with customers. Changes in fair value of precious metals forward
sale agreements are reflected in commercial banking fees.

The portion of gains and losses on derivative instruments not considered highly effeétive in hedging the change in fair value or expected cash
flows of the hedged item, or derivatives not designated in hedging relationships, are-recognized immediately in the statement of operations.

o. Forward Exchange — Sovereign enters into forward exchange contracts to provide for the needs of its customers. Forward exchange
contracts are recorded at fair value based on current exchange rates. All gains or losses on forward exchange contracts are included in capital
markets revenue.

p. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ~ For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and amounts due
from depository institutions, interest-earming deposits and securities purchased under resale agreements with an original maturity of three
months or less.

q. Prior Year Reclassifications — Sovereign reclassified its reserve for unfunded comimitments from the allowance for loan losses to other
liabilities. Additionally, Sovereign's investments in FHLB stock have been reclassified from investment securities available for sale to other
investments. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.

r. Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangibles — Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the tangible and identifiable
intangible assets and liabilities of companies acquired through business combinations accounted for under the purchase method. Core
deposit intangibles are a measure of the value of checking and savings deposits acq‘uired in business combinations accounted for under the
purchase method. Core deposit intangibles are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the existing deposit relationships acquired, but
not exceeding 10 years. The Company evaluates its identifiable intangibles for impairment when an indicator of impairment exists.

Sovereign follows the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and performs an annual impairment test of
goodwill. Separable intangible assets that are not deemed to have an indefinite life continue to be amortized over their useful lives. No
impairment charges were reguired to be recorded in 2005, 2004, and 2003. If an impairment loss is determined in the future, the loss will
be reflected as an expense in the statement of operations in the period in which the impairment was determined.

s. Asset Securitizations — Sovereign has securitized mortgage loans, home equity and other consumer loans, as well as automotive floor
plan receivables that it originated and/or purchased from certain other financial institutions. After receivables or loans are securitized, the
Company continues to maintain account relationships with its customers. Sovereign may provide administrative, liquidity facilities and/or
other services to the resulting securitization entities, and may continue to service the financial assets sold to the securitization entity.

if the securitization transaction meets the accounting requirements for deconsolidation and sale treatment under SFAS No. 140, the
securitized receivables or loans are removed from the balance sheet and a net gain or loss is recognized in income at the time of initial sale
and each subsequent sale. Net gains or losses resulting from securitizations are recorded in noninterest income.

Retained interests in the subordinated tranches and interest-only strips are recorded at their estimated fair value and included in the available
for sale securities portfolio. Any decline in the estimated fair value below the carrying amount that is determined to be other-than-temporary
is charged to earnings in the statement of operations. The Company uses assumptions and estimates in determining the fair value allocated
to the retained interests at the time of sale and each subsequent accounting period in accordance with SFAS No. 140. These assumptions
and estimates include projections concemning rates charged to customers, the expected life of the receivables, credit loss experience, loan
repayment rates, the cost of funds, and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. On a quarterly basis, management reviews the
historical performance of each retained interest and the assumptions used to project future cash flows. Refer to Note 22 for further analysis
of the assumptions used in the determination of fair value. |

t. Marketing expense — Marketing costs are expensed as incurred.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 ~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

u. Stock Based Compensation — Sovereign adopted the expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation,” for stock based employee compensation awards issued on or after January 1, 2002, Management élected to adopt this
new method since it believed it was the preferable method of accounting in this area. Sovereign continues to account for all options granted
prior to January 1, 2002, in accordance with the intrinsic value model of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”
Sovereign estimates the fair value of option grants using a Black-Scholes option pricing model and, for options issued subsequent to
January 1, 2002, expenses this value over the vesting periods as required in SFAS No. 123. Reductions in compensation expense
associated with forfeited options are estimated at the date of grant, and this estimated forfeiture rate is adjusted periddically based on actual
forfeiture experience.

For purposes of calculating the estimated fair value of stock options under SFAS No. 123 and for providing the pro farma disclosures required
under SFAS No. 148, the fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Schales optiori pricing model with the
following assumptions:

GRANT DATE YEAR 2005 2004 2003
Expected volatility .280-.293 296 - 317 324 - 348
Expected life in years 6.00 6.00 6.00
Stock price on date of grant $ 20.37-24.10 $ 2037-2272 $  1310-22.97
Exercise price $ 20.37-24.10 $ 2037-2272 $  1310-2297
Weighted averagé exercise price $ 23.22 $ 2256 ’ $ 13.16
Weighted average fair value $ 1.90 $ 8.01 't 476
Expected dividend yield 0.53%-1.11% 45% ~ 55% A2% ~ T7%
Risk-free interest rate 391% - 4.45% 2.80% -4.23% 2.70% - 3.80%
Vesting period in years 5 5 | 5

Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of Sovereign’s stock price. Sovereign utilizes historica! data to predict options’ expected
lives. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yield on a U.S. treasury bond with a similar maturity of the expected ije of the option.

The following table reconciles the required disclosure under SFAS No. 148, which summarizes the amount of stock-based compensation
expense, net of related tax effects, included in the determination of net income if the expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 had
been applied t0 all stock option awards in 2004 and 2003. The results for 2005 did not differ since substantially allioptions granted prior to
2002 were fully vested by the end of 2004.

| | 2004 2003
Net Income, as reported and for basic EPS $ 453,552 $ 401,851
Contingently convertible trust preferred expense, net of tax 21i212 —
Net income for difuted EPS 474;764 401,851
Add: Stock-optioﬁ expense included in reported net income, net of related tax effects 21917 3,081
Deduct: Tota! stock-option expense determined under the fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax benefits (3\,088) (3,667)
Pra forma net inc‘ome for diluted EPS $ 474;593 $ 401,265
Pro forma net income for basic EPS $ 453‘3,381 $ 401,265
Basic earnings pér share $ ;1.41 $ 1.45
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.36 $ 1.38
Pro forma basic earnings per share $ 1.41 $ 1.45
Pro forma diluted;earnmgs per share $ 1.35 $ 1.38

v. Trust Preferred Securities — Effective July 1, 2003, management elected to change its accounting policy to treat its Trust Preferred
Security obligations as liabilities and the associated dividends on the trust preferred securities as interest expense. Previously, this cost was
classified within other expenses since the obligation was classified on the consolidated balance sheet as “Company — obligated mandatorily




v
v

redeemable preferred securities”. Management believes it is preferable to classify these trust preferred securities as a component of
borrowings and other debt obligations because the mandatory redemption features of the trust preferred securities is a characteristic of a
liability as defined by FASB Concept Statement No. 6, versus minority interest or equity. This change in accounting policy did not have any
impact on consolidated stockholders’ equity or net income; however, it did result in an increase in liabilities of $207.6 million at July 1,
2003 and an increase of $8 million in interest expense, with a corresponding decrease in other expense, for 2003. Prior periods have not
been adjusted to conform with this change in accounting policy. ‘

w. Equity Method Investments - During the second quarter of 2004, Sovereign made a $60 million investment in a Synthetic Fuel
Partnership. Soversign is amortizing this investment through December 31, 2007, which is the period through which we expect to receive
alternative energy tax credits. Our investment balance totaled $32.4 million at December 31, 2005. Reductions in investment value and
our allocation of the partnerships earings or losses are included as expense in the line “Equity method investments” in our consolidated
statement of operations, while the afternative energy tax credits are included as a reduction of income tax expense. Sovereign recorded
$28.2 miltion and $20.9 million of expense related to this investment in 2005 and 2004, respectively. We anticipate receiving tax credits
in excess of our recorded investment over the remaining life of the partnership. The alternative energy tax credit is reduced and ultimately
eliminated based on a formula tied to the annual average wellhead price per barrel of domestic crude oil which is not subject to regulation
by the United States. To the extent that the average price of crude oil exceeds certain levels resulting in a phase out and/or an elimination of
the alternative energy tax credits, Sovereign's investment in the synthetic fuel partrership could become impaired. The alternative energy tax
credit has never been subject to phase out. However, recent volatility in oil prices have raised the possibility of a phase out in future periods.
Sovereign will continue to monitor oil price increases in the future and their related impact on our investment and recognition of alternative
energy tax credits. The Company also has other investments in entities accounted for under the equity method including low-income housing
tax credit partnerships.

Note 2 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) issued statement of position 03-3 “Accounting for
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer.” This statement addresses accounting for differences between contractual cash
flows and cash flows expected to be collected from an investor’s initial investment in loans acquired in a transfer if those differences are
attributable, at least in part to credit quality. This statement limits the yield that may be accreted (accretable yield) to the excess of the
investar's estimate of undiscounted expected principal, interest, and other cash flows (cash flows expected at ac¢quisition to be collected)
over the investor’s initial investment in the loan. This staterment requires that the excess of contractual cash flows over cash flows expected
to be collected (nonaccretable difference) not be recognized as an adjustment of yield, loss accrual, or valuation allowance. This statement
prehibits investars from displaying accretable yield and nenaccretable difference in the balance sheet. Subsequent increases in cash flows
expected to be collected generally should be recognized prospectively through adjustment of the foan's yield over its remaining life. Decreases
in cash flows expected ta be collected should be recognized as impairment. This statement prohibits “carrying over” or creation of valuation
atlowances in the initial accounting of all loans acquired in a transfer that are within the scope of this statement, and is effective for loans
acquired in fiscal years beginning after Decemnber 15, 2004, This pronouncement did not have a material impact on Sovereign’s results of
operatians or financial position.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS 123 (R), a revision of FASB statement No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which Sovereign will be required to adopt on January 1, 2006. This statement supersedes

APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock tssued to Employees and its related implementation guidance. SFAS 123 (R) requires that the
cost resulting from all share based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements. This statement establishes fair value

as the measurement objective in accounting for share-based payment arrangements and requires all entities to apply a fair-value-based
measurement method in accounting for such arrangements with employees and nor-employees. Since Sovereign previously adopted the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 in 2002, the impact of SFAS No.123 (R} will not be material.

in February 2006, the FASR issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Instruments”. This statement permits fair value
remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation, clarifies
which interest-only strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 133, establishes a requirement to evatuate interests in securitized
financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded
derivative requiring bifurcation, clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subérdination are not embedded derivatives and
amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a derivative financiaf instrument

that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative instrument. This staterment will be effective for Sovereign for all financial
instruments acquired or issued after January 1, 2007. Sovereign is currently evaluating the impact of this pronouncement.
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Note 3 — Business Combinations

On January 21, 2005, Sovereign completed the acquisition of Waypoint Financial Corp. (“Waypoint”) for approximately $953 million. The
results of Waypoint’s operations are included in the accompanying financial statements subsequent to the acquisition date: A cash payment
of $269.9 million was made in connection with the transaction with the remaining consideration consisting of the issuande of 29.8 million
shares of common stock and stock options (to convert outstanding Waypoint stock options into Sovereign stock options). The value of the
commeon stock for accounting purposes was determined based on the average price of Sovereign's shares over the three day period preceding
and subsequent to the announcement date of the acquisition. The preliminary purchase price was allocated to acquired assets and liabilities
of Waypoint based on fair value as of January 21, 2005. Sovereign is in the process of finalizing these values and as such the aliocation of
the purchase price is subject to revision. (dollars in millions):

Assets :

Investments ’ $ 379.2
Totat toans, net of atlowance for loan loss 25718
Cash acquired, netiof cash paid ' 324.2
Premises and equipment, net ‘ 330
Bank Owned Life Insurance 97.0
Prepaid expensesand other assets 262.8
Core deposit intangible ’ 311
Goodwill A 601.8
Total assets $ 43067
Liabilities

Deposits:

Core $ 1,503.7
Time | 13846
Total deposits 2,888.3
Borrowings and ether debt obligations ' 668.2
Other liabifities @ l 67.6
Total iiabiliﬁes ‘ $ 36241

(1) Includes fiabilities of $11.6 million directly associated with the transaction which were recorded as part of the purchase price. The major components of this fiabifity consisted of $2.9 million
related to branch consolidation, $4.1 miltion related to accruals established for contractual disputes, and $2.1 million representing amounts to be paid to Waypoint senior executives for severance
and acceleration of certain retirement benefits earned by employees at the date of the acquisition.

in connection with the Waypoint acquisition, Sovereign recorded net charges against its earnings for the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2006 for merger related expenses of $16.7 million pre-tax ($10.9 million net of tax).

These merger-related expenses include the following (in thousands):

Branch and affice consolidations $ 2396
System conversions 5831
Retail banking conversion costs and other 8511

Total $ 16,738



|
The branch and office consolidation charge refates to lease obligations for Sovereign branch and office locations that were vacated by
Sovereign in the first quarter of 2005 as a result of the Waypoint acquisition since management determined that these focations would no
longer be required due to branch overlap or the creation of excess office space. This charge was based on the present values of the remaining
lease obligations, or portions thereof, that were associated with lease abandonments, net of the estimated fair value of sub-leasing the
properties. The fair value was estimated by comparing current market lease rates for comparable properties. If the actual proceeds from any
subleases on these properties are different than our estimate, then the difference will be reflected as either additional merger related expense
or a reversal thereof, These obligations will be paid aver their lease expiration terms, which range from 2005 through 2009.

The system conversion costs are related to transferring Waypoint's customer data from their core application system to Sovereign's core
application systems. These conversions were completed in the first quarter of 2005. The retail banking conversion costs consist primarily of
replacing and/or converting customer account data such as welcoming kits, ATM cards, checks, credit cards, efc.

On February 6, 2004, Sovereign completed the acquisition of First Essex, a commercial bank holding company headquartered in Andover,
Massachusetts. The results of First Essex’s operations are included in the accompanying financial statements subsequent to the acquisition
date. Sovereign issued 12.7 million shares of common stock and exchanged Sovergign stock options for existing First Essex options, whose
combined vaiue totaled $209.4 million, and made cash payments of $208.2 million to acquire and convert all outstanding First Essex
shares and employee stock aptions and pay associated fees. The value of the comimon stock for accounting purposes was determined based
on the average price of Sovereign’s shares over the three day period preceding and subsequent to the announcement date of the acquisition.
The First Essex acquisition has added eleven full-service banking offices in northem Massachusetts and nine‘full-service banking offices in
southern New Hampshire to Sovereign Bank's franchise.

The purchase price was allocated to the acquired assets and liahilities of First Essex based on fair value as of February 6, 2004
as follows (dollars in miltions):

Assets )

Investments : ‘ $ 395.0
Tota! loans, net of allawance for loan loss . / _ 1,1835
Cash paid, net of cash acquired ’ (199.0)
Premises and equipment, net . ’ “ 9.4
Prepaid expenses and other assets ) ‘ 717
Core deposit intangible ‘ ‘ . 155
Goodwill 1 : 258.9
Total assets $ 17350
Liabifities

Deposits: ) :

Core ‘ ) $ 7710
Time ‘ 488.6
Tte depss - 1,2656
Bomawings and other debt obligations ’ ) 2370
Other liabilities™ ’ 23.0
Total liabilities ” “ § 15256

(1) Inciudes liabilities of $15.6 million directly associated with the transaction which were recorded as part of the purchase price, of which $11.3 mitlion represents amounts that were payable to First
Essex sentor executives for severance and acceleration of certain retirerment benefits eamed by employees at the date of the acquisition.
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Note 3 — Business Combinations (Continued)

In connection with the First Essex acquisition, Sovereign recorded charges against its earnings for the twelve-month period ended December
31, 2004 for merger related expenses of $22.7 million pre-tax ($14.8 milfion net of tax).

These merger-related expenses include the following (in thousands):

Branch and office consolidations $ 14,202
System conversions 3,160
Employee bengfits and other 5334
Total $ 22,69

The majority of the previously noted charge relates to lease obligations for Sovereign branch and office locations that were vacated by
Sovereign in the first quarter of 2004 as a result of the First Essex acquisition since management determined that these locations would no
longer be required due to branch overfap or the creation of excess office space. This charge was based on the present values of the remaining
lease obligations, or portions thereof, that were associated with lease abandonments, net of the estimated fair value ofisub-leasing the
properties. The fair value was estimated by comparing current market lease rates for comparable properties. If the actual proceeds from any
subleases on these properties are different than our estimate, then the difference will be reflected as either additional merger related expense
or a reversal thereof. These obligations will be paid over their lease expiration terms, which range from 2005 through 2020.

Additionally, Sovereign recorded an additional loan loss provision of $6.0 million pre-tax ($3.9 million net of tax) to conform fo First Essex's
allowance for loan losses to Sovereign’s reserve policies.

On July 23, 2004, Sovereign completed the acquisition of Seacoast, a commercial bank holding company headquartered in New Bedford,
Massachusetts, and the results of Seacoast's operations are included in the accompanying financial statements subsequent to the acquisition
date. Sovereign issued 36.2 million shares of common stock and exchanged Sovereign stock options for existing Seacoast options, with a
combined value of $817.5 miltion, and made cash payments of $256.2 million to acquire and convert all outstanding Seacoast shares and
employee stock options and pay associated fees. The value of the common stock was determined based on the average price of Sovereign's
shares over the three day period preceding and subsequent to the closing date of the acquisition since the final consideration was subject to
change based upon the value of Sovereign’s stock price immediately preceding the closing date of the transaction. The Seacoast acquisition
added 67 banking offices throughout southeastern Massachusetts.



The purchase price was allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities of Seacoast baséd on fair value as of July 23, 2004
as follows (dollars in millions): ’

Assets . ) :
investments ) ‘ $ 692.0
Total loans, net of allowance for loan loss : : 4,052.6
(ash paid, net of cash acquired ‘ 3.2)
Premises and equipment, net ‘ ‘ 56.5
Prepaid expenses and other assets ) 385
Core deposit intangitle : ‘ ‘ 450
Goodwill ) ) 8389
Total assets $ 57153
Liabitities
Deposits: ; . ‘
Core ’ ’ ’ § 24515
Time ‘ ‘ 12029
Toal deposis o 36544
Borrowings and other debt obligations ’ i 1,1585
Other liabilities © ‘ 84.9
Totat fizbiities | - § 48978

{1} includes Yiahilities of $49.9 miltion directly associated with the transaction which were recorded as part of the purchase price, of which $13.8 mittion represents contract termination costs and
$12.4 million represents amounts that were payable to Seacoast senior executives for severance and acceleration of certain retirement benefits eamed by employees at the date of the acquisition.

In connection with the Seacoast acquisition, Sovereign recorded charges against its eamings for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2004 for merger-related expenses of $23.7 million pre-tax ($15.4 million net of tax).

These merger-related expenses include the following (in thousands):

Branch and office consolidations $ 5,201
System conversions ) 6,528
Retail banking conversion costs and other 11,934
Total $ 23,663

The branch and office consolidation charge relates to lease obligations for Sovereign branch and office locations that were vacated by
Savereign in the third and fourth quarters of 2004 as a result of the Seacoast acquisition since management determined that these focations
would no fonger be required due to branch overlap or the creation of excess office space. This charge was based on the present values of the
remaining lease obligations, or portions thereof, that were associated with lease abandonments, net of the estimated fair value of sub-leasing
the properties. The fair value was estimated by comparing current market lease rates for comparable properties. If the actual proceeds from
any subleases on these properties are different than our estimate, then the difference will be reflected as either additional merger-related

" expense ar a reversal thereof, These obligations will be paid over their lease expiration terms, which range from 2005 through 2020.
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Note 3 — Business Combinations (Continued)

The statusiof reserves related to business acquisitions are summarized as follows (in thousands):

First Essex Seacoast Waypoint

Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition Total
Reserve balance at December 31, 2004 $ 15,826 § 51,222 $ — $ 67,048
Charge recorded in earnings at the time of acquisition — ' — 24,681 24,681
Amaunt provided/(reversed) in purchase accounting (Goodwill) © — (27,352) 11,609 (15,743)
Payments (4,682) (8,681) (18,012) (31,375)
Changes in estimates @ (1,305 2441 (7,943) (11,689
Reserve balance as of December 31, 2005 3 9,839 $ 12,748 $ 10,335 $ 32,922

(1) During the second quarter of 2005, Sovereign determined that certain accruals established for contract termination costs and severance on the Seacoast opening batance sheet were no fonger
required. These accruals were reversed which resulted in a decrease to the goodwill recorded in connection with the Seacoast acquisition.

(2) In the first quarter of 2005, Sovereign updated various sublease market rate assumptions related to previous acquisition related accruals tor First Essex and Seacgast which were recorded in
merger-related and integration expense. Additionally, during the first quarter we determined that certain reserves established in connection with the First Essex acquisition were no longer required
and reduiced merger-related and integration expense. These items reduced merger related expense by $1.5 million in the first quarter of 2005.

During the second quarter of 2005, Sovereign reversed $8.2 million as a result of conversion costs and other merger-related items being lower than the amounts initially estimated on the Waypoint
and Seacoast acquisitions. This adjustment reduced merges-refated and Integration expanse on Sovereign's consofidated financial statements, Soversign also recorded a reversal of $0.2 million
related to the Main Streat Bancarp acquisition during the three-month period ended June 30, 2005.

During the third quarter of 2005, Sovereign reversed $2.0 mitlion of Waypoint refated accruals for items that were determined to be no longer required.

Note 4 — Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible Assets

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 142 and discontinued amortizing goodwill effective January 1, 2002, See Note 1 for a
discussion of the Company's accounting policies with regards to goodwill and core deposit intangible assets. Sovereign recorded goodwilt

of $601.8 million in 2005 in connection with its acquisition of Waypoint and made adjustments to goodwill for acquisitions that closed

in 2004. Sovereign's core deposit intangible assets balance decreased to $214.0 million at December 31, 2005 from $2586.7 million at
December 31, 2004. This decrease was a resuit of core deposit intangible amortization of $73.8 million in 2005, which was partially offset
by core deposit intangible assets of $31.1 million recorded in connection with the Waypaoint acquisition. '

The estimated aggregate amortization expense related to core deposit intangibles for each of the five succeeding dalendar years
ending December 31 is: :

YEAR AMOUNT
2006 $ 65765
2007 57,313
2008 42,204
2009 20,399
2010 12995

Note 5 — Restrictions on Cash and Amounts Due From Depository Institutions

Sovereign Bark is required to maintain certain average reserve balances as established by the Federal Reserve Board. The amounts of those
reserve balances for the reserve computation petiods at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $296 million and $199 millian, respectively.



Note 6 —- Investment Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of Sovereign’s available for sale and held to maturity investment securities are
as follows (in thousands):

2005 " Y

AT DECEMBER 31, Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair - Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Gost Appreciation  Depreciation Value Cost Appreciation  Depreciation Value
Investment Securities Available
for sale: .
U.S. Treasury and government _ o
agency securties $ 48507 $ 164§ 47,743‘;‘ $ 54273 % h $ %2 0§ 53921
Debentures of FHLE, FNMA 182,809 2,08 2970 181,937 58397 23 15 58438
and FHIMC ‘
Corporate debt and = ‘ .
asset-hacked securties 105,810 38 105,848 207,129 8928 216,057
Equity securities 967,515 1,231 13,595 985,151 977,285 5,308 1,605 980,988
State and municipal securities 4,758 1 301 4,468 5277 22 7 5,292
Mortgage-tacked Securities: .
U.S. govemment agencies 1,153,497 705 31,332 1122878 954,467 5721 3923 956,265
FHLMC and FNMA securities 2,004,665 1,751 59,626 2,036,790 2,355,521 6,621 16,528 2345614
Non-agencies 2,860,218 1,396 58,077 2,803 597 2,460,567 3,300 15113 2,448,754
Total investment securities ‘ Jh
available for sale $ 7417839 % 7228 § 166665 § 7258402 § 7072916 § 30143 $ 37680 3 7065379
Held to Maturity
Investment Securities: ' ‘
U.S. Treasury and government .
agenty securities $ 1M1 $ 147 % ‘i7,094 $ 4R 3§ @4 % 25 1144
Debentures of FHLB, FNMA
and FHLMC — — — | — 551 | 10 — 5N
Comporate debt and 1
asset-backed securtes 103,954 1] 895 %03,065 36,566 : — — 36,566
State and municipal securities 1,752,739 23,515 17,167 1,758,087 824,331 11,232 8,652 826,911
Mortgage-backed Securities: ‘
US. government agencies 99,640 — 2,864 96,776 115,222 3017 - 7 118,232
FHLMC and FNMA securities 1,940,582 3,505 74,988 i,869,099 1,951,449 10,234 28,758 1,932,925
Non-agencies 743,471 28 17,224 726,216 964,758 3,119 5524 962,353
Total investment securities “ l/
held to maturity $_ 4847627 $ 27055 113285 § ‘4,561,397 $ 3304319 s‘ 27656 42973 3889002

(1) Equity securities are primarity composed of FHLB stock and preferred stock of FNMA and FHLMC.

During the second quarter of 2004, Sovereign reclassified $1.4 bilfion of évailabie for sale securities o held to maturity as management
determined these investments would not be sold and would be held to maturity.

Sovereign Bancorp | 73
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Note 6 — Investment Securities {Continued)

The following table discloses the age of grass unrealized losses in our portfolio as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005

Available for sale and held to maturity
investment securities:

U.S. Treasury and government agency securities
Debenturas of FHLB, FNMA and FHLMC

Equity securities

State and municipal securities
Mortgage-backed Securities:

U.S. government agencies

FHUMC and FNMA securities

Non-agencies

Total investment securities available for safe and held to maturity

AT DECEMBER 31, 2004

Available for sale and held to maturity
investment securities:

U.S. Treasury and government agency securities
Debentures of FHLB, FNMA and FHLMC

Equity securifies

State and municipal securities
Mortgage-backed Securities:

U.S. government agencies

FHLMC and FNMA securities

Non-agencies

Total investment securitiesavailable for sale and held to maturity

$

$

$

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Yalue Losses _ Fair Vafue Losses

176,608 § 3167 $ 8734 § 714§ 215342 § 388
63,748 895 4 — 63,752 8095
858,985 13,535 — — 858,985 13,595
1,141,155 17,468 — — 1,141,155 17,468
1,976,874 57,436 2874801 111,374 l 4851475 168,810
1462615 32,081 1,359,094 43,210 2,821,709 75,301
5679985 § 124652 § 47272433 $ 155298 § 9952418 $ 279,950

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair yalue Losses

60220 % 384 3 — $ — 3 60,220 $ 38
30,904 152 — — 30,904 152
121,495 1,605 — — 121,495 1,605
98,856 1,072 186,295 7,587 285,151 8,659
392472 3,930 — — 392.472 3930
2,330,551 27,027 855,084 18,259 3,185,635 45,286
2078281 18837 68,554 1800 2,146,835 20,637
5112779 ¢ 53007 § 1109933 § 27646 § 6222712 § 80653

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has conciuded that the unrealized losses on its debt securities {which totaled 363 individuat
securities) are temporary in nature since they are not related to the underlying credit quality of the issuers, and the Company has the
intent and ability to hold these investments for a time necessary to recover its cost and will ultimately recover its cost at maturity (i.e. these
investments have contractual maturities that ensure Sovereign will ultimately recover its cost). At December 31, 2005 the unrealized
losses greater than 12 months were primarily limited to mortgage backed securities. In making our other than temporary impairment
evaluation, Sovereign considered the fact that the principal and interest on these securities are from U.S. Government and Government
Agencies as well as issuers that are investment grade (Aaa rated). The change in the unrealized losses on the U.S. Government and
Government Agencies mortgage-backed securities and the non-agency mortgage-backed securities were caused by changes in interest
rates. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Company has
the ability and intent to hold those investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those

investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired.
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The losses on the equity securities (which consisted of 11 securities) are related to breferred stock issuances of the Federal National
Mortgage Association (“FNMA") and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC"). These securities have a combined
effective yield of 8.10% since the majority of the dividends received are tax-exempt. These losses are primarily related to increased
liquidity spreads due to negative events on the issuers of these securities and to a lesser extent market interest rates. These securities
remain investment grade and both the duration and severity of loss are not significant. However, if the severity and duration of the
losses increase or if the securities become non-investment grade, we may be required to record an other-than-temporary impairment
charge on these securities in future periods. 3

Proceeds from sales of investment securities classified as available for sale and the realized gross gains and"losses from those sales
are as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
Praceeds from sales $ 1,601,754 $ ” 5,653,374 $ 2929137
Gross realized gains 20,260 57,581 " / 75,006
Gross realized losses (5,852) 1 (10,338 ) » (419)
Net realized gains $ 14408 $“ 47253 ’ $ 74.58]

Not included in the 2004 amount above was an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $32.1 million on FNMA and FHLMC preferred
stock. Based on the events at these issuers near the end of 2004 and the anticipated interest rate environment expected in the near term

at December 31, 2004, we concluded that the unrealized losses were other-than-temporary. The Company’s conclusion considered the
duration and the severity of the unrealized loss, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuers, and the likelinood of the
market value of these instruments increasing to our initial cost basis within a reasonable period of time.

Not inciuded in the 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounts above were impairment charges of $2.7 million, $0.9 million and $7.4 mitlion,
respectively, related to our retained interests in securitizations. These impairment: losses were due to increased loss assumptions on our home
equity loan, and recreational vehicle and boat foan securitizations. These assumptions were based on a combination of recent historical loss
experience and a forward looking projection of losses based on the credit quality of the securitized portfolio. Additionally the 2003 amount
had an impairment charge of $1.1 million, related to an investment in a pubiicly traded company. We had acquired shares of this entity in
the third quarter of 2002 at $17.89 per share. The investee went public in December 2002. At March 31, 2003, the trading price was
$10.41. We determined, based on the future outlook on the investee's stock price, that it was other-than temporarily impaired at March 31,
2003 and therefore wrote down our book value to that amount.
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Note 6 — Investment Securities (Continued)

Contractual maturities and vields of Sovereign's investment securities avallable for sale at December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

Due After Weighted

%‘ggm@ Pg ggggag&sﬁvﬂ[‘)—ggg Due Within l).ue.Afler 1 Due After § 10 Year§/No Average
) ’ One Year Within 5 Yrs Within 10 Yrs Maturity . Total Yield @
U.S. Treasury and government agency $ 37742 § 10,001 $ — ¢ — § 47743 4.30%
Debentures of FHLB, FNMA and FHLMC 59,817 46,230 75,890 — ‘ 181,937 481%
Corporate debhand asset backed securities 65,026 40,726 94 — 105,346 3.26%
Equity securities ¥ — — — 955,151 955,151 7194%
State and Municipal securities 872 284 2,353 959 4 468 12.60%
Martgage-hacked Securities®:
U.S. government agencies 133,566 471,543 333,119 184,642 1,122,870 521%
FHLMC and FNMA securities 323310 918,711 552,281 242,488 2,036,790 521%
Non-agencies 988,460 1,364,388 351,408 99,341 2,&03,597 596%
Total Fair Value $ 1608793 § 2851883 $ 1315145 § 1482581 $ 7,2§8,402 582%
Weighted average yield 549 % 557 % 5.38 % 7.03% v’ 5.82%
Total Amortized Cost $ 1639435 § 2934771 $ 1341509 0§ 1502124 $ 7,417,839

(1} The maturities above do not represent the effective duration of Sovereign's porifolio since the amounts above are based on contractuat maturities and do not conterriplate anticipated prepayments,
with the exceptionlof the securities identified in nate 2 below.

(2) Mortgage-backed and state and municipal secusities are assigned to maturity categories based an their estimated average fives.

(3) Weighted-average yields are based on amortized cost. Yields on tax-exempt securities are calculated on a tax equivalent basis and are based on an effective tax rate of 36%.

(4) Equity securities are primarily composed of FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock.

Maturities and yields of Sovereign's investment securities classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

Due After Weighted

%ﬁi}mgs‘&c&gﬁgﬁ&gg 2005% Due Within Due After 1 Due After 5 10 Years/No Average
_ ’ One Year Within § Yrs Within 10 Yrs Maturity Total Yield @

U.S. Treasury and government agency $ 120§ 6,121 $ — 3 — $ 7,241 3.34%
Corporate debt and asset backed securities {(1,071) 5413 10,449 89,163 103,954 6.92%
State and Municipal securities 5,317 27,505 1,587,648 132,269 1,752,789 6.63%
Mortgage-backed Securities®
1S, government agencies 8,553 29,492 25,738 35857 99,640 454%
FHLMC and FNMA securities 316,530 847,899 548,115 228,038 1,940,582 4.79%
Non-agencies 209,430 383,097 96,754 54,230 743 471 537%
Total Amortized Cost $ 539879 & 1299487 § 2268704 § 539,557 $ 4647627 5.61%
Weighted-average yield ®! 5.03% 4.99% 6.11% 5.56% 5.61%
Total Fair Value _ $ 533,649 $ 1,223,772 § 2270700 3 533,276 § 4561397

(1) The maturities above do not represent the effective duration of Sovereign's portfolio since the amounts above are based on contractual maturities and do not contemplate gnticipated prepayments,
with the exception of the securities identified in note 2 below.

(2) Mortgage-backed and state and municipat securities are assigned 1o raturity categories based on their estimated average lives.

(3) Weighted-average yields are based on amortized cost. Yields on tax-exempt securities are calculated on a tax equivalent basis and are based on an effective tax rate of 35%.

Nontaxable interest and dividend income eamed on investment securities was $95.2 miflion, $75.4 million and $44.6 million for years
ended December 31,.2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Tax expense related to net realized gains and losses from sales of investment
securities for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $5.0 million, $16.5 million and $26.1 million, respectively.
Investment securities with an estimated fair value of $9.1 biflion and $8.8 billion were pledged as collateral for borrowings, standby letters of
credit, interest rate agreements and public deposits at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.



Note 7 — Loans

A summary of loans included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets is as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
Commercial real estate loans® 8 7,209,180 $ 5,824,133
Commercial and industrial loans® ‘ 9,426,466 8,040,107
Total Commercial Loans ” 16,635,646 13,864,200
Residential mortgages 12,462,802 8,497,496
Home equity loans and lines of credit ' 9,793,124 9,577,656
Total consumer loans secured by real estate . 22,255,928 18,075,152
Auto loans | 4434021 4,205,547
Other ‘ 478,254 486,140
Total Consumer Loans ‘ 27,168,2d1 22,766,839
Total Loans® $ 43,803,847 $ 36631079
Total Loans with:

Fixed rate . $ 26,141,411 $ 21145915
Variable rate ‘ 17,662,436 15,485,164
Total Loans® $ 43,303,847 ' $ 36631079

1} Includes multifaraily loans of $474.6 million and $463.4 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectivaly.
(2) Includes automative floor plan loans of $446.5 million and $868.8 miiltion at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(3) Loan totats include deferred loan arigination costs, net of deferred (oan fees and unamartized purchase premiumis, net of discounts. These items resulted in a net increase in loans of
$312.8 million and $296.8 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Loans pledged as collateral for borrowings totaled $15.8 billion and $13.3 bitlion at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. '

(4) In 2005 Sovereign began classifying its residential loans as a component of the consumer foan category to be consistent with industry presentation. Previously residentiat loans were a separate
loan category. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Loans to related parties include loans made to certain officers, directors and their affiliated interests. These loans were made on terms similar
to non-related parties. The following table discloses the changes in Sovereign's related party loan balances since December 31, 2004,

Related party loans at December 31, 2004 | ’ $53,348
Additons : | 55,540
Reductions | ‘ (56,874)
Related party loans at December 31, 2005 : y $58,014

i

Related party loans at December 31, 2005 included commercial loans to Sovereign Bank Board of Directors affiliated businesses of
$42.1 million compared with $38.6 million at December 31, 2004. Related party loans also included commercial loans to affiliated
businesses for Directors of both Sovereign Bancorp and Sovereign Bank of $11.8 million at December 31, 2005 compared with $17.1
million at December 31, 2004.

Related party loans at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 also included consumer loans secured by residential real estate of
$4.1 million and $3.6 miltion, respectively to executive officers and Sovereign Bancorp Board of Directors.

Related party loans do not include undrawn commercial and consumer lines of credit that totaled $47.8 million and $24.7 million
at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. The majority of these amounts ($43.9 million and $21.7 million at
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004) are on undrawn commercial lines of credit for individuals who are only Directors of
Sovereign Bank. ‘
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Note 7 — Loans (Continued)

The activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
Balance, beginning of period $ 391,003 $ 315790 $ 288018
Allowance acquired from acquisitions 28,718 64,105 —
Provision for loan losses 89,501 121,391 ’ 160,585
Allowance released in connection with dealer floor plan securitization (8,010 — ‘ —
Charge-offs: |

Commercial 40,935 77499 101,597
Consumer secured bj/ rea) estate 24125 12,219 16,685
Consumer not secured by real estate 71,906 63,530 V 47,106
Total charge-offs 136,966 153,248 ’ 165,388
Recaveries:

Commercial 13,100 12,825 7,531
Consumer secured t;y real estate 7,085 5,395 6,405
Consumer not securéd by real estate 35,108 24,745 ‘ 18,639
Total recoveries 55,293 42,965 ’ 32,575
Charge-offs, net of recoveries 81,673 110,283 : 132,813
Allowance for loan losses balance, end of period $ 419,599 $ 391,003 $ 315790
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments, beginning of period 17,713 12,104 10,732
Provision for unfunded lending commitments 499 5,609 1,372
Reserve for unfunded lending commitments, end of period 18,212 17713 12,104
Total allowance for ¢redit losses $ 431811 $ 408716 $ 327,894

In 2005, the Company reclassified the reserve for unfunded lending commitments from the ailowance for loan losses to other liabilities.
Amounts preserited in prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Impaired, non-performing, and past due loans are summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
tmpaired loans with a related allowance $ 214,686 ‘ $ 209,798
Impaired loans without a related allowance — ‘ —
Total impaired [6ans $ 214,686 § 709,798
Aflowanice for impaired loans $ 48,663 $ 39,711
Total Non-accrual loans $ 188,697 $ 169,116
Total loans past dug 90 days as to interest or principal and accruing interest $ 54794 $ 38914




Note 8 — Mortgage Servicing Rights
At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, Sovereign serviced residential real estate loans for the benefit of others totaling $7.2 billion,
$6.3 billion, and $6.5 billion, respectively. The following table presents a sumrﬁary of the activity of the asset established for Sovereign's
mortgage servicing rights for the years indicated (in thousands). See discussion'of Sovereign's accounting policy for mortgage servicing
rights in Note 1. Sovereign had gains on the sales of mortgage loans and morigage backed securities that were related to loans originated or
purchased and held by Sovereign of $46.6 million, $25.8 million, and $57.8 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively,

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2005 2004 2003
Gross balance, beginning of year 81,040 89,546 “ $ 79,450
Martgage servicing assets recognized 25715 17,399 49,941
Servicing rights achired ERUL - —
Amortization (17,578) {18,395) ) (27.398)
Write-off of servicing assets (1,123) (7,110) (12,347
Gross balance, end of year 91,073 81,040 89,646
Valuation allowance {16 {2083) (12,400)
Balance, end of year 91,057 . $ 73,957 $ 77,246

The fair value of our mortgage servicing rights is estimated using a discounted cash flow model. This model estimates the present value of the
future net cash flows of the servicing portfolio based on various assumptions. The most important assumptions in the valuation of mortgage
servicing rights are anticipated loan prepayment rates (CPR speed) and the positivé spread we receive on holding escrow related balances.
Increases in prepayment speeds result in lower valuations of mortgage servicing rights. The escrow related credit spread is the estimated
reinvestment yield earned on the serviced loan escrow deposits. Increases in escrow related credit spreads result in higher valuations of
mortgage servicing rights. For each of these items, Sovereign must make assumptions based on future expectations. Al of the assumptions are
based on standards that we believe would be utilized by market participants in valuing mortgage servicing rights and are consistently derived
and/or benchmarked against independent public sources. Additionally, an independent appraisal of the fair value of our mortgage servicing
rights is obtained annually and is used by management to evaluate the reasonableness of our discounted cash flow model.

Listed below are the most significant assumptions that were utilized by Sovereign |n its evaluation of mortgage servicing right for
the periods presented. \

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
CPR speed 4% 1853% 1951%
Escrow credit spread 4.16% 3.92% 4.00%

A valuation allowance is established for the excess of the cost of each mortgage servicing asset stratum over its estimated fair vatue. Activity
in the valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights for the years indicated consisted of the foliowing (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004

2003
Balance, beginning of pariod $ 7,083 $ 12,400 $ 23952
Write-offs of reserves 1y (7,110 ‘ (12,347)
Increase/(decrease) in valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights (5,944) ‘ 1793 ‘ 795
Baance, end of year $ 16 ‘ $

7,083 $ 12,400
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Note 8 — Mortgage Servicing Rights {Continued)

During 2005, 2004 and 2003 Sovereign wrote off $1.1 million, $7.1 million and $12.3 million of mortgage servicing rights due to the
realization that certain loan stratas had become permanently impaired. Each reporting period, Sovereign analyzes each loan stfatification’s current
book value compared against its initial servicing value. A determination is then made as to whether this decline is permanent by analyzing various
factors such as the duration of the impairment and our expectation of future assumptions that impact the fair value of the loart strata. If the
impairment is deemed permanent the mortgage servicing asset is written off against the mortgage servicing valuation reserve,

Additionally, during 2005 Sovereign sold $1.4 billion of home equity loans while retaining servicing, Sovereign recognized preltax gains of
$32.1 miflion which were recorded in mortgage banking revenues and recorded servicing assets of $3.9 miffion in connection with these sales.

Note 9 — Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,‘ 2005 ‘2004
Land $ 29428 $ 24,439
Office buildings 172,997 153,661
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 360,580 307,649
Leasehold improvements 163,175 ' 124,500
Automabites and other 3,509 1,585
729,689 611,834
Less accumulated depreciation (317,622 : (258,497}
Total premises and equipment $ 412,017 $ 353,337

Included in occupancy and equipment expense for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was depreciation expenses of $68.3 miltion, $60.6 million and
$52.7 million, respectively. ’

Note 10 - Accrued Interest Receivable

Accrued interest receivable is summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004

Accrued interest réceivabie on:
Investment securities $ 16,326 $ 51,977
Loans 209,974 174,035

Total interest recsivable $ 286,300 $ ‘ 226,012




Note 11 — Deposits

Deposits are summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005
Balance Percent . Rate Balance

Demand deposit accounts $ 5,331,659 14% —% $ - 5,087,531

NOW accounts 8,844,875 23 2.07 7,838,584

Customer repurchase agreements 1,012,574 3 311 $37,643

Savings accounts 3,460,292 9 0.79 3,807,099

Money market accounts 7,989,846 21 2.21 7,870,288

Certificates of deposit 11,338,460 30 ” 3.79 7,114 373

Total deposits $ 31,971,106 100% 2.25% $ 32,555,518
Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004

NOW accounts $ 153217 $ 56,503

Customer repurchase agreements 24,230 7,462

Savings accounts 25,347 19,417

Money market accounts 131,354 81992

Certificates of deposit 290,382 137,671

Total interest expense on deposits $ 624590 $ 303,045

2004

Percent
15%

24

3

12

24

2

100%

2003

$ 50,398
7,154

22,403

68,458
172,276

$_ 320689

Rate
—%
0.98
1.44
0.61
1.24

232
1.15%

The following table sets forth the maturity of Sovereign'’s certificates of deposit of $100 000 or more at December 31, 2005 as scheduled to

mature contractually (in thousands):

Three months or less

Qver three through six months
QOver six thraugh twelve months
QOver twelve months

Total

i

$ 2,155,318
957,026

1,630,217
931,255

$ 5,673,876

The following table sets forth the maturity of all of Sovereign's certificates of deposit at December 31, 2005 as scheduled to mature

contractually (in thousands):

2006
2007
2008
2008
2010
Thereafter
Total

$ 8,877,957
1,407,360
583,547

330,991

71,281

67,724

$_ 11338460

Deposits collateralized by investment securities, loans, and other financial instruments totaled $2.8 billion and $3.2 billion at December 31,

2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
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Note 12 — Borrowings and Other Debt Obligations

The following table presents information regarding Sovereign Bank and Holding Company borrowings and other debt obligations at the dates
indicated (in thousands). All Sovereign Bank obligations have priority over Holding Company obligations:

2005 2004
Sovereign Bank barrowings and other debt obligations: ’
Securities sold undér repurchase agreements $ 189,112 4.19% $ 613,239 2.76%
Overnight federal funds purchased 819,000 414 970,100 2.29
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances, maturing through February 2013 13,295,493 446 10,623,394 3.30
Asset-backed f!oatfng rate notes, due April 2013 821,000 475 821,000 2.78
Asset-backed secured financing, due November 2008 1,150,000 0.90 1,150,000 (1.06)
5.125% subordinated debentures, due March 2013 472,291 5.82 482,392 3.66
4.375% subordinafed debentures, due August 2013 299,772 440 299,747 440
Holding company borrowings and other debt obligations:
Senior credit facility, December 2006 — 0.00 SQ,OOO 3.60
4.80% senior notes, due September 2010 298,520 4.80 — 0.00
Floating rate seniorinotes, due September 2006 299,800 476 299,500 2.74
Floating rate seniornotes, due March 2009 199,596 470 ’ — 0.00
Sunior subordinate({ debentures due to Capital Trust Entities 876,313 8.09 83q,7 56 722
Total borrowings and other debt obligations $ 18,720,897 4.45% $ 16,140,128 3.43%

Included in borrowings and other debt obligations are sales of securities under repurchase agreements. Repurchase agreements are treated

as financings with the obligations to repurchase securities sold reflected as a liability in the balance sheet. The dollar amount of securities
underlying the agreements remains recorded as an asset, although the securities underlying the agreements are delivered to the brokers who
arranged the transactions. In certain instances, the broker may have sold, loaned, or dispased of the securities to other parties in the normal
course of their operations, and have agreed to deliver to Sovereign substantially similar securities at the maturity of the agreements. The broker/
dealers who participate with Sovereign in these agreements are primarily broker/dealers reporting to the Federal ReserveiBank of New York.

FHLB advancesiare collateralized by qualifying mortgage-related assets as defined by the FHLB.

During the third quarter of 2005, Sovereign issued $200 million of 3.5 year, floating rate senior notes and $300 millian of 5 year, fixed rate
senior notes at 4.80%. The floating rate notes bear interest at a rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 28 basis points (adjusted quarterly) and mature
on March 1, 2009. The fixed rate notes mature on September 1, 2010. The proceeds of the offering were used to pay; off $225 million of a
fine of credit at LIBOR plus 90 basis points, provide additionat holding company cash for a previously announced stock repurchase program,
enhance the short-term liquidity of the company, and for general corporate purposes.

During the third quarter of 2004, Sovereign redeemed $500 million of 10.50% Senior Notes and incurred a debt extinguishment charge
(net of hedge termination gains of $15.1 million) of $65.6 million {$42.6 miltion net of tax or $0.12 per diluted share). Sovereign funded
this redemption with cash on hand and a new two year Senior Note issuance of $300 million due September 2006 at;a floating rate of
three-month Libor plus 33 basis points.

On February 26, 2004, Sovereign issued $700 million of Contingent Convertible Trust Preferred Equity Income Redeerable Securities
(“PIERS"). On March 8, 2004, Sovereign raised an additional $100 million of PIERS under this offering. The offering was completed
through Sovereign Capital Trust IV (the “Trust”), a special purpose entity established to issue the PIERS. Each PIERS had an issue price of
$50 and represents an undivided beneficial ownership interest in the assets of the Trust, which consist of:

= Junior subordinated debentures issued by Sovereign with a distribution rate of 4.375% per annum on the $50.00 issue
price, and each of which will have a principal amount at maturity of $50 and a stated maturity of March 1, 2034; and

S Warrants to purchase shares of Sovereign common stock from Sovereign at any time prior to the close of business on
March 1, 2034, by delivering junior subordinated debentures (or, in the case of warrant exercises before March 5, 2007,
cash equal to the accreted principal amount of & junior subordinated debenture).

e




Holders may convert each of their PIERS into 1.632 shares of Sovereign commaon stack: (1) during any calendar quarter if the closing sale
price of Sovereign common stock is more than 130% of the effective conversion price per share of Sovereign common stock over a specified
measurement pericd; (2) prior to March 1, 2029, during the five-business-day period following any 10-consecutive-trading-day period in
which the average daily trading price of the PIERS for such 10-trading-day period was less than 105% of the average conversion value

of the PIERS during that period and the conversion value for each day of that period was less than 98% of the issue price of the PIERS;

(3) during any period in which the credit rating assigned to the PIERS by either Moady's or Standard & Poor's is below a specified level;

(4) if the PIERS have been called for redemption or (5) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions. The initial conversion rate

of the PIERS was equivalent to a conversion price of approximately $30.67 per share. The PIERS and the junior subordinated debentures
have a distribution rate of 4.375% per annum of their issue price, subject to deferral. In addition, contingent distributions of $0.08 per $50
issue price per PIERS will be due during any three-month period commencing on or after March 1, 2007 under certain conditions. The
PIERS may not be redeemed by Sovereign prior to March 5, 2007, except upon the occurrence of certain special events. An any date after
March 5, 2007, Sovereign may, if specified conditions are satisfied, redeem the PiERS, in whole but not in part, for cash for a price equal
to 100% of their issue price plus accrued and unpaid distributions to the date of rédemption, if the closing price of Sovereign common stock
has exceeded a price per share equal to $39.87, subject to adjustment, for a specified period.

The proceeds from the PIERS of $800 million, net of transaction costs of approximately $16.3 million, were allocated pro rata between
“Junior Subordinated debentures due to Capital Trust Entities” in the amount of $498.3 mitfion and “Warrants and employee stock options
issued” in the amount of $285.4 million based on their relative fair values. The difference between the carrying amount of the subordinated
debentures and the principat amount dus at maturity is being accreted into interest expense using the effective interest method over the
pertod to maturity of the PIERS which is March 2, 2034. The effective interest rate of this financing is 7.55%.

Sovereign has an additionat $348 mitlion of Junior Subardinated debentures due to Capital Trust Entities. These securities have a weighted
average interest rate of 8.91% at December 31, 2005 and they are redeemable at the Company’s election beginning July 2006 through
March 2010 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. These securities must

be redeemed in the periods between March 2027 through December 2031, Periodic cash payments and payments upon liquidation

or redemption with respect to Trust Securities are guaranteed by the Corporation to the extent of funds held by the Trusts (the Preferred
Securities Guarantee). The Preferred Securities Guarantee, when taken together with the Corporation's ather obligations, including its
obligations under the Notes, will constitute a full and unconditional guarantee, on a subordinated basis, by the Corporation of payments due
on the Trust Securities. Included in the bafance of our junior subocrdinated debentures due to Capital Trust Entities is a debit of $11.6 million
and $6.4 million for a fair value adjustment related to interest rate swaps at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

in November of 2003, Sovereign entered into a $750 million financing transaction with an international bank. Under the terms of the
arrangement, assets of Sovereign were transferred to a newly formed foreign consolidated SPE. Since Soversign has an obligation to
repurchase the investment in the SPE made by the international bank, the transaction is treated as a borrowing and as such baoth the assets
transferred to the SPE and the related floating rate borrowing are reflected on Sovereign's consolidated balance sheet. This debt bears interest
at one-month LIBOR plus 0.50% (50 basis points) minus an adjustable spread which was approximately 3.8% in 2004 and 2003. This
financing arrangement will expire no later than November 2008 and may be terminated prior to that time with 30 days notice by either
party. In December 2004, Sovereign entered into an additional $400 million financing transaction with the same international bank under
substantially the same terms as the $750 million November 2003 transaction. This debt bears interest at one-month LIBOR plus 0.75%
(75 basis points) minus a fixed spread of 3.60% and will expire not later than November 2008 and may be terminated prior to that time
with 30 days notice by either party. The international bank can provide these funds to the Company under the above terms because of
coflateral levels that Sovereign must maintain as well as certain tax benefits the international bank receives as the result of entering into this
financing transaction.

The senior credit facitity with Bank of Scotland consists of a $400 million,‘: 364-day revolving line of ¢credit at the holding company. The
revolving line provides $400 million of capacity through December 2006. There was no amount outstanding under the revalving fine at
December 31, 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005, Sovereign renegotiated the terms of this credit facility. This amendment provided
for a change in the commitment termination date, reduced the applicabié margin and reduced the commitment fee. The commitment

on the $400 million revolving line is based on a 364-day term with an option to extend for an additional 364-day period. The applicable
margin was reduced from Libor plus 0.90% to Libor plus 0.85% based Upon Sovereign's Long-Term Debt Rating (S&P/Moody's). The senior
credit facility subjects Sovereign to a number of affirmative and negative covenants. Sovereign was in compliance with these covenants at
December 31, 2005 and 2004.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 12 - Borrowings and Other Debt Obligations (Continued)

During the first quarter of 2003, Sovereign completed a tender offer for its 8.625% Senior Notes (“8.625% notes”)idue March 2004 and
the 10.25% Senior Notes (“10.25% note”) due May 2004, In connection with the tender, Sovereign repurchased $139.2 million of the
8.625% notes and $162.4 miifion of the 10.25% notes and incurred a loss on this debt extinguishment of $29 million, $18.8 million, net
of tax, or $0.07 per diluted share.

During March of 2003, Sovereign Bank issued $500 million of subordinated notes {the “March subordinated notes”}, at a discount

of $4.7 million, which have a coupon of 5.125%. In August 2003, Sovereign Bank issued $300 mitlion of subordinated notes (the
“August subordinated notes”), at a discount of $0.3 miltion, which have a coupon of 4.375%. The August subardinated notes mature in
August 2013 and are callable at par beginning in August 2008. The March subordinated notes are due in March 2013 and are not subject
to redemption prior to that date except in the case of the insolvency or liquidation of Sovereign Bank, and then only with prior regulatory
approval. These suhordinated notes qualify as Tier 2 regulatory capital for Sovereign Bank. Under the current QTS rules, 5 years prior to
maturity, 20% of the balance of the subordinated notes will no longer qualify as Tier 2 capital. In each successive year.prior to maturity,
an additional 20% of the subordinated notes will no longer qualify as Tier 2 capital. In the third quarter of 2003, Soveteign entered into
& hedging transaction that converted the March subordinated notes from fixed interest rate obligations to floating interest rate obligations.
Included in the balance of our March subordinated notes above is a debit of $24.0 million and $13.5 million for a fair value adjustment
related 1o interest rate swaps at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectivety.

In November 2001, Sovereign Bank accessed the liquidity of international markets and transferred $957 mitlion of indirect automobile
loans to special purpose entities (SPEs) in return for proceeds from the issuance to outside investors of $821 miltion of asset-backed
floating rate notes and $64 miltion of equity interests. The $821 million of floating rate notes mature in 2013 and carry an interest rate
of LIBOR plus .38%. The securitization transaction is accounted for as a financing under SFAS No. 140, “Transfers of Financial Assets
and Liabilities,” and, as such, the asset-backed floating rate notes and equity interests are reflected in Sovereign's consolidated balance
sheet as debt and'minority interest.

The following tablesets farth the maturities of Sovereign's borrowings and debt abligations (including the impact of expected cash flows on
interest rate swaps) at December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

2006 $ 9,390,480
2007 872,780
2008 1,553,000
2009 1,156,596
2010 608,520
Thereafter 5,139,54i\

Totat $ 18,720,897



Note 13 — Minority Interests

Minority interests represent the net assets and earnings attributable to the equity of consolidated subsidiaries that are owned by parties
independent of Sovereign. Earnings attributable to minority interests are reflected in trust preferred securities and other minority interest
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In a financing transaction consummated in November 2001, Sovereign received $64 miliion from the sale of ownership interests in
consolidated SPES to outside investors. The SPEs were formed to issue debt and equity interests as parts of a securitization transaction that
raised $885 million for Sovereign. See additional discussion Note 12.

On August 21, 2000, Sovereign received approximately $140 million of net proceeds from the issuance of $161.8 million of 12% Series A
Noncumulative Preferred Interests in Sovereign Real Estate Investment Trust (“SREIT"), a subsidiary of Sovereign Bank, that holds primarily
residential real estate loans. The preferred stock was issued at a discount, and is being amortized over the life of the preferred shares

using the effective yield method. The preferred shares may be redeemed at any time on or after May 16, 2020, at the option of Sovereign
subject to the approval of the OTS. Under certain circumstances, the preferred shares are automatically exchangeable into preferred stock
of Sovereign Bank. The offering was made exclusively to institutional investors. The proceeds of this offering were principally used to repay
corporate debt. ‘

Note 14 - Stockholders’ Equity

Sovereign maintains a Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan pdrsuant to which participants may purchase shares of

* Sovereign common stock by reinvesting cash dividends. The plan also permits both new investors and Sovereign shareholders to make
optional cash investments in shares of Sovereign common stock on a monthly basis under the plan’s terms. Sovereign also maintains an
Employee Stock Purchase Plan allowing employees with at least six manths of employment and who average over 20 hours per week to
purchase shares through a payroll deduction at a discount from fair market value of 7.5% subject to a maximum of the lesser of 15% of pay
or $25,000. Compensation expense recorded in connection with this plan for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was immaterial. All dividends are
reinvested according to Sovereign's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan.

The Company has an active shelf registration statement of debt and equity instruments on file with the SEC for future issuance of debt
securities; preferred stock; depository shares; common stock; warrants; stock purchase contracts; and'stock purchase units. The Company
may offer and sell these securities from time to time and the securities will be offered at prices and on terms to be determined by market
conditions at the time of offering. Sovereign has approximately $226 million of avéilability remaining under this shelf registration at
December 31, 2005. The Company is currently in the process of increasing the availability of its shelf registration.

Retained earnings at December 31, 2005 included $82.1 million in bad debt reserves, for which no deferred taxes have been provided due
1o the indefinite nature of the recapture provisions. Sovereign's debt agreement imposes certain limitations on dividends, other payments and
transactions. These limits are not expected to affect dividend payments at current levels and reasonably anticipated increases.

At December 31, 2005, Sovereign had 131.2 million capital shares reserved for future issuance, which includes shares issuable upon the
exercise of the warrants related to the PIERS financing, shares that will be issued to Santander, shares issuable for unexercised stock options,
and employee stock purchase plans.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 15 — Regulatory Matters

The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act (“FIRREA") requires institutions regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision
(“0TS") to have a minimum leverage capital ratio equal to 3% of tangible assets, and 4% of risk-adjusted assets, and a risk-based capital
ratio equal to 8% as defined. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation improvement Act (“FDICIA") requires OTS regulated institutions to
have a minimum tangible capital equal to 2% of total tangible assets. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, Sovereign Bank met all capital
adequacy requirements to which it is subject to in order to be well-capitalized.

The FDICIA established five capital tiers: well-capitalized, adequately-capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitatized and
critically undercapitalized. A depository institution’s capital tier depends upon its capital levels in relation to various relevant capital
measures, which include leverage and risk-based capital measures and certain other factors. Depository institutions that are not classified
as well-capitalized or adequately-capitalized are subject to various restrictions regarding capital distributions, payment of management fees,
acceptance of brakered deposits and other operating activities.

Federal banking laws, regulations and policies also limit Sovereign Bank’s ability to pay dividends and make other distributions to Sovereign.
Sovereign Bank must obtain prior OTS approval to declare a dividend or make any other capital distribution if, after such dividend or
distribution; (1) Sovereign Bank’s total distributions to the holding company within that calendar year would exceed 100% of its net income
during the year plus retained net income for the prior two years; (2) Sovereign Bank would not meet capital levels imposed by the OTS

in connection with any order, or (3) if Sovereign Bank is not adequately capitalized at the time. In addition, OTS prior approval would be
required if Sovereign Bank's examination or CRA ratings fall below certain levels or Sovereign Bank is notified by the OTS that it is a problem
association or an association in troubled condition.

Any dividends declared and paid have the effect of reducing the Bank's tangible capital to tangible assets, Tier 1 leverage capital to tangible
assets and Tier 1 risk-based capital ratios. Total dividends from Sovereign Bank to Sovereign during the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 were'$750 million and $130 million, respectively. Dividends increased in 2005 due to management’s decision to repurchase
twenty million Bancorp shares and to use excess capital at the Bank to pay down Bancorp debt.

The following schedule summarizes the actual capital balances of Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2005 and 2004:

REGULATORY CAPITAL (IN THOUSANDS)

Ta{;ﬁg‘;gi‘;‘:gg;" Levera;;eéz}pital To Ri_sk-Ba;:iréapital T Ri;k—Ba;!:ita('!apital To
_ Tangible Assets Risk Adjusted Assets ] Risk Adjusted Assets
Sovereign Bank m December 31, 2005; |
Regulatory capital . $ 4,167,306 $ 4,167,306 $ 4,090,381 $ 5,313,535
Minimum capital réquirement‘“ 1,219,112 2,438,224 1,993,145 3,986,289
Excess $ 2,948,194 $ 1,129,082 $ 2,097,236 $ 1,327,246
Capital ratio ‘ 6.84% 6.84% 8.21% ’ 10.66%
Sovereign Bank Qt December 31, 2004:
Regulatory capita, $ 3,761,163 $ 3,761,163 $ 37019 $ 4,911,264
Minimum capital reguirement™ 1,043,438 2,086,876 1,687 852 » 3,375,704
Excess ‘ $ 2,717,725 $ 1,674,287 $ 2,022,267 $ 1,535,560
Capital ratio 721% 7.21% 8.79% 11.64%

(1) As defined by OTS Reguiations.




Note 16 - Stock-Based Compensation

Sovereign has plans, which are shareholder approved, that grant restricted stock and stock options for a fixed number of shares to key
officers, certain employees and directors with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares at thé date of grant. Sovereign
believes that such awards better align the interest of its employees with those of its shareholders. Sovereign's stock options expire not more
than 10 years and one manth after the date of grant and generally become fully vested and exercisable within a five year period after the
date of grant and, in certain limited cases, based on the attainment of specified targets. Restricted stock awards vest over a period of three to
five years. Stock option and restricted stock awards provide for accelerated vesting in certain circumstances, such as a change in controt and
in certain cases upon an employee’s retirement. Sovereign records compensation expense over the shorter of the contractua! vesting term or
the employee’s retirement date in the event the award vests. These circumstances are defined in the plan agreements.

The following table provides a sumimary of Sovereign's stock option activity for the years ended December 31 2005 2004 and 2003 and
stock options exercisable at the end of each of those years.

Shares Price per share

Options outstanding December 31, 2002 {7 907 110 exercisable) f‘ l 11,506,863 $  384-2025
Granted 1 ) 3,588,458 $ 1310-2297
Exercised (1,543,851) § 384-1456
Forfeited “” ” (140,429) $ 6.63-1635
Bxpred | ” e § 555-2005
Options outstanding December 31, 2003 (8,781,439 exercisable) ' | h 13,312,333 $ 384-2297
Acquired in conjunction with business acquisitions | " 2,460,362 $ 293-1591
Granted : | 744,432 $ 2037-2272
Feercsed “ C O GMBAD § 203-2035
Forteted O amsm § en-mn
Bpied o BED  § 825-143
Options outstanding December 31, 2004 (8,785,340 exercisable) h 13,174,579 $  310-2297
Acquired in confunction with business acquisitions | “ 3,061,370 § 435-1993
Granted “ 745,368 $ 20.37-24.10
Bercised ” b gsusn s 310-202
Forfeited - @739 § 561-234
Expired ’\ : (24 872) $  5.66~2272
Options outstanding December 31, 2005 (3,761,224 exercisable) H M 14,134,104

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $7.90,
$8.01, and $4.76, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
was $31.1 million, $41.4 million, and $14.0 miltion, respectively. '
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Note 16 — Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)
The following table summarizes Sovereign’s stock options cutstanding at December 31, 2005:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

b s Sares Wohed huesge "R Sares Highted et
. : Contractual Life ,
$ 310441 104,073 $ 3.838 206 104,073 ’ $ 388
$ 4.56-6.16 150,640 561 2.54 150,640 5.61
$ 6.53-9.15 3,592,103 772 431 3,592,103 ‘ 1.72
$ 9.38%13.10 7,393,741 . 12.37 5.99 4,557,148 V 1191
$ 13.28~18.16 1,427,727 1432 421 1,300,893 14.30
$ 18‘84—‘24.10 1,465,820 22.78 847 56,367 20.25
Total 14,134,104 $ 1233 5.58 9,761,224 $ 10.55

Cash received from option exercises for ali share-based payment arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and

2003, was $26.1 miltion, $23.7 million and $11.4 million, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option
exercises of the share-based payment arrangements totaled $15.4 mifiion, $15.8 miltion and $12.7 miltion, respectively for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. At December 31, 2005, Soversign had $13.8 miltion of unrecognized compensation cost related to
employee stock option awards that will be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.1 years.

Subsequent to September 2005, Sovereign issued approximately 500,000 of treasury shares at a weighted average costiof $22.10 to
satisfy option exercises. Prior to September 2005, Sovereign had a practice of issuing new authorized shares to satisfy option exercises
and, as such, did not repurchase shares on the open market to fund them. Additionally, the Company repurchased approx{mately 328,000
shares of vested restricted stock at an average price of $22.65 during 2005.

The table below summarizes the changes in Sovereign's unvested restricted stock during the past year.

Total non-vested restricted stock at December 31, 2004 1,255,123
Restricted stock granted in 2005 1,259,542
‘Vested restricted stock in 2005 359,928
Non-vested shares forfeited during 2005 96,204
Totat non-vested restricted stock at December 31, 2005 2,098,533

Since 2001, Sovereign ihas issued shares of restricted stock to certain key officers and employees that vest over a three-year of five-year
period. Pre-tax compensation expense associated with this plan of $12.5 million, $8.6 million and $4.8 million was recorded in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. As of Decemnber 31, 2005, there was $25.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost refated to
restricted stock awards. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.1 years. The weighted average grant date
fair value of restricted stock granted in 2005 was $23.44 per share.



Note 17 — Employee Benefit Plans

Effective November 1, 2004, Sovereign merged its Employee Stock Ownership Plan with and into its 401(k) Retirement Plan to form the
Sovereign Retirement Plan (“Retirement Plan”). Substantially all employees of Sovereign are eligible o participate in the ESOP portion of
the Retirement Plan following completion of one year of service and attaining age 21. The ESOP portion of this Retirement Plan provides
retirement benefits for participants and beneficiaries in the form of Sovereign commén stock. The ESOP portion of this Retirement Plan was
funded through direct loans from the Company, and proceeds from these loans were used to purchase outstanding shares of the sponsoring
company’s common stock. As the debt on these loans is repaid, shares of Sovereign common stock are released and become eligible for
allocation to participant accounts. Compensation expense is recognized based on the fair value of the shares committed to be released to
participants and the shares then become outstanding for earnings per share computations. ‘

Sovereign has committed to make contributions sufficient to provide for the debt requirements of the remaining ESOP loans. in 2003,
Sovereign purchased $7.2 million of common stock for the ESOP portion of the Retirement Plan. Sovereign recognized as expense

$7.4 million, $7.1 miliion and $5.6 million for the Sovereign ESOP in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. At December 31, 2005, the
ESOP portion of the Retirement Plan held 5.6 million shares of Sovereign stock, of which 2.6 million shares were aliocated to participant
accounts. The unallocated ESOP shares are presented as a reduction of stockholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements. At
December 31, 2005, the unallocated ESOP shares had a fair market value of $63.8 million, and the ESOP portion of the Retirement Plan
had $28.0 miltion of loans outstanding from Sovereign. The actual interest expense incurred on the ESOP portion of the Retirement Plan
was $3.0 miltion, $3.2 million and $3.3 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively and the amount of dividends on ESOP shares used
for debt service by the ESOP was $0.6 milfion, $0.4 million and $0.4 mitlion in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Substantially alt employees of Sovereign are eligible to participate in the 401(Kk) portion of the Retirement Plan following their completion
of six months service and attaining age 21. Sovereign recognized expense for contributions to the 401(k) portion of the Retirement Plan
of $10.8 million, $8.9 million and $7.8 million during 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Employees can contribute up to 100% of
their compensation to the Retirement Plan subject to IRS limitations. Sovereign matches 100% of the employee contributions up to 3%
of compensation and 50% of the employee contribution in excess of 3% to 5% in the form of Sovereign common stock. Participants may
transfer the matching contribution o other investment vehicles available under the Retirement Plan.

Sovereign maintains a bonus deferral plan for selected management and egecutive employees. This plan allows employees to defer 25%
to 50% of their bonus to purchase Sovereign stock. The deferred amount is placed in a grantor trust and invested in Sovereign common
stock. Matching contributions of 100% are made by Sovereign into the trust and are also invested in Sovereign common stock. Dividends
on Sovereign shares held in the trust are also invested in Sovereign stock. Benefits vest after 5 years or earfier in the event of termination by
reason of death, disability, retirement, involuntary termination or the occurrence of a change of control as defined. Voluntary termination or
termination for cause {(as defined) generally result in forfeiture of the unvested balance including employee deferrals. Expense is recognized
over the vesting period of 5 years or to the employee's retirement date, whichever is shorter. Sovereign recognized as expense $5.8 million,
$2.2 million, and $1.4 million for these plans in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Sovereign sponsors a supplemental executive retirement plan ("SERP”) and certain post-employment benefit plans of financial institutions
acquired by Sovereign. Sovereign's benefit obligation related to its SERP plan was $11.8 million and $9.6 million at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Sovereign's benefit obligation related to its post-employment plans was $2.5 milfion and $0.9 milfion at December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The reason for the increase in the post-employment plan abligation was due to acquired obligations from

the Waypoint acquisition. The SERP and the post-employment plans are unfunded plans. Sovereign recognized as expense $1.3 million,

$0.8 miltion and $0.9 miltion related to these plans in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Increasing or decreasing the assumed healthcare
cost trend rate would not have a significant impact on the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2005, or the
aggregate of the service and interest components of net benefit expense for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Note 18 — Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in the consolidated statement of operations is comprised of the following compenents
(in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
Current:
Foreign @ § 19812 § 65113 § 9l
Federal 58,379 44513 125,646
State 8,756 710 3841
146,947 110,336 ; 138,598
Deferred:
Federal 69,013 17,334 ‘ 14,450
State ~ — ‘ —
Total income tax expense § 215960 $ 127670 V § 153,048

(13 Current foreign income tax expense in 2005, 2004 and 2003 relates to interest income on assets that Sovereign transferred to a consolidated foreign special purpose shtity to support a borrowing
arrangement that Sovereign has with an intemational bank. Foreign taxes paid on this income are credited against income for federal income tax purposes. See Note 12\ for further discussion.

The following is a reconciliation of the United States federal statutory rate of 35% to the company's effective tax rate for
each of the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
Federal income tax at statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% ) 35.0%
Increase/idecrease) in taxes resulting from: :
Tax-exempt income 4.1) {(5.1) 3.3)
Bank owned lfe insurance (18) 24) @)
State income taxes, net of fetleral tax benefit 0.7 0.1 0.4
Creditfor synthetic fuels (3.2 356) 0.0
Low income housing credifs (3.2) (3.0 (i.s)
QOther 0.3 1.1 O..l

Effective ta rate 8.2% 22.0% 27.6%
. e e P-4 T,



The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 f 2004
Deferred tax assets: ” ” ‘

Allowance for possitle foan losses H $ 89,808 “ $ 80,124
Purchased mortgage servicing rights H — ” 4,363
Unrealized oss on available for sale portolo 3” n4 31,266
Net operating foss carry forwards ” 14,474” ' 938
Non-saficitation payments “H 74,601 “ 87,025
Employes benefits 12,485 ” 11,000
General Business credit carry forwards ‘” 25,168 ‘ —
Broker commissions paid on originated mortgage loans ” 25,487 : 6,028
Other wa15 53,660
Total gross deferred tax assets 411,602 : 274 404

Deferred tax liabilities:

Purchase accounting adjustments 36,547 53,101
Deferred income 24,299 34,390
Originated mortgage servicing rights 31,088 22,687
Unrealized gain on derivatives 3970 2,858
Depreciation and amortization 46,444 21,806
Other ) ‘ 48,1718 33,153
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ‘ 196,526 168,595
Net deferred tax asset ‘ $ 25076 $ 105809

At December 31, 2005, the Company has net operating loss carry forwards of $14.5 million, net of tax, which may be offset against
future taxable income. If not utilized in future years, $0.8 mitlion would expire in 2013 and $13.7 million will expire in 2025. Sovereign
also has tax credit carry-forwards of $25.2 million, net of tax, which may be offsef against future taxable income. If not utilized in future
years, $13.2 million will expite in December 2024 and the remaining $12.0 million will expire in December 2025. The Company has not
recognized a deferred tax liability of $29.2 million related to earnings that are considered permanently reinvested in a consolidated foreign
special purpose entity related to the indirect automobile loan securitization (see' Note 12).

Sovereign is subject to the income tax laws of the U.S., its states and municipalities as well as certain foreign countries. These tax laws are
complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant Governmental taxing authorities. In establishing a provision
for income tax expense, the Company must make judgments and interpretatiohs about the application of these inherently complex tax laws.

Actual income taxes paid may vary from estimates depending upon changes iR income tax laws, actual results of operations, and the final
audit of tax returns by taxing authorities. Tax assessments may arise several years after tax retumns. have been filed. Sovereign reviews its tax
balances quarterly and as new information becomes available, the balances are adjusted, as appropriate. Sovereign believes that its recorded
tax liabilities adequately provide for the probable outcome of these assessments; however, revisions of our estimate of accrued income taxes
could materially effect our aperating results for any given quarter. ‘
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Note 19 —~ Commitments and Contingencies

Financial Instruments. Sovereign is a party to financial instruments in the normal course of business, including instruments with off-balance
sheet exposlire, to meet the financing needs of its customers and to manage its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, loans sold with recourse, forward conttacts and interest rate
swaps, caps:and floors. These financial instruments may involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The contract or national amounts of these financial instruments reflect the extent of
involvernent Sovereign has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The following schedule summarizes Sovereign’s off-balance sheet financial instruments {in thousands):

CONTRACT OR NOTIONAL AMOUNT AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

Commitments to'extend credit $ 14576983 $ 12,163,082
Standby letters of credit 2,831,954 ’ 1,966,117
Loans sold with récourse 1,359 8,355
Forward buy commitments 2,829,704 909,624

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of
the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, Sovereign evaluates each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral required is based on
management credits evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral usually consists of real estate but may include securities, accounts receivable,
inventory and property, plant and equiprment.

Sovereign's standby letters of credit meet the definition of a guarantee under FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor's accounting and
disclosure requirements for guarantees, including indirect guarantees of indebtedness of others.” These transactions areiconditional
commitments issued by Sovereign to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The guarantees are primarily issued to
support public and private borrowing arrangements. The weighted average term of these commitments is 2.68 years. The credit risk involved
in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending a loan to customers. In the event of a draw by the beneficiary
that complies with the terms of the letter of credit, Sovereign would be required to honor the commitment. Sovereign has various forms of
collateral, such as real estate assets and customers’ business assets. The maximum undiscounted exposure related to these commitments
at December 31, 2005 was $2.8 billion, and the approximate value of the underlying collateral upon liquidation that weuld be expected
to cover this maximum potential exposure was $2.4 billion. Substantially all the fees related to standby letters of credits are deferred and
are immaterial to Sovereign’s financial position. We believe that the utilization rate of these standby letters of credit will continue to be
substantially less than the amount of these commitments, as has been our experience to date.

Loans sold with recourse primarily represent single-family residential loans. These are seasoned loans with decreasing balances, and
historical toss experience has been minimal.

Sovereign's forward buy commitments primarily represent commitments to purchase loans and investment securities. At December 31,
2005, forward buy:.commitments include $2.2 billion of commitments to purchase mortgage loans for settlement in January 2006,

Sovereign has entered into risk participation agreements that provide for the assumption of credit and market risk by Sovereign for the
benefit of one party in a derivative transaction upon the occurrence of an event of default by the other party to the transaction. Sovereign's
participation in risk participation agreements has been in conjunction with its participation in an underlying credit agreement led by
another financial institution. The term of the performance guarantee will typically match the term of the underlying credit and derivative
agreements, which range from 3 to 10 years for transactions outstanding as of December 31, 2005. Sovereign estimates the maximum
undiscounted exposure on these agreements at $11.7 million and the total carrying value of liabilities associated with thesé commitments
was $0.3 miliion at December 31, 2005.
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Litigation. In December 2005, Sovereign commenced litigation in the United States District Court for the Southe‘fn District of New York
against Relational Investors, LLC (“Relational”), seeking a declaratory judgment that, under Sovereign's articles of incorporation and the
Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law, directors of Sovereign may only be removed from office by shareholders for cause. In January 2006,
this action was combined with certain outstanding claims by Refational, including ciéims seeking a declaratory judgment that shareholders
can remove directors without cause, claims relating to the issuance of shares of Sovéreign common stock in the pending transaction

with Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and claims relating to the timing of Sovereign's 2006 annual meeting of shareholders.
There is additionat outstanding class action and derivative litigation which relates to Sovereign's pending transactions with Banco
Santander Central Hispano, S.A. and Independence Community Bank Corp. Sovereign's management believes that all of these claims
are without merit and intends to defend against the claims vigorously in court. Sovereign incurred $5.8 million of costs in the fourth
quarter of 2005 to defend itself against the claims and the actions of Relational, and anticipates incurring additional costs in 2006.

On March 2, 2006, the judge in the District Court action in the Southern District of New York issued a ruling that Sovereign's directors
may be removed without cause; Sovereign disagrees with the District Court's ruling under Pennsylvania iaw and Sovereign’s articles of
incorporation, and intends to seek prompt review of the ruling by the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. Sovereign
cannot predict with reasonable certainty the eventual outcome of such appeal or, if the ruling is upheld, the extent of the adverse impact
of the ruling on Savereign's financial condition or results of operations. ’

With the exception of the matters described above, Sovereign is not involved in any pending material legal pbceeding other than routine
litigation occurring in the ordinary course of business. Sovereign does not expect that any amaounts that it may be required to pay in
connection with these matters would have a materiat adverse effect on its financial position.

Leases. Sovereign is committed under various non-cancelable operating leases relating to branch facilities Having initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year. Future minimum annual rentais under non-cancelable operating leases, net of sublease income, at December 31, 2005,
are summarized as follows (in thousands): '

o Fu{tire Iki‘nimum
AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 '

Lease H;’ayments §ubleasg income Net Payments
2006 § 7788 $ (1347 5 64370
2007 73,97 (11475) 61922
2008 57532 17,650 49,881
2009 C 47758 5615) 12139
2010 oy, o umn 35,565
Thereater 8725 (8804} 239921
Total §__ 5803 s § 493898

Sovereign recorded rental expenses of $89.8 million, $84.9 million and $83.4 miltion, net of $14.0 nﬁHion, $13.0 miltion and
$13.1 million of sublease income, in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.
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Note 20 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments as defined by SFAS No. 107, “Fair Value of Financial
Instruments.” These fair values for certain instruments are presented based upon subjective estimates of relevant market conditions at a
specific point in time and information about each financial instrument. in cases where quoted market prices are notiavailable, fair values

are based on'estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. These technigues involve uncertainties resulting in variability in
estimates affected by changes in assumptions and risks of the financial instruments at a certain point in time. Therefore, the derived fair
value estimates presented below for certain instruments cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets. In addition, the
fair values do not reflect any premium or discount that could resuilt from offering for sale at one time an entity's entire holdings of a particular
financial instrument nor does it reflect potential taxes and the expenses that would be incurred in an actual sale or settiement.

Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented below do not represent the underlying value of Sovereign (in thousands):

2005 2004

AT DECEMBER 31 Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value ‘ Fair Vatue
Financial Assets: ‘

Cash and amounts due from depository institutions 3 1,131,936 $ 1,131,936 $ 1,160,922 . $ 1,160,922
Investment securtis:

Available for sale 1,258,402 7,258,402 7,065,379 7,065,379
Held to maturity 4,647,621 4,561,397 3,504,319 l 3,889,002
Other investments 651,299 651,299 517,179 577,179
Loans, net 43,384,248 43,535,657 36,240,076 36,545,150
Mortgage servicing rights 91,097 101,584 73,957 ‘ 76,938
Mortgage banking forwérd commitments (538) (538) (640) ’ (640)
Mortgage interest rate lock commitments 475 475 220 220
Financial Liabilities:

Deposits 31,977,706 35,807,178 32,555,518 31,269,808
Borrowings and other dept abfigations 18,720,897 18,788 464 16,140,128 16,384,412
Interest rate derivative instruments 11,355 11,355 41,761 ‘ 41,761
Precious metals customer forward settlement arrangements 46,430 46,430 17,893 17,893
Precious metal forward sale agresments (47,982) (47,982} {16,645) ‘ (16,645)
Unrecognized Financial instruments:“’

Commitments to extend credit 122,554 122,487 91,775 V 91,700

(1) The amounts shown under “carrying value” represent accruals or deferred income arising from these unrecognized financial instruments,

The following methads and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and amounts due from depository Institutions and interest-earning deposits. For these short-term instruments, the carying amount
equals the fair value.

Investment securities available for sale. TThe fair value of investment securities available for sale are based on quoted market prices as of
the bafance sheet date. In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” changes in
fair value are reflected in the carrying value of the asset and are shown as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Investiment securities held to maturity, The fair value of investment securities held to maturity is estimated based upon quated imarket prices
as of the balance sheet date.

Loans. Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using estimated market discount rates at which similar loans would be made to
borrowers and reflect similar credit ratings and interest rate risk for the same remaining maturities.

Mortgage servicing rights. The fair value of mortgage servicing rights are estimated using internal cash flow models. For additional
discussion see Note 8.

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments. Fair value is estimated based on a net present value analysis of the anticipated cash flows
associated with the rate lock commitments.



Deposits. The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as non-interest bearing demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings accounts
and certain money market accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand as of the balance sheet date. The fair value of fixed-maturity
certificates of deposit is estimated by discounting cash flows using currently offered rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings and other debt obligations. Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using rates currently available to Sovereign for other
borrowings with similar terms and remaining maturities. Certain other debt obligations instruments are valued using available market quotes.

Commitments to extend credit. The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into accaunt the remaining terms of the agreements arid the present creditworthiness of the counter parties. For
fixed rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates.

Precious metals customer forward settlement arrangements and precious meétals forward sale agreements. Fair value of these
contracts is based on the price of the metals based on published sources, taking into account, when appropriate, the current
creditworthiness of the counterparties. ‘ ‘

Interest rate derivative instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps, caps ahd floors that represent the estimated amount Sovereign
would receive or pay to terminate the contracts or agreements, taking into account current interest rates and when appropriate, the current
creditworthiness of the counterparties are obtained from dealer quotes.

!

Note 21 — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Sovereign uses derivative instruments as part of its interest rate risk ménagement process to manage risk associated with its
financial assets and liabilities, its mortgage banking activities, and to assist its commercial banking customers with their risk
management strategies and for certain other market exposures.

One of Sovereign's primary market risks is interest rate risk. Managemént uses derivative instruments to mitigate the impact
of interest rate movements on the value of certain liabilities, and/or assets and on probable future cash outflows. These
instruments primarily include interest rate swaps that have underlying interest rates based on key benchmark indices. Note 1
provides a summary of our accounting policy for derivative instruments in the financial statements. The Company designates
derivative instruments used to manage interest rate risk into SFAS No. 133 hedge relationships with the specific assets,
liabilities, or forecasted cash flows. '

Our derivative transactions encompass credit risk to the extent that a counterparty to a derivative contract with which Sovereign
has an unrealized gain fails to perform according to the terms of the agreement. Credit risk is managed by limiting the aggregate
amount of net unrealized gains in agreements outstanding, monitoring the size and the maturity structure of the derivative
portfolio, applying uniform credit standards maintained for alt activities'with credit risk, and collateralizing gains.

Fair Value Hedges. Sovereign has entered into pay-variable, receive-fixed interest rate swaps to hedge changes in fair values
of certain brokered certificate of deposits and certain debt obligations. For the year ended December 31, 2005, hedge
ineffectiveness of $1.4 million was recorded as a reduction to miscellaneous general and administrative expense associated
with fair value hedges.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, Sovereign terminated $211.3 million of receive fixed—pay' variable interest rate swaps that
were hedging the fair value of $211.3 million of junior subordinated debentures due to capital trust entities. The fair value
adjustment to the basis of the debt was $11.6 million at the date of termination. This basis. adjustment will be amortized to
interest expense over the life of the debt under the effective interest rate method.

Cash Flow Hedges. Sovereign hedges exposure to changes in cash flows associated with forecasted interest payments on
variable-rate liabilities through the use of pay-fixed, receive variable interest rate swaps. Sovereign includes all components of
each derivatives gain or loss in the assessment of hedge effectiveness. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
no hedge ineffectiveness was recognized in earnings associated with cash flow hedges. During the years ended December
31, 2004, the Company terminated $2.2 billion of pay-fixed interest rate swaps that were hedging the future cash flows

on $2.2 billion of borrowings, resulting in a net after-tax gain of $2.3 million. These gains will continue to be deferred in
accumulated other comprehensive income and will be reclassified into interest expense as the future cash flows
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Note 21 - Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (Continued)

occur, unless it becomes probable that the forecasted interest payments will not occur. As of December 31, 2005, Sovereign
expects approximately $4.7 million of the deferred net after-tax foss on derivative instruments included ir accumulated

ather comprehensive income will be reclassified to earnings during the next 12 months. See Note 24 for further detail of the
amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Other Derivative Activities. Sovereign’s derivative portfolio also includes derivative instruments not designated in SFAS

133 hedge relationships. Those derivatives include mortgage banking interest rate lock commitments and forward sale
commitments used for risk management purposes, and derivatives executed with commerciatl banking customers, primarily
interest rate swaps and foreign exchange futures, to facifitate customer risk management strategies. The Company also enters
into precious metals customer forward arrangements and forward sale agreements.

All derivative contracts are valued using either cash flow projection models or ohservable market prices. Pticing models used
for valuing derivative instruments are regularly validated by testing through comparison with third parties.

Following is a summary of the derivatives designated as hedges under SFAS No. 133 at December 31, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands): .

Weightedi Average

_ National Amount Asset Liability Receive Rate  PayRate  Life (Years)
December 31, 2005
Fair value hedges: '
Receive fixed — pay variable interest rate swaps $ 2,440,000 $ — $ 5288 405% 454% 34
Cash fiow hedges: :
Pay fixed -— receive ﬂt;ating interest rate swaps 3,650,000 21,295 2,730 4.38% 417% 20
Total derivatives used iﬁ SFAS 133 hedging relationships $ 6,090,000 $ 2129 $ 55,615 4.25% 4.32% 2.5
December 31, 2004 ’
Fair value hedges: )
Receive fixed — pay variable interest rate swaps $ 1638590 $ 1725 $ 27,332 475% 3.12% 5.8
Cash flow hedges: ’
Pay fived — receive floating interest rate swaps 1,850,000 8,858 8316 2.16% 345’9% 16
Total derivatives used in SFAS 133 hedging relationships 3,488,590 10,583 36,248 337% 3.37% 3.5

Summary information regarding other derivative activities at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 follows
(in thousands):

2005 2004

AT DECEMBER 31, -

) Net Asset {Liahility) Ne§ Asset (Liability)
Mortgage banking derivatives:
Forward commitments
To el oans | $ (53) 5 6
Interest rate lock commitments . 418 220
Total mortgage banking risk management (63) ’ (420)
Swaps receive fixed (4,955) 50273
Swaps pay fixed 27,918 (29,509)
Net Customer related swaps 22,964 ‘ 20,764
Precious metal customer forward settlement arrangements 46,430 17,893
Precious metals forward sale agreements (47,882 (16,649)
Farsign exchangs 740 ‘ (177)

Total activity $ 22,089 $ 21415
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The following financial statement line items were impacted by Sovereign’s‘ derivative activity as of, and for the twelve months
ended, December 31, 2005: :

income Stﬁtement Effect For The Twelve

Derivative Activity Balance Sheet Effect at December 31, 2095 Months Ended December 31, 2005
Fair value hedges:
Receive fixed-pay variable Decrease to borrowings and COs of $24.0 milfion and $28:9 million, Resulted in an increase of net interest income of
interest rate swaps respectively, and an increase to other liabifities of $52.9 million. $9.3 miltion.
Cash flow hedges:

Increase to other assets, other liabilities, and stockholders' equity

Pay fixed-receive floating interest Resulted in a decrease in net interest income of

of $21.3 million, $2.7 miltion, and $12.1 million, respectively, and a "
rate swaps decrease to defesred tases of $6.5 million ‘ 3186 m«lhcn.“
Forward commitments to sell loans Increase other fiabilities of $0.5 million, ‘ increase to morigage banking revenues of $0.1 milfion.
Interest rate lock commitments Increase ta mortgags loans of $0.5 mitlion. j" Increase to martgage banking revenues of $0.3 million.
Net Customer Related Swaps Increase to other assets of $23.0 mitlion. Increase in capital markets revenue of $2.2 million.
Foreign Exchange Increase in other liabitities of $0.7 million. ‘ Increase in commercial banking revenue of $0.9 million.

The following financial statement line items were impacted by Sovereign's derivative activity -as of, and for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2004:

[

Derivative Activity Balance Sheet Effect at December 31, 2004 tncome Statement Effect For The Twelve

Months Ended December 31, 2004
Fair value hedges:

Decrease to borrowings and CDs of $19.9 miflion and $5.7 million,

respectively, and an increase to ather assets and other liabilities Resulted in an increase of net nterest income of $43.8

Receive fixed-pay variable interest

rate swaps of $1.7 million, and $27.3 million, respectively. milion. ,
Cash flow hedges:
Pay fixed-receive floating interest Increase to other assets and other liahilities of $8.9 million, Resulted in a decrease in net interest income of $55.1
rate swaps with no net effect on stockholders” equity and deferred taxes. million.
Forward commitments to selt foans increase to other liabilities of $0.6 million. Increase to mortgage banking revenues of $1.2 million.
. . ; Decrease to mortgage banking revenues of $0.7 million.
Interest rate lack commitments Increase to mortgage toans of $0.2 million. [‘, Net Castomer Related Swaps
Net Customer Related Swaps Increase to other assets of $20.8 million. : Decrease in capital markets revenue of §1.3 million.
) J .
Foreign Exchange Increase in other liabilities of $0.2 million. ' Dicrease in commercial banking revenue of $0.1 million,

Net interest income resulting from interest rate exchange agreements inciuded $123.5 million of income and $132.8 mittion
of expense for 2005, $102.1 million of income and $113.4 million of expense for 2004, and $79.7 miltion of income and
$117.2 million of expense for 2003. :

Net losses generated from mortgage banking derivative transactions is included in mortgage banking revenues on the income
statement and totaled gains of $0.6 million for the twelve-months ended December 31, 2005 compared with losses of
$2.0 million for the twelve-months ended December 31, 2004. Net gains generated from derivative instruments executed
with customers are included as capital markets revenue on the income statement and totaled $8.9 million for the
twelve-months ended December 31, 2005, compared with $6.3 miltion for the tweh)e~months ended December 31, 2004.
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Note 22 — Asset Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities

in September 2005, Sovereign entered into a new twelve-month revolving securitization structure with its existing quatified
special purpose trust that allows Sovereign to securitize up to $1.2 billion of dealer floor plan receivables: Sovereign retained
servicing responsibilities for the loans in the trust and maintained other retained interests in the securitized loans. These
retained interests included an interest-only strip, a cash reserve account and a subordinated note. The Company estimated
the fair value of these refained interests by determining the present value of the expected future cash flows using modeting
techniques that incorporate management's best estimates of key assumptions, including prepayment speeds, credit losses
and discount rates. The investors and the trusts have no recourse to the Company’s assets, other than the retained interests,
if the off-balance sheet loans are not paid when due. Sovereign receives annual contractual servicing fees of 1% for servicing
the securitized loans. However, no servicing asset or liability was recorded for these rights since the contractuat servicing fee
approximates its market value.

During 2005 Sovereign securitized $1.1 billion of receivables under the new revolving securitization structure and recorded
gains of $9.4 million, which were inciuded in commercial banking revenues. These gains was determined based on the
carrying amount of the loans soid, including any related allowance for loan loss, and was allocated to the loans sold and the
retained interests, based on their relative fair values at the sale date. The transaction costs involved in this securitization are
being amortized over the twelve-month revolving period in accordance with SFAS No. 140.

In December 2002, the Company securitized approximately $565 million of residential mortgage loans, converting them
into investment certificates. Sovereign recognized a gain at the time of the sale of $0.4 million associated with approximately
11% of the certificates which were sold to third parties. The majority of the certificates retained are AAA rated securities

and are classified as investments available for sale. We also retained subordinated certificates in this transaction that

totaled $29.2 million at December 31, 2005. The value of these certificates is subject to credit risk and prepayment risk.

In accordance with SFAS No. 134 and SFAS No. 140, the subordinated centificates are retained interests in securitizations
and are classified in investments available for sale on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Sovereign retained servicing
responsibilities related to this transaction, and receives an annual servicing fee of 0.375% as compensation. The investors
have no recourse to the Company’s other assets to.serve as additional collateral to protect their interests in the securitization.

The types of assets undertying securitizations for which Sovereign owns a retained interest and the related balahces and
delinquencies at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the net credit losses for the vear ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, are as follows (in thousands):

2005 2004

Principal Net Principal Net

Total Principal Total Principal

_ 90 Days Past Due Gredit Losses 30 Days Past Due \ Credit Losses

Mortgage Loans ’ $ 12,545,445 $ 55215 § 932 $ 8,640,101 $ 58,260 § Lz
Home Equity Leans i 9,966,031 102,112 22,253 9,821,250 67,335 16,478
Auto Floor Plan Loans ’ 1,468,176 832 — 1,447,769 24] | —
Totat Qwned and Securitized | $ 23,979,652 $ 158218 § 23,185 $ 19,509,120 $ 125836 l $ 17,590
Less:

Securitized Mortgage Loans 82,643 1,071 154 142 606 1,315 ‘ 69
Securitized Home Equity Loans 172,907 20,635 5,989 243,593 28,990 10,697
Securitized Auto Floor Plan Loans 1,021,698 — — 579,000 — —
Total Securitized 1,277,248 21708 6,143 965,193 30,305 'v 10,766

Net Loans: ’ $ 22,102,404 $ 136513 17,042 $ 18,943,921 $ 95531 § 682
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The components of retained interests and key economic assumptions used in measuring the retained interests resulting from
securitizations completed during the year were as follows (in thousands):

i

AT DECEMBER 31, 2005 Automotive Floor Plan
Components of Retained Interest and Servicing Rights: : ”
Accrued interest receivable “ $ 6,471
Senvicing rghts ” - 52,635
Interest only strips v ‘ 3,080
Cash reserve ‘ ” “ | 5,266
Total Retained Interests and Servicing Rights / $ 67,472
Key Economic Assumptions: H ’
Weighted average life (in years) ‘” “ 0.3¢
Expected credit losses ’ ‘ 0.25%

Residual cash flows discount rate ) 8.00%

The table below summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid to off-balance sheet securitization trusts
(in thousands): ‘

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
Proceeds from coflections reinvested in revolving-period securitizations $ 4476993 $ 4838405
Servicing fees received ‘ 8,022 8391
QOther cash flows received on retained interests 53,643 15,376

Purchases of delinquent or forectosed assets - -

Cavarpian Bancarn + 00
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Note 22 — Asset Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities (Continued)

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the fair value of the retained interests to

immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions are as follows (in thousands):

Components of Retained fnterest and Servicing Rights:
Accrued intereslt receivable $
Subordinated irterest retained
Servicing rights
Interest only strips
Cash reserve
Total Retained interests and Servicing Rights $
As of December 31, 2005
Weighted-averagé life (in yrs)
Prepayment speed assumption (annual rate)
As of December 31, 2005 ‘
As of December 31, 2004
As of the date of the securitization
tmpact on fair value of 10% adverse change $

Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $

Expected credit losses {Cumulative rate for al! except for
Auts Floor Plan Loans which Is an annual rate)

As of December 31,:2005
As of December 31, 2004
As of the date of the securitization
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change $

Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $

Residual cash flows discount rate (annual)
As of December 31, 2005
As of December 31, 2004
As of the date of the securitization
fmpact on fair value of 10% adverse change $

Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change $

Mortgage
Loans

29,229
1,343

30,572

101

40%

20%

40%
(49)
(112)

9%

9%

9%
(17
(34)

Home

Equity
Loans

486
9,468

$§ 995
1.62

23%

27%

20%
$ (75)
$ (164}

1.78%
159%
0.75%

$ (249)

$ 613

12%

12%

12%
$ 0 (9
$ (385)

$

Auto J
Floor
Plan Loans

6471
52,635
3,080
5,266

Total

$ 6,471
81,884

1,829

12,548

5,266

67472

$ 107,998

$

0.34

45%

—%

50%
(g
(213)

0.25% .«

—%

0.25% -

{46)
53

8%

—%

8%
(110)
(220)

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based on

a 10 percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption
to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also in this table, the effect of a variation in a particutar assumption on the fair
value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result
in changes in another (for example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit
losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.



Sovereign enters into partnerships, which are variable interest entities under FIN 46, with real estate developers for the
construction and development of fow-income housing. The partnerships are structured with the real estate developer as the
general partner and Sovereign as the limited partner. We are not the primary beneficiary of these variable interest entities. Our
risk of loss is fimited to our investment in the partnerships, which totaled $145.2 million at December 31, 2005 and any future
cash obligations that Sovereign is committed to the partnerships. Future cash obligations related to these partnerships totaled
$65.3 million at December 31, 2005. Cur investments in these partnerships are accounted for under the equity method.

Note 23 — Earnings Per Share

The following table presents the computation of earnings per share based on the provisions of SFAS No.128 for the years
indicated (in thousands, except per share data): ‘

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 2003
Calculation of income for EPS: |

Net Income as reported and for basic EPS $ 676,160 $ 453,552 $ 401851
Contingently convertible trust preferred interest expense, net of tax 25,457 21,212 —
Netincome for diluted £PS $ 701,587 $ 474764 $ 401851
Calculation of shares:

Weighted average basic shares 363,(”555 322,289 277,301
Dilutive effect of: ’ |

Warrants — — 8,667
Stock-based compensation 6:439 ’5,902 4,509
Warrants on contingently convertible debt 26.093 ‘ 2n2,105 —
Weighted average fully diluted shares 396,187 | 350,296 290,477
Earnings per share:

Basic $ ; 1.86 $ 141 $ 1.45

Diluted $ i $ 1.36 $ 1.38

Sovereign repurchased 21 million shares during 2005 which had the ?mpact of reducing our weighted average fully diluted shares
by 12.4 million shares. At December 31, 2005, Sovereign had 1.3 miillion stock options excluded from our fully diluted share count
calculation since they were antidilutive based on the market price of Sovereign's stock as of December 31, 2005.
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Note 24 = Comprehensive Income

The following tabie presents the components of comprehensive income, net of related tax, based on the provisions of SFAS

No.130 for the years indicated (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Net income

Net unrealized gain/(loss) on derivative instruments for the period

Net unrealized gain/(k‘)ss) on investment securities available-for-sale for the period
Less reclassification aydjustments;

Derivative ins’rruments’

{nvestments available \;or sale

Net unrealized gain/(lo#s) recognized in other comprehensive income

Comprehensive income

2005

$ 676,160
12,105
{79,249)

{12,051)

1,613
(62,706) .

$ 813454

$

2004

453,552

19,070
(77,214)

{12,225)

9,249
(55,168}

$

398,384

$

2003

401,851

29,994
71,714

(3,728

42,937
(80,933)

$

320918

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of related tax, consisted of net unrealized losses on securities of $131.3 million
and net accumulated fosses on derivatives of $39.5 million at December 31, 2005, compared to net unrealized gains on

securities of $44.4 million and net accumulated losses on derivatives of $63.7 million at December 31, 2004t



Note 25 — Parent Company Financial Iinformatioh

Condensed financial information for Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. is as follows (in thousands):

BALANCE SHEEY )

AT DECEMBER 31, 005 2004
Assets h ’

Cash and due from banks {‘ $ 17,’753 $ 68,331
Available for sale investment securities ” 35,336 q 35,431

Investment in subsidiaries:

Bank subsidiary ' 66145 5,864,306
Non-bak subsidiaties ' 50,289 204,267
QOther assels ” 174,262 ’ 153,867
Total Assets §__ 1638785 § 6326202

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Borrowings:

Borrowings and other debt obligations $ 1,674,078‘ $ 1,180,257
Barrowings from non-bark subsidiaries ” 118,165 . 114,969
Other liabilities 30,845 42,604
Totat Jiabifities ” 1,823,08& 1,337,830
Stockholders' Equity :‘ 5,810,895 4,988,372
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 7633785 $ 6,326,202

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

AT DECEMBER 31, H 2005 ) , 2004 2003
Dividends from Bank subsidiary $ 750,000 | $ 130,000 $ 610,000
Intgrest incorme . 6315 3459 3705
Other income | 1319 ’ 4,764 (407)
Total income ,‘ 756,514 0 138,223 613,338
Interest expense | 99,575 V 110,140 106,480
Otherexpense f 50205 109532 3,555
Total expense | 149,880 219,672 143,035
tncome/(loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of subsidiaries ” 606;834 ” (81,449) 470,303
Income tax et ®367) (81.849) (440%9)
Income before equity in earnings of subsidiaries | 690,308 400 * 514,402
Dividends in excess of Bank subsidiary current year eamnings — — (127 628)

Equity in undistributed earnings/(loss) of:

Bank subsidiary (22,647) 429,004 —
Non-bank subsidiaries : ‘ 8,498 24,148 15,077
Net income $ 616,160 $ 453552 $ 401,851
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Note 25 — Parent Company Financial Information (Continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004 ‘ 2003
Cash Fiows from Operating Activities: ‘

Nt income § 676,60 §oams b s

Adjustments to recancite net income to net cash providad by operating activities:

Undistributed (earnings)/iess of:

Bank subsidiary — (429,004} | —

Non-bank subsidiaries (8,499) (24,148) {15,077
Dividends in excess of Bank subsidiary current year earmings 22,647 — 127,628

Loss on retirement borrowings and other debt obligations (1) — 81,186 | 29838

Stock hased compensaﬁon expense 30,404 22428 16,314

Aftecation of Employee Stack Ownership Plan 2,311 231 2,387

Other, et ' 42.251) (204,166) (59.431)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 680,772 (97,781) 503,510

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Net capital contributed to subsidiaries (965,308} (214,394) » (35,082)
Net cash (paid) received from acquisitions 280,210 {208,237) —

Net purchases and sales of investment securities 1,096 — (3,799
Net cash used in investing activities {684,502) (422,631 (38,881}

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net change in borrowings:

Repayment of other debt obfigations (350,000} (796,401) ‘ (609,640)
Net proceeds received from senior notes and senior credit facility 797,805 997,710 188,000
Net change in borrowings from non-bank subsidiaries 3,198 11,338 (137,325)
Sale (acquisition) of treasury Stock (470,215} (5,837} (17,643)
Cash dividends paid to stockholders {61,017) (37,222) (28,004)
Advance to ESOP plan — — (7,152)
Net proceeds from the issuance o exercise of warrants — 285,435 187,581
Net proceeds from issuance of comman stack 33,383 34,080 31673
Net cash {used in) provided by fn’nancing activities (46,848) 489,103 - {392,590
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {50,578) (31,309 72,038
Cash and cash equivalents at baginning of period 68,331 99,640 ': 27,601
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 17,753 $ 68,331 $ ‘ 99,640

(1) The debt extinguishment loss for 2004 does not equal the loss an the consolidated statement of operations since a partion of the debt retired in 2004 was hedged at Sovereign Bank. At the time
of this extingliishment, the hedge was in a gain position that was realized and recorded at Sovereign Bank and nat the Parent Company.
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Note 26 — Business Segment Information

Effective January 1, 2005, Sovereign reorganized its reporting structure in keeping with its strategy of offering local
community banking decision making combined with the broad product and service offerings that are normally only available
at a large bank. The Company's reportable segments have changed to the Mid-Atlantic Banking Division, the New England
Banking Division, Shared Services Consumer, Shared Services Commerciél, and Other. Additionally in 2005, Sovereign's
Wealth Management business was reclassified from Shared Services Consumer to Shared Services Commercial based on a
change in our internal reporting structure. Prior period results have been festated to reflect Sovereign's new segments.

The Company's segments are focused principally around the customers Sovereign serves and the geographies in which those
customers are located. The Mid-Atlantic Banking Division is comprised of our branch locations in; New Jersey, Pennsylvania,
and Maryland. The New England Banking Division is comprised of our branch locations in Massachusetts, Rhode Island,
Connecticut and New Hampshire. Both areas offer a wide range of products and services to customers which generates
assets and fee income for Sovereign and each attracts deposits by offering a variety of deposit instruments including demand
and NOW accounts, money market and savings accounts, certificates of deposits and retirement savings plans. The Shared
Services Consumer segment is primarily comprised of our mortgage banking group, our correspondent home equity business,
our indirect automobile group and our consumer iending group. The Shared Services Commercial segment provides cash
management and capital markets services to Sovereign customers, as well as asset backed lending products, commercial real
estate loans, automobile dealer floor pian loans, leases to commercial customers, and small business loans. Other includes
earnings from the investment portfolio, interest expense on Sovereign’s borrowings and other debt obligations, minority
interest expense, amortization of intangible assets, merger-related and integration charges and certain unallocated corporate
income and expenses. The assets that have not been allocated to the Mid Atlantic Banking Division, New England Banking
Division, Shared Services Consumer and Shared Services Commercial, and are included in Other, are certain cash and cash
equivalents, investments, goodwill and other intangible assets, bank owned life insurance and certain other assets. Although
goodwill and other intangible assets are not allocated to all of the segménts for management reporting purposes, these assets
are considered by the Company for purposes of assessing impairment of its goodwill in reporting units under SFAS No. 142.
Goodwill was allocated based upon the relative fair values of the reporting units which are equivalent to our reportable
segments and as of December 31, 2005, goodwill allocated to the Mid Atlantic Banking Division, New England Banking
Division, Shared Services Consumer and Shared Services Commercial was $1.16 billion, $658 million, $559 million

and $343 million, respectively. At December 31, 2004, geodwill allocated to the Mid Atlantic Banking Division, New
England Banking Division, Shared Services Consumer and Shared Services Commercial was $557 million, $680 million,
$560 million and $328 million, respectively.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 26 — Business Segment Information (Continued)

The following tables present certain information regarding the Company’s segments (in thousands):

ooy MM vt Shtoes Semes g o

Net interest income/(expense} $ 584163 $ 665466 $ 32721 $ 221780 $  (201,859) $ 1,588,281
Provision for credit losses 21,092 7,084 50,033 3,706 8,085 50,000
Fees and other income 131,613 162,926 151,656 128,507 60,057 634,759
General and administrative expenses 376,351 423,528 150,538 108,209 30,478 1,089,204
Depreciation/Amortization 15,073 16,264 32317 3621 99,985 167,262
Income (Loss) before income taxes 318,438 391,679 243,407 204312 (311,776) 892,120
Intersegment revenues (expense)™ 443,761 592,696 (801,436) (310,508) 75,481 —
Average Assets $ 6476948 $ 5,623,854 $ 21,663,696 $ 9,746,359 $ 17.221,11? $ 60,731,974
DECEMBER 31, 2004 Ba’g:(?r}gt{;citi(i:on BaN n:(YnEgngilcig?on Shzg::si;r:irces Shggfnde;zvi;cles Other® Total

Net interest income/{expense) $ 443429 $ 506094 $ 288152 $ 173544 $ (5,402 $ 1404817
Provision for credit losses 29,307 14,025 41,515 25,455 16,698 127,000
Fees and other income 120,172 152,271 53,171 96,182 46,273 468,069
General and administrative expenses 316,403 378,157 106,048 115,807 26,246: 942,661
Depreciation/Amortization 13,797 14,696 31,207 2,632 99,478 161,810
Income (Loss) before income taxes 217,890 266,183 180,539 128,464 (211,854) 581,222
Intersegment revenues (expense)® 351,670 443,430 (510,918) (163,721) (120,521)- —
Average Assets ‘ $ 4548305 $ 4518691 $ 15,571,888 $ 7835141 $ 18,084,082 $ 50,598,607
ooeanm MM, STEDe ST e ow

Net interest income( (expense) $ 399,294 $ 371716 $ 307,581 $ 152,003 $  (24,966) $ 1,205,628
Provision for credit losses 26,388 15,303 32516 58,641 29,109 | 161,957
Fees and other incorfle 111,073 119,723 84,802 88,952 50,969 455,019
General and administrative expenses 302,218 309,998 105,345 102,176 32,626 Y 852,364
Depreciation/Amortization 12,753 11,054 39,714 2,067 51,060 156,648
Income (Loss) before income taxes 181,760 166,138 246,650 67,993 (107,642) ’ 554,899
Intersegment revenues (expense)®” 348,783 367,842 (362,775) (137,089) (216,761) - —
Average Assets ’ $ 4,193,943 $ 3083841 $ 12,131,842 $ 6,685,035 $ 15,320,243 $ 41,415904

(1) Intersegment revenues (expense) represent charges or credits for funds used or provided by each of the segments and are included in net interest income (expense).

(2) Included in Other in 2005 and 2004 were net merger and integration charges of $12.7 million and $46.4 million, respectively. Included in Other in 2004 and 20031are debt extinguishment
losses $63.8 million 'and $29.8 million, respectively. The 2005 results also include $4.0 million of lease and contract termination charges and $5.8 million for proxy and professional costs. See
Note 29 for further detais.




Note 27 — Merger Related and Integration Chawg&sy Net

Following is a summary of amounts charged to earnings related to business combinations (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003
Mesger refated and restructuring items $ “ 12,744 $ ;16,35{) $ —
Total $ . 12744 $ 46359 $ —

——— Tmm—mtees e

In 2005, Sovereign recorded merger-related and integration charges related to the Waypoint acquisition of $16.7 million. Of
this amount, $2.4 million was related to branch and office consolidations, $5.8 million was related to system conversions
and $8.5 million was recorded for retail banking conversion costs and other costs. There was $4 million of merger-related
and integration reversals related to First Essex and Seacoast in 2005 based on favorable conversion costs and other merger-
related items being lower than amounts initially estimated. | ‘

In 2004, Sovereign recorded merger-related and integration charges related to the First Essex acquisition of $22.7 million. Of
this amount, $14.2 million was related to branch and office consolidations, $3.2 million was related to system conversions
and $5.3 million was recorded for employee benefits and other costs. In addition, Sovereign recorded merger-related and
integration charges related to the Seacoast acquisition of $23.7 million during 2004. Of this amount, $5.2 million was
related to branch and office consolidations, $6.5 million was related to system conversions, and $11.9 million was related to
retail banking conversion costs and other costs. 7

The status of reserves associated with business acquisitions is summarized as follows (in thousands):

RESERVE ACTIVITY 2005 2004
Charge recorded in earnings in 2005 and 2004 $ 24,681 $ 46,359
Amount provided in purchase accounting: |
2005 | 11,609 (27.35)
2004 | \ — 65,464
Payments: H
2005 . w02 (13363)
2004 | o (44,775)
Non-cash charge - —
Changes in estimates 2005% | ' (7,943) (3,746)
Reserve halance at December 31, 2005 ‘ $ 10,335 $_ 258

(1) In the second and third quarters of 2005, Sovergign reversed $5.9 million and $2.0 million, respectively, as a result of conversion costs and other ‘merger related items being lower than the
amounts initially estimated on the Waypcint acquisition.

Sovereign recorded additional loan loss provisions of $6 million for the First Essex acquisition to conform the institution's
allowance for loan loss to Sovereign's reserve policies. This charge was expensed through “provision for credit losses” on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. ‘
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 28 - Pending Transactions

On October 24, 2005, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (“Sovereign”) and Santander announced that they had entered into an
Investment Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2005 (the “Investment Agreement”), which sets forth the terms and
conditions pursuant to which, among other things, (i) Santander will purchase from Sovereign approximately 88 million
shares of Sovereign's common stock for $2.4 billion in cash, (i) Santander can increase its ownership during the first two
years following the closing subject to certain standstill restrictions and regulatory limitations, and (iii) Santander can, after
two years, subject to certain exceptions and subject to shareholder approval, acquire 100% of Sovereign in a negotiated
transaction. On November 22, 2005, Sovereign and Santander approved certain amendments to the Investment Agreement.
We expect this agreement to close in 2006. The proceeds of the investment will be used to acquire the common stock of
Independence Community Bank Corp. (“Independence”) as discussed below. Additionally, Santander has also agreed to
provide nonvoting equity and debt financing in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1.2 billion at prevailing market rates if
requested by Sovereign in order to assist Sovereign with the funding of its acquisition of Independence.

Santander is the ninth largest bank in the world by market capitalization. It has over 10,000 offices and & presence in over
40 countries. It is the largest financial group in Spain and Latin America, and has a significant presence elsewhere in Europe,
including the United Kingdom through its Abbey subsidiary and Portugal, where it is the third largest banking group. It also
operates a leading consumer finance franchise in Germany, ltaly, Spain and nine other European countries.

On October 24, 2005, Sovereign and Independence announced that they had entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger, dated as of October 24, 2005 (the “Merger Agreement”), which sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to
which Independence will be merged with and into Sovereign (the “Merger”). Under the terms of the Merger Agreement,
shareholders of Independence will be entitled to receive $42.00 in cash, in exchange for each share of Independence
common stock.

As of December 31, 2005, Independence has approximately $19.1 billion in assets, $12.2 billion in net loans, $3.6 billion
in investments, $10.9 billion in deposits, $5.6 billion of borrowings and other debt obligations and $2.3 hillion of
stockholders’ equity. Independence is headquarted in Brooklyn, New York, with 125 branches located in the greater New
York City metropolitan area, which includes the five boroughs of New York City, Nassau and Suffolk Counties and New
Jersey. Management expects that this acquisition will fortify our presence as a leading banking company in the Northeast

by connecting our Mid-Atlantic geographic footprint to New England and create new markets in certain areas of New York.
Sovereign expects to complete the merger in 2006; however, completion of the merger is subject to a number of customary
conditions, including but not limited to, the receipt of required regulatory approvals. Shareholders of Indepéndence approved
the Merger Agreement on January 25, 2006.

A more detailed:summary description of the Investment Agreement and the Merger Agreement is set forth ih Sovereign’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 27, 2005, which Form 8-K includes the full text of both the
Investment Agreement and the Merger Agreement as Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2, respectively.
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Note 29 — Other Charges |

In the first quarter of 2005, Sovereign recorded a contract termination charge of $2.3 million on a loan servicing agreement
for certain consumer loans owned by Sovereign that were serviced by a third party. Sovereign will service these consumer
loans in the future as we believe we have the necessary infrastructure to service these customers more efficiently and
effectively. In the third quarter of 2005, Sovereign negotiated a reduced termination penalty which resulted in a2 $1.2 million
reversal to integration charges. Sovereign also recorded in the first quarter of 2005, a charge of $2.9 million related to
certain leased real estate that was vacated and is no longer being used by;the Company. This charge was determined based
on the present values of the portion of the remaining lease obligations that were associated with the vacated space, net of the
estimated fair value of subleasing the property.

As discussed in Note 19, Sovereign has outstanding litigation proceedings against Relational. Sovereign incurred $5.8 million
of costs to defend itself against Relational’s claims/actions and anticipates incurring additional costs in 2006.

Note 30 — Subsequent Event

On March 15, 2006 Sovereign announced that its Board of Directors had declared a cash dividend increase of $.02 on its
common stock. The increase will result in a quarterly cash dividend of $.08 per share and an annual cash dividend of $.32
per share. The cash dividend is payable on May 15, 2006 to shareholders of record on May 1, 2006. Additionally, Sovereign
announced a 5% stock dividend, which will be distributed on May 22, 2006 to shareholders of record on May 1, 2006,

The newly issued shares will be issued in book form and are not eligible for the cash dividend payable on May 15, 2006. All
share and per share amounts will reflect the effect of this stock dividend on the record date.

Item © — Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

[tem 94 — Controls and Procedures

The Company's managenﬂent, with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined
under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), as of
December 31, 2005. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our prir{cipal financial officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2005.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act. The Company’s management,
with the participation of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the: Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation
under the framewaork in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, the Company's management concluded that our internal
control gver financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.

Our management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005,
has been audited by Ernst and Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their attestation
report which is included herein. !

lierm 9B — Other Infermation

None.




PART III
item 10 — Direclors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information relating to executive officers of Sovereign is included under Item 4A in Part | hereof. The other information
required by this Item 10 will be included in an Annual Report on Form 10-K/A to be filed by the Company within 120 days
after its fiscal year-end (the “Form 10-K/A).

Sovereign has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of its directors, officers and employees. Sovereign
has also adopted a Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers (inciuding, the Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Accounting Officer and Controller of Sovereign and Sovereign Bank). These documents are available free of
charge on the Company’s web site at www.sovereignbank.com. ‘

ltem 11 - Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be included in the Form 10-K/A

ltem 12 — Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this ltem will be included in the Form 10-K/A.

[tem 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item will be included in the Form 10-K/A.

ltem 14 — Principal Accountant Fess and Services

The information required by this item will be included in the Form 10-K/A.



PART IV |

I

[tem 15 - Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) 1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements are filed as part of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

T Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

—

T Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14

8]

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules are omitted because the required information is either not applicable, not required or is shown
in the respective financial statements or in the notes thereto.

{b) Exhibits

{2.1) Agreement and Pian of Merger, dated as of October 24, 2005, among Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., lceland Acquisition
Corp., and Independence Community Bank Corp. (Incorporated by. reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Sovereign's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2005.) ‘

(3.1) Aricles of Incorporation, as amended and restated, of Soveéign Bancorp, Inc..(Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Sovereign's Registration Statement on Form S-8, SEC File No. 333-117621.)

(3.2) By-Laws of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., as amended and resta’ted as of June 24, 2004 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Sovereign's Registration Statement on Form S-8, SEC File No. 333-117621.)

{3.2.1) Amendment to Section 3.02 of Bylaws of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to
Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2006.

(4.1) Senior Trust Indenture dated as of February 1, 1994, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and BNY Midwest Trust
Company (as successor to Harris Trust and Savings Bank), as Trustee. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Sovereign's Registration Statement No. 33-75472 on Form S-3.

(4.2) Sixth independence Supplement, dated September 1, 2005, between Sovereign Bancarp, Inc. and BNY Midwest
Trust Company, as trustee under an indenture, dates as of February 1, 1994, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and BNY
Midwest Trust Company, as successer to Harris Trust and Savings Bank. (Incarporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Sovereign’s Current Reponrt on Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2005.)

{4.3) Form of Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2009 of Sovere"ign Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2005.)

(4.4) Form of 4.80% Senior Notes due 2010 of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2005.)

(4.5) Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated Séptember 1, 2005, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
and Goldman, Sachs & Co., as representative of the several purchasers. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to
Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2005.)
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(4.6) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. has certain other debt obligations outstanding. None of the instruments evidencing
such debt authorizes an amount of securities in excess of 10% of the total assets of Sovereign Bancarp, inc. and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis; therefore, copies of such instruments are not included as exhibits to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Sovereign Bancorp, inc. agrees to furnish copies to the Commission on request.

(10.1) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1986 Stock Option Plan (the “1986 Plan”). {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Savereign's Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994.)

{10.2) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit “C” to Sovereign’s
definitive proxy statement, SEC File No. 001-16581, dated March 22, 2004.)

(10.3) Employment Agreement, dated as of March 1, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., Sovereign Bank, and Jay
S. Sidhu. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A, SEC File No. O-
16533, for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997.)

{10.4) Employment Agreement, dated as of September 25, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Lawrence M,
Thompson, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Sovereign's Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. O-
16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.)

(10.5) Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, (the “Rights Agreement”), dated as of January 19, 2005,
between Savereign Bancorp, inc. and Mellon investor Services LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K/A No. 3, SEC File No. 001-16851, filed January 24, 2005.)

{10.6) Amendment to the Rights Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2005, between Sovereign Bancorp; inc. and
Mellon Investor Services LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-/A filed
on October 28, 2005.)

(10.7) Form of Rights Certificate (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the Rights Agreement.) Pursuant to the
Rights Agreement, Rights will not be distributed until after the Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement).

{10.8) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Services Compensation Plan. {Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to Sovereign's Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC Fite No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000.)

{10.9) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan (the “1993 Pian”). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23
to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992.)

{10.10) indemnification Agreement, dated December 21, 1993, between Sovereign Bank and Jay S. Sidhu.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Sovereign's Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1993.)

(10.11) Sovereign Bancorp, inc. 1997 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
“A” to Sovereign's definitive proxy statement, SEC File No. 333-32109, dated March 16, 1998.)

{10.12) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan”). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Sovereign's Registration Statement on Form S-8, SEC File No, 333-05309.)

(10.13) Employment Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2003, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Joseph P.
Campanelli. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 001-
16581, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.) |

{10.14) Employment Agreement dated as of May 20, 2005, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Mark R. McColIom.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 20, 2005.)



(10.15) Employment Agreement dated as of September 16, 2002, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and
James J. Lynch. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, SEC File
No. 001-16581, for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2002.)

{10.16) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan”) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit “B” to Sovereign’s definitive proxy statement, SEC File No. 0-16533, dated March 26, 2001.)

(10.17) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Bonus Award Program, as amended. {Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed
February 18, 2005.) j :

(10.18) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Senior Officers Bonus Award Program, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.17 to Sovereign’'s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.19) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit “A” to
Sovereign's definitive proxy statement, SEC File No. 0-16533, dated March 15, 1996.)

(10.20) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 2004 Broad-Based Stock Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”). (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.21) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2004 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.) -

(10.22) Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2004 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC Fife No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.23) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2004 Plan. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

{10.24) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2001 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.25) Form of Nonquafified Stock Option Agreement under the 2001 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6
to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.26) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2001 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.27) Form of Nonquatified Stock Option Agreement under the Sovéreign Bancorp, Inc. 1997 Non-Employee
Directors' Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC
File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.28) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1996 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to

Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.29) Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the 1996 Plan. {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.30) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1993 Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.) ‘

(10.31) Form of Nongualified Stock Option Agreement under the 1993 Plan. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

{10.32) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1986 Stock Option Plan.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed
February 18, 2005.)




(10.33) Sovereign Bancorp, inc. Bonus Recognition and Retention Program. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14
to Sovereign’s Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.34) Form of Deferral Agreement under the Sovereign Bancorp, inc. Bonus Recognition and Retention Program.
(Incarparated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed
February 18, 2005.) :

{10.35) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 2005 Leaders I[ncentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to
Sovereign's Current Report on Form 8-K, SEC File No. 001-16581, filed February 18, 2005.)

(10.36) Investment Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2005 (the “Investment Agreement”) between Sovereign
Bancorp, Inc. and Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2005.)

(10.37) Amendment to Investment Agreement, made as of November 22, 2005, between Sovereigh Bancorp, Inc. and
Banco Santander Central Hispang, S.A. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Sovereign’s Cutrent Report on Form
8-K filed on November 23, 2005.)

(21) Subsidiaries of Registrant

(23.1) Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

(31.1) Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14{a) of the Securities Exchange
Act, as amended J

(31.2) Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act, as amended

(32.1) Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 «

(32.2) Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002



Slgnatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
(Registrant)
March 16, 2006

By: /s/ Jay S. Sidhu

Jay S. Sidhu, Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been sugned below by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title ‘ " Date

/s/ P. Michael Ehlerman ;
P Michael Ehierman Director March 16, 2006
/s/ Brian Hard ‘
Brian Hard Director March 16, 2006

/s/ Marian L. Heard
Marian L. Heard Director : March 16, 2006

/s/ Andrew C. Hove, Jr.
Andrew C. Hove, Jr. Director March 16, 2006

/s/ Daniel K. Rothermel ‘
Daniel K. Rothermel Director March 16, 2006

/s/ Jay S. Sidhu j

Jay S. Sidhu Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Chairman of Board of Directors

{Principal Executive Officer) March 16, 2006
/s/ Cameron C. Troilo, Sr. !
Cameron C. Troilo, Sr. Director March 16, 2006
/s/ Mark R, McCollom
Mark R. McCollom Chief Financial Officer
: and Executive Vice President
{Principal Financial Officer) March 16, 2006

/s/ Thomas D. Cestare
Thomas D. Cestare Chief Accounting Officer
Senior Vice President
(Principal Accounting Officer) March 16, 2006




Invesior Information

Copies of the Annual Report, 10K, interim reports, press
refeases and other communications sent to shareholders
are available frée of charge by accessing our Investor
Relations web site at sovereignbank.com or by contacting

Investor Relations via e-mail at investor@sovereignbank.

com or voice mail: 800-628-2673.

Dividends

Cash dividends on common stock are customarily paid oa
a quarterly basis on or about the 15th of February, May,
August and November.

Sovereign Trust Preferred Capital Securities dividends
are customarily paid on a quarterly basis on or about
March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31.

Sovereign Trust PIERS dividends are customarily paid
on a guarterly basisy on or about March 1, June 1,

September 1, and December 1.

Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend
Reinvestment Plan

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. maintains a Direct Stock
Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan for its
shareholders of record of common stock. This plan
provides a convenientimethod for Sovereign
shareholders to investitheir cash dividends and

make voluntary cash investments in additional shares
of Sovereign’s comman.stock. The Plan also permits
new investors to make an initial investment in Sovereign
common stock. For a copy of the prospectus and
enroliment form, pleaseicontact Mellon Investor Services
at 800-842-7629 and follow the telephone prompts.

Certifications

The chief executive officer and chief financial
officer certifications required by Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been filed as
exhibits to Sovereign's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005.

On April 21, 2005, Jay S. Sidhu, Sovereign’s Chief
Executive Officer, submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”) the CEO certification required

by the NYSE's rules certifying that he was not aware
of any violations by Sovereign of the NYSE's corparate

governance listing standards.

Financial Information
Investors, brokers, equity analysts and others desiring

financial information should contact:

Mark R. McCoifom, CPA

Chief Financial Officer,
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
610-208-6426
Mmccolio@sovereignbank.com

Stacey V Weikel

Senior Vice President,
Sovereign Bancorp, inc.
Investor Relations and
Strategic Planning
610-208-6112
Sweikel@sovereignbank.com

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Inquiries refated to shareholder records, stock transfers,
changes of ownership, fost stock certificates, changes of
address and dividend payment should be directed to:

Commaon Stock
NYSE: SOV

Melion Investor Services LLC
PQ. Box 3315

South Hackensack, NJ 07606
OR

480 Washington Blvd.

Jersey City, NJ 07310-1900
800-685-4524
melloninvestor.com

Trust Preferred Securities
NYSE: SOVPRA

The Bank of New York

101 Barclay Strest — 8W

New York, NY 10286

212-815-2498

Trust PIERS

OTC:SNCTO

BNY Midwest Trust Company

2 North LaSalle Street Suite 1020
Chicago, IL 60602
312-827-8547

Stock Listing

Sovereign's Common Stock is traded and
fisted on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) under the symbol “SOV." Sovereign
Trust Preferred Securities are traded on the
NYSE under the $ymbaol “SOVPRA”
Sovereign Comman Stock high, low and
closing prices are reported in most major
newspapers as “Sovrgn Beorp,”

“Sovereign” of “SovBep.”

P mmetya [reflm nemes o m e
Gorperate Information

Contact Information
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
1500 Markt Street
Philadelphia, PA 19102
215-557-4630

Sovereign Bank

1130 Berkshire Boulévard
Wyomissing, PA 19610
610-320-8400

Mailing Address
PO. Box 12646
Reading, PA 19612

Internat
sovereignbank.com
General inquiries -
info@esovbank.com
Investor refated inquiries -

investor@sovereignbank.com

Independent Reglstered
Public Accounting Firm
Ernst & Young LLP

Two Commerce Square, Sutte 4000
2001 Market Street

Philacelphia, PA 19103

Legal Counsel
Stevens & Lee
Philadelphia and Reading, PA
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